Public Document Pack

Audit Committee Agenda

Thursday, 12 January 2023 at 6.00 pm

Council Chamber, Muriel Matters House, Breeds Place, Hastings, TN34 3UY.
Please enter the building via the Tourist Information Centre entrance.

If you are attending the Town Hall for this meeting, please enter the building via the Community
Contact Centre entrance.

For further information, please contact Democratic Services on 01424 451484 or email:
democraticservices@hastings.gov.uk

Page No.

1. Apologies for absence

2. Declarations of interest

3. Minutes of the last meeting 13.10.22 1-4

4. Interim Auditor's Annual Report on Hastings Borough Council 5-40
(Kit Wheeler — Chief Finance Officer)

5. Hastings Borough Council Audit Progress Report and Sector 41 -54
Update
(Kit Wheeler — Chief Finance Officer)

6. Treasury Management Mid Year Report 2022-23 55-78
(Kit Wheeler — Chief Finance Officer)

7. Treasury Management Strategy & Capital Strategy 2023/24 79 - 158
(Kit Wheeler — Chief Finance Officer)

8. Strategic Risk Register 159 - 170
(Tom Davies — Chief Auditor)

9. Continuous Qualification: Investment Partner Qualification, 171 -172
Affordable Homes Programme 2021-26
(Tom Davies — Chief Auditor)

Corporate & Democratic Services H S

| . astings
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings Borough Council




10.

11.

Consultants / IR35 (Verbal report)
(Tom Davies — Chief Auditor)

Chief Auditor's Summary Audit and Risk Update Report
(Tom Davies — Chief Auditor)

173 -176



Agenda ItepabBc Document Pack

AUDIT COMMITTEE

13 OCTOBER 2022

Present: Councillors Rankin (Chair), Collins (Vice-Chair), Barnett, Marlow-Eastwood
and Webb.

In attendance (remotely): Tom Davies, Chief Auditor; Andy Conlan, Senior Manager,
Grant Thornton; and Rita O’Mahoney, Senior Corporate Accountant.

156. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence received from Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer and Simon
Jones, Deputy Chief Finance Officer.

157. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Item Interest

Webb All items Personal — Is an East
Sussex County
Councillor

Marlow-Eastwood All items Personal — Is an East
Sussex County
Councillor

158. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

RESOLVED - that the minutes of the meeting held on 28" July 2022 be
approved as a true record.

159. GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE

Andy Conlan, Senior Manager, Grant Thornton provided an update on Grant
Thornton’s progress in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s external
auditors.

The audit completion certificate has now been issued. The issue relating to
infrastructure assets which was raised at the previous meeting has now been closed
with help from the finance team and was not considered a material issue.

The fee variance as set out in the report has been communicated to the Chief Finance
Officer.

The 2020/21 financial audit will hopefully be completed by the end of November,
followed by 2021/22 next March.

RESOLVED:
Pagens. 1




AUDIT COMMITTEE
13 OCTOBER 2022
To note the report.
Reasons:

To provide the Audit Committee with a report on progress in delivering their
responsibilities as our external auditors.

160. FINAL ACCOUNTS 2021/22

The Senior Corporate Accountant presented the draft 2021/22 Statement of Accounts
in the absence of the Chief Finance Officer.

Councillors asked questions regarding the balance of the General Reserve. The
General Reserve is shown as being £7.5 million, with a movement of £2.43 million,
taking it up to a level of £9.794 million. The Senior Corporate Accountant replied that
this is likely to be due to delays in capital projects during covid, resulting in a lower
than expected draw on reserves to date. However, those projects will go ahead but at
a later date. The Senior Corporate Accountant agreed to give the Committee a more
in-dept update on this in writing.

Councillor Webb asked if the East Sussex County Council pension fund is performing
well. The Senior Corporate Accountant agreed to look into this and respond in writing
to the Committee.

Councillor Barnett asked if there had any been movement in the Redundancy Reserve
and why there was no movement in the Disabled Facilities Grant for 2021/22. The
Senior Corporate Accountant said she would look through the original workings and
respond in writing to the Committee.

In response to a question about the Section 31 Grant Reserve the Senior Corporate
Accountant informed the Committee that is used to resolve a deficit in the Business
Rate and Council Tax Collection Fund and further details can be provided to the
Committee.

RESOLVED:
To note the report.
Reasons:

Compliance with statutory requirements and good practice. The Council is
accountable for the use of public money and continuously seeks to improve Value for
Money.

Pagé:AéB' ?



AUDIT COMMITTEE

13 OCTOBER 2022
161. CHIEF AUDITOR'S SUMMARY AUDIT AND RISK REPORT

The Chief Auditor presented a report to inform the Audit Committee of the key findings
from the recent Housing Benefit audit.

This review was undertaken as part of the 2021/2022 agreed audit plan. During the
year 1st April 2021 to 31st March 2022, the Housing Benefit service paid more than
£29 million in rent allowances to over 5,000 claimants in the Borough.

The value of outstanding Housing Benefit overpayments has reduced from £2,566,004
(as at 31/03/17) to £1,441,701 (as at 31/03/22). The Chief Auditor attributed the
reduction to claimants being transferred from Housing Benefit to Universal Credit. The
overall Audit Assessment is B — Satisfactory. Most controls are in place and are
working effectively. Some minor improvements are recommended to ensure statutory
compliance, best practice and efficiency.

Councillor Webb asked if the Council should consider employing a Fraud Officer. The
Chief Auditor said that the Department for Work and Pensions Single Fraud
Investigation Service (SFIS) have taken responsibility for investigating Housing Benefit
fraud. At this time, it is not felt that the cost benefit analysis supports employing a
Fraud Officer.

RESOLVED:

That the Audit Committee accepts the report.
Reasons:

To monitor levels of control within the organisation.

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at 7.01pm)

CAB. 3
PageA



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda ltem 4

It
i [—' -
Hastings...

Borough Council

Report To: Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 January 2023

Report Title: Interim Auditor’s Report on Hastings Borough Council
Report By: Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer

Key Decision: N

Classification: Open

Purpose of Report

To consider the matters raised by the Council's external auditors (Grant Thornton) in respect
of their Governance Report. Their opinion on their value for money assessment is close to
but not yet concluded hence why it is Interim.

Recommendation(s)
1. That the report and action plan be accepted.

Reasons for Recommendations

Compliance with statutory requirements and good practice. The Council is accountable for the
use of public money and continuously seeks to improve Value for Money. The Council's external
auditors are required to submit a report to the Council's Audit Committee on any matters that are
identified during their audit.

Report Template v30.0

/Y [0 disabili
Page 5 g.a_..,} \EEE conﬁde%

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



Introduction

1. The report summarises the principal matters arising from the audit carried out by Grant
Thornton along with other areas that they are required to give an opinion on. Auditing
standards require the external auditors to report to those charged with governance,
certain matters before giving an opinion on the accounts.

2. The report has raised 2 serious concerns that the Audit Committee must be made
aware of. These relate to areas of Financial Sustainability and Governance and can
be found in the Executive Summary of their report.

3. Under their opinion on the financial statements in their report, they have stated that
“the audit of the 2020-21 financial statements is ongoing. They are targeting
completion of the audit prior to Christmas 2022. However, this is dependent on the
efficient turn around of the audit queries and the quality of evidence / explanation
provided. Findings from the audit of the financial statements can have an impact on
the value for money considerations, particularly around governance. Therefore, this
report is presented as an Interim Annual Auditor Report and will be finalised and
updated where appropriate on completion of the financial statements audit”.

4. A Senior Grant Thornton representative is expected to attend the Committee and
present the report.

5. The Audit Findings Report is attached at Appendix A.

Wards Affected
None
Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) No
Risk Management Yes
Environmental Issues & Climate Change No
Economic/Financial Implications Yes
Human Rights Act No
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No
Legal No
Climate Change No

Additional Information

Appendix A — Interim Annual Auditor’'s Report on Hastings Borough Council

Officer to Contact

Officer: Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer
Kit.Wheeler@hastings.gov.uk

Report Template v30.0

&‘“’ = . e
v vy B disability
Page 6 ‘Z-»,Aj \EEE conﬁdeﬂ

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER


mailto:Kit.Wheeler@hastings.gov.uk

o Grant Thornton

Interim Auditor’s Annual
Report on

Hastings Borough
Louncil

2020-21

30 Dec 2022

Final Report



Contents

' Section Page

Executive Summary 3

@ Key Recommendations 5
We are required under Commentary on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and

Section 20(1)(c) of the Local effectiveness in its use of resources 7

Audit and Accountability Act
2014 to satisfy ourselves that
the Council has made Governance 16
proper arrangements for
securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness Opinion on the financial statements 28
in its use of resources. The

Code of Audit Practice

issued by the National Audit . Appendices

Office (NAO) requires us to -

Financial sustainability 8

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 21

report to you our A - The responsibilities of the Council 30
commentary relating to / . : ) B - Risks of significant weaknesses - our procedures and findings 31
proper arrangements. .

C - An explanatory note on recommendations 32
We report if significant . - ,
e MEve Come & GUF £ 53 ; | D - Use of formal auditors’ powers 33
attention. We are not | 7 & '
required to consider, nor
have we considered, f . The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of
whether all aspects of the b { our normal audit procedures which are designed for the purpose of completing our work under the NAO

Code and related guidance. Our audit is not designed to test all arrangements in respect of value for
money. However, where, as part of our testing, we identify significant weaknesses, we will report these to
you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all irregularities, or to include all possible
improvements in arrangements that a more extensive special examination might identify. We do not accept
p any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis
operating effectively. g ) of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

Council’s arrangements for
securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources are

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742.
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered
office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms
are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms
are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 2



Executive summary @)

g\ Value for money arrangements and key
=/ recommendation(s)

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), we are
required to consider whether the Authority has put in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are required to
report in more detail on the Council's overall arrangements, as well as key
recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during the
audit.

2020-21 was an unprecedented year in which the Council operated with many of its staff
home working whilst supporting local businesses and residents through the pandemic.
This audit has identified some significant weaknesses in the arrangements for achieving
Value for Money which are summarised below. Full details are contained in this report.

E@ancial A risk of significant
stainability weakness was identified
O in relation to revenue and
capital funding

Governance No risks of significant
weakness identified

xx
Improving No risks of significant No significant weaknesses in @’*
economy, weakness identified arrangements identified, eight
efficiency and improvement recommendations made

effectiveness

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified.

No significant weaknesses in arrangements identified, but improvement
recommendations made.

- Significant weakness in arrangements identified and key recommendation
made.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Financial sustainability

Whilst the Council has reserves and a history of delivering financial savings, the financial
challenge and uncertainty continues to increase. The Council faces a significant challenge in
achieving a balanced budget in the medium term without diminishing reserves below a minimum
safe threshold. We consider this is an area of significant weakness in its arrangements and have
made a key recommendation in this regard (See Page 5 for details). We have also made five
improvement recommendations:

* Creating a full s25 report identifying risks to the budget and financial plans
* Making a clearer distinction between discretionary and core spend in the budget
* Improving internal budget setting guidance for budget holders
*  Making a clearer link between the workforce plan and the budget
* Reviewing the frequency of review of Treasury Management outturn
Further details and managements response is provided on pages 13-15.
Governance

We have identified an area of significant weakness in the Council’s governance arrangements
with regard to assurance over effectiveness of its internal audit arrangements. We have made a
key recommendation with regard to this (See page 6 for details). We have made four further
improvement recommendations:

* The Council’s corporate risk register should be mapped to corporate priorities.
+ Core financial systems should be strengthened
* The Risk Management strategy and Risk Appetite should be reviewed

* The Fraud Risk Management Strategy should be reviewed.

Further details and managements response is provided on pages 19-20.
Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We have not identified any significant weakness in arrangements for improving economy,
efficiency and effectiveness. We have made eight improvement recommendations:

* Improvements to financial reporting arrangements

* Identifying recurring and non-recurring variances to budget

* benchmarking of service costs against similar organisations

* Reviewing the level of its fees and income charges

* Undertaking an internal audit of data quality of Key Performance Indicators
* Reviewing financial reporting of savings achieved

* Reviewing financial reporting of capital investments

* including contract management performance KPIs as part of overall KPI reporting

Further details and managements response is provided on pages 24-27.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 3



B Opinion on the financial
statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the
National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the
Code"), we are required to report whether, in our opinion:

* the Council's financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Council and the
Council’s income and expenditure for the year; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accounting and prepared in accordance with the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

T abed

e are also required to report whether other information
published together with the audited financial statements,
including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and
Narrative Report, is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The Council’s finance team published draft 2020/21
financial statements in July 2021, and a revised set of
statements for audit was presented to us in June 2022. Our
audit work on the 2020-21 statutory audit of the financial
statements was started in July 2022. We initially set aside a
6 week time period to complete the audit, however due to
some delays in availability of completed high quality
working papers and cleansed populations for testing the
audit was paused while our team completed other
scheduled assignments. We have identified a further period
from mid-October through to the end of 2022 for the team to
complete the audit and this second phase of fieldwork is
currently in progress.

Findings from the audit of the financial statements can have
an impact on value for money considerations, particularly
around governance. Therefore, this report is presented as an
Interim Annual Auditor Report and will be finalized and
updated where appropriate on completion of the financial
statements audit.

VER/UNIDER

25,00
ALY Oy A g >
(ST

* Anan

. e ek .

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 4



Key recommendations

Financial sustainability

Recommendation 1

The Council should ensure that savings and income targets are agreed which address the
identified funding gaps and incorporate an element of headroom for any slippage to the plan.
Timely and accurate financial monitoring information needs to be provided to members.

Why/impact

Balancing the budget without reducing services is becoming increasingly difficult and the
Council needs to ensure it has plans which address the identified funding gaps so that its plans
remain realistic and sustainable.

Auditor judgement

Our review of the Council’s MTFS indicates that there are significant unidentified
savings/funding gaps in financial planning that would substantially threaten the delivery of the
plan and lead to unsustainable use of reserves. On this basis we have concluded that there are
significant weaknesses in the Council’s financial planning arrangements.

TT obed

Summary findings

No structured medium-term savings or income plans sufficient to meet the identified funding
gaps have been formulated or considered by members. A mid-year review, for members and
officers was planned for 2021-22 but detailed plans have still not been drawn up. The potential
impact on the delivery of the Council's strategic priorities has also not been assessed. The
Council’s own predictions envisage that in the absence of further savings or additional income
then the general reserve budget will be extinguished by 2025/26 at the latest. The Overview and
Scrutiny Committee received no financial report in the first half of 2020-21. We were advised to
exclude Appendices relating to savings in the budget report from our review as the figures could
be misleading. We were further advised that the way in which the Council revises its budget in
February each year (one month before the year end) and then report any variance against the
revised budget could be misleading.

See pages 9-10 for further details

Management Comments As part of the budget setting process for 2023/2\4, savings have been identified and detailed, and

will be reported against on a regular basis as part of the financial monitoring process. Internal

management accounts are now being produced by the finance team and shared internally to aid

financial decision making. Senior Officers and Cabinet members have met on a weekly basis to
run through the financial position of the council and discussions have been ongoing since the

summer and before the MTFS update report was presented to Council in September. There is also

a regular task and finish group meeting to focus specifically on the councils housing crisis which
is the main area of concern this financial year and a corporate priority to address.

Commercial in confidence

The range of
recommendations that
external auditors can
make is explained in
Appendix C.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UKTLP. Confidential and information only.



Commercial in confidence

Key recommendations

Governance

Recommendation 2

The Council should reconsider the depth of its annual internal audit coverage to provide an appropriate level of assurance to
members over the systems of internal control.

In accordance with best practice, members of the internal audit team should not have any other service responsibilities.

The Council should commission an independent assessment of its Internal Audit arrangements against the Public Sector Internal
Audit Standards (PSIAS) requirements and implement any necessary changes arising from that review.

Whg/impact Without an effective independent assurance function the Council cannot determine the effectiveness of its Internal Control
Framework.
Auditor judgement We have concluded that the Internal Audit plan is light and delivery against that plan is lighter still. The Audit Committee has not

challenged the implications of the planned Internal Audit coverage.

Summary findings

2T obed

Alight internal audit plan in both 2019/20 and 2020/21 (8 audits planned for each year). Only four Internal Audit reviews were
delivered for 2019-20 and three in 2020-21. In the AGS the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) stated that: “I am unable to provide a
supported reasonable assurance opinion on the key areas of risk management, corporate governance and financial control". The
Council has not had an independent assessment of its Internal Audit arrangements against Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
(PSIAS).

See pages 19-20 for further details

Management Comments

Agreed. We match the plan to resource and the depth of the coverage was more shallow during the Covid period because of our
involvement in providing pre and post assurance checking to the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (BEIS) of all
Business Grant claims. Our latest plan for 2022 / 2023 has re-focused on financial controls.

The run-off of Procurement to the East Sussex Procurement Hub is now almost complete. A review of the Internal Audit team structure
was already scheduled for March 2023.

The East Sussex Borough and District Councils have agreed to assess each other on a reciprocal basis and this programme has
already started. It has already been agreed that the review for Hastings BC will be carried out during 2023 / 2024. We will then
implement any recommendations to come out of it in the Quality Assurance Improvement Programme (QAIP) to ensure conformance
with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

Note: The Chief Auditor used to work in a Local Authority similar to our neighbouring Councils. To adopt a similar plan would not
better serve Hastings Borough Council as it is a complex council. The same plan structure has been in place over 20 years and until
prior to Covid, the Chief Auditor used to send it to External Audit for comment prior to presentation to the Audit Committee. Itis
accepted that the discharge of the assignments on the plans during the Covid period was light. There is a need to ensure that all
the sources of assurance and other work that is referred to in the Internal Audit Plan is communicated to the Audit Committee.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.




Commentary on the Council's arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

All Councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness from
their resources. This includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that
they can deliver their objectives and safeguard public money. The Council’s responsibilities are set out in Appendix A.

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual governance
statement.

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, we are required to be satisfied whether the Council has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

e National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 03, requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

Financial sustainability Governance Improving economy;, efficiency
and effectiveness

e1 abe

Arrangements for ensuring the Arrangements for ensuring that
Council can continue to deliver the Council makes appropriate Arrangements for improving the
services. This includes planning decisions in the right way. This way the Council delivers its
resources to ensure adequate includes arrangements for budget services. This includes
finances and maintain setting and management, risk arrangements for understanding
sustainable levels of spending management, and ensuring the costs and delivering efficiencies
over the medium term (3-5 years). Council makes decisions based and improving outcomes for

on appropriate information. service users.

Our commentary on each of these three areas, as well as the impact of Covid-19, is set out
on pages 8 to 35. Further detail on how we approached our work is included in Appendix B

at page 39.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 7



Financial sustainability

We considered how the Council:

* responded to the financial challenges
posed by the Covid-19 pandemic

identifies all the significant financial
pressures it is facing and builds these
into its plans

T abed

* plans to bridge its funding gaps and
identify achievable savings

* plans its finances to support the
sustainable delivery of services in
accordance with strategic and
statutory priorities

* ensures its financial plan is consistent
with other plans such as workforce,
capital, investment and other
operational planning

* identifies and manages risk to
financial resilience, such as
unplanned changes in demand and
assumptions underlying its plans.

We identified in the audit plan a risk of
significant weakness in relation to
Financial Sustainability.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Covid-19 arrangements and Outturn 2020-21

The impacts of Covid-19 were monitored through the year, a finance update setting out the impacts was presented to Cabinet in
October 2020. This report predicted a worsening position with a forecast deficit of £2.7m against the original budget shortfall of
£1.182m. The additional costs arising from Covid-19 that would fall in the 2020-21 year were estimated to be £1.528m, with loss of
income estimated at £2.365m over the same period. The additional costs and loss of income was predicted to be offset by central
government funding of £2.1m.

As a result of this update the Council approved a Covid-19 Recovery Themes and Action Plan which resolved that the Council would
need to closely monitor and update budget impact analysis, regularly update the Cabinet on the position, and conduct a corporate
review of all 2020-21 revenue budgets to identify areas for immediately reducing in-year expenditure through additional controls on
non-essential spend and recruitment. The Council also updated its Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to understand the short to
medium term implications for savings requirements and use of reserves.

At the time of setting the 2021-22 budget the Council also set a revised budget position for 2020-21 . The position for 2020-21 was
reported to be more favourable than the mid-year forecasts in October 2020 had predicted. The 2020-21 budget envisaged total
expenditure of £15.492m and a total funding deficit of £2.430m. This deficit was to be funded through use of reserves including
£0.929m from general reserves and £0.253m from the Council’s transition reserve in order to achieve a balanced budget. The final
outturn was a more favourable position again with a net surplus of £1.071m. This surplus arose as a result of additional government
support despite an overall increase in direct service expenditure.

This outturn position reflects financial pressures associated with the pandemic including £0.297m in reduced car parking income, and
a £0.227m increased demand on homelessness support. These variances were offset by an increase in cemetery and crematorium
income of £0.132m and Development Management Income of £0.155m compared to budget. There were also underspends on DSO
Service (£0.128m) and £0.288m on Sports Centres.

Budget 2021-22

For 2021-22 the budget deficit was estimated at £1.483m which was to be funded by utilising £0.2m from the Council’s Resilience and
Stability reserve and £1.283m from the General Reserve. The budget took account of the central government funding including a new
grant, the Lower Tier Services Grant (£0.163m); further Covid-19 grant anticipated to be received in April 2021 (£0.699m); and expected
increase in Council Tax Support scheme costs which were provisionally estimated at £0.195m. The government’s Lost Income
Compensation scheme in respect of reduced sales, fees and charges continued for three months into 2021-22. New Homes Bonus has
reduced significantly from £1.01m in 2017/18, to £173,162 in 2021-22 further increasing budgetary pressures.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 8



T

«Q
@D

Financial sustainability (cont’d)

Set against this were additional costs of homelessness through increased costs of temporary
accommodation (£0.26m) as well as having to predict ongoing costs/loss of income arising
from Covid-19 income for example Business rates (£0.2m). The Council increased its
contingency budget from £0.3m to £0.5m as a result of these uncertainties. Funding within
the budget also included an assumed 1.99% increase in council tax.

The Council’s ongoing savings plan - Priority Income and Expenditure Review (PIER)
identified savings of £0.484m for 2021-22. In 2019-20 PIER savings of £1.224m were delivered
against an original budget estimate of £1.248m. For 2020-21 potential PIER savings of
£1.784m were identified. The Council has not tracked the actual savings achieved for that
year. The Council acknowledged at that time that even if the target savings for 2021-22 were
achieved then that alone would be insufficient to balance the budget and that further
savings or increased income would need to be identified.

A s25 statement is included within the budget papers and highlighted that the level of
general reserves for long term provision could fall below the minimum level of £6m which the
Council has set. A full separate s25 statement has not been created. An improvement
recommendation has been made in this respect (recommendation 3).

Despite these pressures the Council still had plans to stimulate economic growth and provide
new housing. These included a new hotel, the Harold Place redevelopment, new units at
Churchfields Industrial Estate, and the town’s Lower Tier and West Marina development.

A decision was taken in September 2017 to invest £60m over 3 years in Commercial Property
(£29m), Housing (£15m) and Energy (36m) initiatives. This was projected to provide income
of around £1.3m per annum. That figure was revised down to £0.85m in the 2021-22 budget.

The Finance Department discuss budget requirements with relevant budget holders and also
help to identify potential savings as part of the PIER savings plan. All Cost Centres were
reviewed line by line by the Finance Director. The Finance Director then consolidates the
individual budget and savings plans into an organisational plan which is discussed with the
Finance lead, Managing Director and Full Council. Although the budget report for 2021-22
provides a clear and detailed narrative on the key budget assumptions, risks and
uncertainties, and the minimum level of unallocated reserves it is not always clear how these
assumptions and risks have been determined. There is no budget setting guidance for budget
holders to ensure consistency of approach, and an improvement recommendation has been
made in this respect (recommendation ).

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Draft budget proposals were considered by the Cabinet in January 2021 prior to the final
budget being approved by Full Council in February 2021. Comments on the annual
corporate plan update and draft budget were sought from residents, council staff and a
range of community and business organisations. A summary of the responses received was
presented with the budget report. There is therefore appropriate and timely consultation with
key stakeholders in the preparation of the annual budget.

Overall we found no evidence of significant weaknesses in the Council’s budget setting
arrangements.

(MTES)

Medium Term Financial Strategy

The MTFS includes assumptions around New Homes Bonus, business rate income, council tax
increases, fees and charges, pay increases and borrowing costs. Pay pressures were initially
forecast at realistic levels but there is still a great deal of uncertainty in these figures.

The MTFS for 2021-22 to 2024-25 was updated at the time of setting the 2021-22 budget in
February 2021. That MTFS identified a funding shortfall of £1.483m in 2021-22, rising to £2.3m
in 2022-23 and to £2.64m thereafter.

The Council acknowledge that in order to achieve a balanced budget for the period 2022/23
- 2024/25, further savings, or additional income will need to be generated to avoid further
unsustainable use of the General Reserve to balance the budget. The Council’s own
predictions envisage that in the absence of further savings or additional income then the
general reserve budget will be extinguished by 2025/26 at the latest.

The Council has projected total PIER savings of £1.884m to the end of 2023/24. The Council

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 9



Financial sustainability (cont’d)

has stated that: “...after ten years of funding reductions, there are few illusions left about the  Insufficient organisational capacity to deliver existing commitments set out in the corporate
difficulty in identifying the further budget reductions required to even achieve the levels of plan alongside implementing the required changes to meet the challenge of the council's
reduction required’. budget deficits are recorded as a strategic risk rated as red in the strategic risk register. Key
controls in place to manage this are the budgeting process, where strategic priorities are
reassessed based on available resources. The link between available resources set out in a
workforce plan and the budget could be made clearer and an improvement recommendation
has been made in this respect (recommendation 6).

The Council also acknowledged that these estimates carried some uncertainty and did not
take account of the potential 5% annual decrease in future central government funding. The
£6m minimum reserve level set by the Council includes a sum of £2m to allow for unexpected
decrease in income of up to 15%. The MTFS in November 2021 stated that the General
Reserves could fall below that £6m threshold by 2023/24. Our review of the Council’s MTFS indicates that there are significant unidentified
savings/funding gaps in financial planning that would substantially threaten the delivery of
the plan and lead to unsustainable use of reserves. On this basis we have concluded that
there are significant weaknesses in the Council’s financial planning arrangements. Key
recommendations have been identified to further strengthen arrangements in relation to
ensuring appropriate savings targets are set and monitored and opportunities for
commercial income streams are identified.

No structured medium-term savings or income sufficient to meet the identified funding gaps

(Q have been formulated or considered by members. Priority Income and Efficiency Reviews

(D (PIER) are monitored through the Strategic Oversight and Planning Board. In February 2021
this was charged with identification of a sustainable budget for a period in excess of one

Ohyear. A mid-year review, for members and officers was planned for 2021-22 but detailed
plans have still not been drawn up. It is concerning that there is a lack of specific plans to
address the gaps. The impact on the delivery of the Council's strategic priorities is also not Reserves and risk mitigation
clear. The strategic priorities are reviewed each year with the budget however there is no
clear line of sight between elements of the MTFS and the Strategic Priorities. At present long
term financial plans are not dependent upon reduction or removal of services but are likely
to be necessary in the future.

The 2021-22 budget report recognised that the Council’s general reserves will fall below the
Council’s own defined minimum recommended level of £6m by the end of 2023-24 and could
be extinguished entirely by 2025-26 at the latest. The below table sets out the latest MTFS
balance of the General Fund at the end of each financial year based on the current plan. It
When setting savings targets it should be ensured that they are sufficient to bridge the should be noted that the assumptions built into this strategy still do not fully reflect the
funding gaps identified in the MTFS, even if there is slippage to the plan. The current savings ~ pressures that the current cost of living crisis may bring.

schemes identified are insufficient to balance the budget over the short to medium term. The

Council’s current financial plans rely on unsustainable use of general reserves in order to

bridge the funding gaps faced by the Council. There is also no headroom in the plan. A key General reserve fund balance over life of latest MTFS EOOOs

recommendation in this respect is included in this report so that clear savings targets are
identified sufficient to meet identified funding gaps. (Key recommendation 1). 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
When setting and monitoring the budget the distinction between discretionary and core

spend is not clear. Highlighting core and discretionary spend would enable the Council to

better consider the discretionary nature of some costs when deciding whether to continue 9146 6169 3631
with the delivery of such services. Although discretionary spend does come under scrutiny
when plans are being considered, it would not be clear to a resident that there is a
distinction between statutory and discretionary spend. An improvement recommendation in
this is included in this report (recommendation 5).

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 10



Financial sustainability (cont’d)

As the graphic below demonstrates the CIPFA Financial Resilience Indicators show that the
Council is in the higher risk category regarding reserves sustainability measures than its
statistical nearest neighbours.

Table: Showing CIPFA Indicators of Financial Stress for Hastings BC

Indhcators of Finanoal Stress
& Pt Ak ——
Pasmrymy Suslnnsbilily Messure
Lisiel of Respryes I
Charge In Reservs [
Irtermst Prpasim et wveow Sxprdture |

Grows Sateeral Dbt |

Femy & Crarges i Sarven Expendtoy Gate |

Eouncl Tex Begerement / el feverus Expendiure I

/T obed

Srowih Above Besshne [

Each year the Council reviews its “base budgets” to identify efficiency savings and to
ensure existing spend is still a Council priority (Priority Income and Efficiency Reviews
(PIER)). The Council has also established an Invest to Save Reserve to assist with the
achievement of identified savings. This reserve will however be exhausted by the end of
2021-22.

The Council has a comprehensive repair and renewal programme. The Council contributes
an annual sum of £0.5608m to a reserve which funds the programme. Currently annual
expenditure on repairs and maintenance is almost double this amount. If the contributions
to this reserve and annual expenditure on repairs and maintenance remain at current levels
then this specific reserve balance will be extinguished by 2022/23. This reserve could be
eroded quicker than this because as the Capital Programme expands then maintenance
and repair costs will further increase beyond inflation.

The Council utilised £0.937m of earmarked reserves in 2019/20 but was able to replenish
that in 2020-21 as a result of the surplus achieved through the receipt of additional
government grants.

The Council is aiming for a position where recurring expenditure is met from recurring

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

resources. Conversely the Council aims to utilise non-recurring resources such as
reserves and balances to meet non-recurring expenditure. Given the above potential use
of reserves this aim appears aspirational rather then achievable in the medium term. It
should also be recognised also that the COVID-19 support provided by government will
cease and this, combined with the need to manage more significant funding gaps in
2022/23 and 2023/2M4, will present an even bigger challenge for the Council. This
includes increased levels of savings required in these years, as well as the inevitable
increased strain on services due to the cost-of-living crisis.

As stated previously the Council’s current financial plans rely on unsustainable use of
general reserves in order to bridge the funding gaps faced by the Council. As such we
have concluded that there is a significant weakness with regard to those financial plans.

Capital strategy and treasury management

The Council approved the Capital Programme, Capital Strategy and Treasury
Management Strategy for 2020-21 during February 2020 and it was reviewed again in
February 2021 for 2021-22. These documents set out the Council’s capital expenditure,
capital financing, minimum revenue provision and borrowing projections. The February
2021 review updated the Treasury Management and Investment Strategy. The Council
approved Capital schemes aligned to the Council's corporate priorities. Schemes also
had to meet one or more of the following criteria:

* be of a major social, physical or economic regeneration nature,

* meet the objective of sustainable development,

* leverin other sources of finance or provide a financial return for the Council, or

* isan"invest to save" scheme and reduces ongoing revenue costs.

The Capital projects form a key part of the Council’s plans and are expected to provide
a significant return on investment. However even a small downturn in the economy could
result in a reduction in income which would require the Council to make greater service
reductions to balance the budget.

The Treasury Management strategy states that the Council seeks to minimise the costs
of borrowing and maximise investment income whilst ensuring the security of its
investments. The Council has made substantial investments in commercial property,
housing and energy generation initiatives, and this has been funded through external
borrowing. External borrowing was £65m as at 31 March 2021 and is within CIPFA

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022

il



Financial sustainability (cont’d

Prudential limits. The financing costs of this debt are reflected in the Council’s revenue budget.
The Treasury Management strategy was presented to Audit Committee in January 2021 with a
recommendation to Full Council as part of the budget setting process.

The Council has stated that Treasury Management performance should be reviewed quarterly by
the Audit Committee, this did not happen in 2020-21. The Audit Committee only received one
report and this looked at future strategy rather than in-year performance. We have raised an
improvement recommendation in this respect (recommendation 7). The Council undertook cash
flow monitoring during 2020-21 and there were no reported liquidity issues.

We have found no evidence of significant weakness in the Council’s capital and treasury
arrangements.

%onclusion

We identified financial sustainability as a significant risk in planning this work. Following our

view we have identified significant weaknesses arising from unidentified savings/funding gaps
in financial planning that would substantially threaten the delivery of the plan or lead to
Rsustainable use of reserves to bridge those funding gaps. We have made a key
@:ommendotion (see page 5) and five Improvement recommendations setting out the steps the
Council should take in order to address these weaknesses. These improvement recommendations
are set out on the following pages.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022

12



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Financial sustainability

Recommendation 3 Recommendation 4

recommendation  The Section 151 Officer should prepare a full s25 report annually setting out  The Finance Director should produce budget setting guidance for budget holders.
the risks and assumptions built into the budget and medium term financial

plans.
Whg/impdct It is essential that the Council is able to fully scrutinise and understand the It is essential that the Council has a consistent approach to building its annual budget.
risks associated with its financial plans and ability to achieve a balanced
n) budget.
jabl
Q
CDSummqu findings The Council has not prepared a full s25 statement as required. The Council does not have any budget setting guidance.
=
©
Management Agreed - This has historically been included as part of the budget report but  Noted. Written finance guidance notes are currently provided for the closure of accounts
comment this will be separated out in future as a separate report. and verbal discussions are undertaken between finance staff and officers for the budget

setting process but this will be updated for the new financial year.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 13



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Financial sustainability

Recommendation 5 Recommendation 6

Recommendation Discretionary and Core expenditure should also be clearly identified in The link between available resources under a workforce plan and the budget could be made
financial plans and budget monitoring to aid decision making. clearer.

Why/impact Highlighting core and discretionary spend would enable the Council to Insufficient organisational capacity to deliver existing commitments set out in the corporate
better consider the discretionary nature of some costs when deciding plan alongside implementing required changes to meet the challenge of the council's budget
whether to continue with the delivery of such services. deficits are recorded as a strategic risk rated as red in the strategic risk register

—pummary findings Budget reports presented to Cabinet as part of the 2021-22 budget setting ~ There is no clear line of site between available resources through the workforce plan and the
process recognise that a strategic approach to identifying savings is MTFS and budget decisions.
required to balance the financial position.

The Council has not developed any firm savings plans, is reluctant to further
raise prices on areas of discretionary income e.g. car parking and
commercial lets, and has not therefore taken adequate commercial steps to
address the gaps. The impact of the financial gaps on the delivery of the
Council's strategic aims is not clearly set out. The Director of Finance
acknowledges this and intends to align future MTFS with the potential
impact on strategic priorities.

0z abe

When setting and monitoring the budget the distinction between
discretionary and core spend is not clear.

Management As part of the Budget setting process, the 2023/24 Fees and Charges was Capacity of officers is raised regularly at Overview and Scrutiny meetings around
comment agreed to be increased at an average of 11%. This was after detailed organisational performance, and officers will include any requirements as part of any
discussions with each area of the organisation and cabinet officers. This cabinet reports highlighting both the resourcing impact as well as the financial impact.
process was analysed thoroughly and discussed in more detailed as part of
the budget setting process compared to previous years and as a direct
result of weekly meetings between officers and Cabinet members. This is
linked to the MTFS and discussions around core and discretionary
expenditure and services are all discussed as part of the budget setting
process.

range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 15



Improvement recommendations

@ Financial sustainability

7 Recommendation The frequency of review of the Treasury Management Performance should be reconsidered by
the Audit Committee
Why/impact It is essential that Treasury Management Performance is monitored on a regular basis.
Summary findings The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy states that Treasury Management performance
should be reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Audit Committee. This did not happen in 2020-21
Y (reviewed once] or 2019-20 (reviewed twice).
Q
% Management The Treasury Management performance should be reviewed half yearly, and the Treasury
comment Management Strategy will be updated to reflect this. Currently we report quarterly as part of the
N financial update reports relating to interest perf d also MRP level dt
= p ports relating to interest performance and also evels compared to

budget. This is an ongoing development in terms of information contained in the report but this
has already improved since 2020/21 financial year. Long term staff absence was the reason for
the missed report in 2020/21 which has now been resolved.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix C.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022

15



Governance

We considered how the Council:

2¢ obed

considered the impact of Covid-19 on the
governance arrangements

monitors and assesses risk and gains assurance
over the effective operation of internal controls,
including arrangements to prevent and detect
fraud

approaches and carries out its annual budget
setting process

ensures effectiveness processes and systems are in
place to ensure budgetary control

ensures it makes properly informed decisions,
supported by appropriate evidence and allowing
for challenge and transparency

monitors and ensures appropriate standards.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

COVID-19 arrangements

During the 2020-21 financial year the Council supported the community, local businesses and the delivery of critical services
through the pandemic, and adapted governance arrangements as required. Council and Committee meetings were held
remotely throughout the year, allowing for public participation and for the democratic decision making process to continue.
The majority of Council staff were required to work from home during the pandemic.

In October 2020 the Cabinet received a special report setting out a Covid-19 Initial Impact Analysis for the period March-June
2020. These updates included the progress on delivering grants to support local businesses, reopening public conveniences
and communal enclosed spaces safely.

Managing risk

The Council’s Risk Management Strategy was last updated in 2009. We have reviewed the document and are of the opinion
that the lack of update does not represent a risk and that there are no fundamental issues, however it would be prudent for
the Council to undertake a review and update as necessary particularly to ensure it is aligned to the Council’s current risk
appetite (recommendation 8).

The Council maintains a corporate and operational risk register. The corporate risk register is reviewed by Risk Management
Group and reported to the Audit Committee. Workforce information and performance against strategic priorities are reported
to Overview and Scrutiny Committee as part of the Quarterly Performance Financial risks are reported to Council however
the impact of other risks are not linked through to financial plans or strategic priorities. We have raised an improvement
recommendation in this respect (recommendation 9).

From our work we have not identified any significant areas of weakness in the Council’s arrangements to manage and report
risk. We have made an improvement recommendation that risks within the risk register should be mapped to financial plans
and corporate priorities to ensure that their potential impact on the corporate plan is understood so that risk reporting
becomes more dynamic and integral to the financial planning process.

Internal control - Internal Audit

Internal audit is provided by an in-house team. The team was depleted in 2020-21 and were able to complete only a small
portion of the 2020-21 audit plan before 31st March 2021. This was due to one team member on long term absence and
another being seconded into Covid-19 business grant payments. Only four audits were completed in 2019-20 against a plan
of 8. A revised audit plan was put forward in November 2020 with 8 audits listed in the plan: three core audits (Housing

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 16



Governance

Benefit, Debtors and Payroll) and five ‘risk review, follow up and other audits’ (IT resilience,
Syrian Refugee Resettlement Programme, CT Reduction scheme, Single Person Discount
review and National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data matching, NNDR). Only the three core audits
were completed in 2020-21. Even if the Council had completed all 8 planned audits then this
volume would still be below the level achieved by near neighbours, for example Wealden
District Council completed 14 reviews and Rother district Council completed 20 reviews
according to published data.

In addition to the three audits conducted by the Council’s Internal Audit Team, an external
assurance review of Housing was undertaken by TIAA an external provider of assurance work
who reported in November 2020. This provided a reasonable assurance level (second highest
level available).

In the Annual Governance Statement the Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) stated that: “l am
unable to provide a supported reasonable assurance opinion on the key areas of risk
nagement, corporate governance and financial control". However, based on the fact that
0% of staff were able to work from home in a secure way, enquiries made by the CIA with
(®ervice managers, CIA knowledge of the controls over Covid 19 grant payments, budgetary
(Position and review of the risk registers, the CIA concluded that: ‘there is no reason to believe
Nhat internal controls are unsatisfactory or worse.”

CJl"?*-e Council’s Audit Committee did not meet during the first half of the 2020-21 financial
year, its first meeting of that year being in November 2020. The November meeting
considered : The Treasury Management Outturn 2019-20, the Audit Committee Annual report
to Council for 2019-20 and the revised Internal Audit plan for 2020-21 as detailed above. At
its January 2021 meeting the Committee considered the Treasury Management mid year
report and a review of the Treasury Management Strategy. A final meeting for the year took
place in February 2021 to consider the Final Accounts 2019-20 and the external audit
completion report.

As stated above only limited Internal Audit work was undertaken in both 2019-20 and 2020-21.
This lack of assurance work does not appear to have led to much challenge or discussion by
the Audit Committee.

There is no evidence that the Internal Audit team provide the Audit Committee with follow up
progress on key findings or recommendations. A key finding from the TIAA Housing review
was that the system introduced to manage the properties acquired by the Council to offer
emergency housing is not currently reconciled to the Council’s financial information system.
At the time management stated that a review of Social Lettings Agency working practices
was underway, to incorporate the recommendations of the report.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

This was due to be completed by December 2020 but the outcome of this work has not been
reported to or followed up by the Audit Committee.

The Council has not had an independent assessment of its Internal Audit arrangements
against Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS require an independent
assessment every five years.

As a result of the limited number of audits planned and completed, and the lack of
independent assessment of Internal Audit arrangements against PSAIS we have concluded
that officers have not been sufficiently held to account and that this is a significant
weakness in arrangements. We have raised a key recommendation in this respect
(Recommendation 2).

Internal control - Financial Statements

In our statutory audit of the financial statement for both the 2018-19 and 2019-20 years we
encountered the following issues which we have concluded are indicative of weaknesses in
the control environment around core financial systems and the production of financial
statements which have an adequate and traceable audit trail:

- Delays in production of working papers to support the financial statements. And the
working papers and populations provided were not sufficiently clear and often were
difficult to reconcile easily to the General Ledger and financial statements;

- Reports and listings from sub-ledgers and other accounting sub-systems often had not
been regularly/clearly reconciled to the General Ledger;

- Debtor and creditor ledgers appeared to contain older balances which had not been
fully reviewed;

- The Council made significant/material changes to the financial statements from the
initial draft provided, and during our audit our team also identified a high level of
misstatement, classification and disclosure issues in the statements

In our Audit Findings Report 2018-19 we highlighted 5 control recommendations. When we
revisited these during the 2019-20 we were not satisfied these had been adequately
followed up and implemented. We made 3 further control recommendations in the Audit
Findings Report 2019-20. It isn’t clear that these recommendations had been followed up by
the Audit Committee.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 17



Governance

These issues have been a significant contributory factor in the audits for 2018/19 and
2019/20 both taking longer than would otherwise be expected.

In mitigation of the points made above, we note that:

- Financial statements for the year 2019/20, and 2020/21 were published in line with the
statutory timetable, and changes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
statement ,in which users would primarily be interested, was not significantly changed
between draft and audited versions. Therefore reasonably accurate income and
expenditure information was available to users in the form of draft statements ahead
of the audit being completed.

- Audit misstatements identified in the audit were not individually or cumulatively
material.

- The financial statements audit for 2020/21 is still ongoing so we are as yet unable to
o fully conclude on whether the issues on page 19 are still persisting to a level which
) would continue to delay audit processes.
Q

Therefore, we do not currently view this has being a significant weakness in arrangements
as the core income and expenditure information reported was reasonably accurate. We

~ have raised an improvement recommendation in respect of this issue (Recommendation
10). However, our view is that should the issues above continue to similarly persist in the
2020/21 and 2021/22 audit to a similar or greater extent (particularly if material
misstatements were to be detected during those audits) this could be concluded to be a
significant weakness in arrangements in future periods if it is clear that control
recommendations have not been followed up appropriately.

Monitoring Standards

The Council has constituted a Standards Committee to promote and monitor compliance
with the Members' Code of Conduct. The Committee has the power to deal with
complaints regarding conduct and to impose sanctions. The Composition of the
Committee includes two independent persons, which is good practice. There is evidence of
an appropriate culture within the Council to prevent and detect fraud and corruption,
with the relevant policies in place. In 2020-21 the Committee considered complaints
against two members, one complaint was upheld and the member required to undergo
further training.

An Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy and Strategy is in place which also references the
whistleblowing policy and anti-money laundering procedures. It is not clear when this
strategy was last updated. Although we have not identified any significant weaknesses
with this strategy we have raised an improvement recommendation in this respect
(recommendation 11).

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Codes of conduct are in place for both Members and officers and these include the policies
relating to declarations of interest and gifts and hospitality. The Financial Procedures Rules
also contain provisions for declaration of Conflicts of Interests specific to contracts for
purchase of goods and services.

Member declarations of interest are available on the Council’s website. There were no
declarations of gifts and hospitality made by Members during the year. The Code of
Conduct contains details of the gifts and hospitality policy. An email address is provided for
sending through reports of gifts via a pro-forma. There is evidence of a number of low level
gifts being reported by officers during the year.

The Council has a range of officers who are responsible for ensuring and monitoring
compliance with statutory standards, such as the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151
Officer who both sit on the Council’s leadership team.

We have not identified any significant weaknesses with regard to the Council’s
arrangements for ensuring adherence to laws and regulations or ethical standards.

Budgetary control 2020-21

We have considered the Council’s processes for monitoring the 2020-21 budget during what
was a difficult year to accurately forecast costs and income due to the effects of the
pandemic, periods of lockdown, and incremental announcements of government funding.

Under the Council’s Financial Rules Chief Officers are required to ensure that budgetary
control is maintained within their Directorates and there is a named Budget Manager for
each cost-centre. Budget responsibility is aligned with the decision-making that commits the
expenditure on that budget, so that Budget Managers are accountable only for income and
expenditure that they can control. Performance levels/levels of service are monitored in
conjunction with the budget and necessary action is taken to align service outputs and
budget revenue position.

We have not identified any significant weaknesses with regard to the Council’s
arrangements for budgetary control.

Conclusion

Overall, we consider that there is a significant weakness in the Council’s governance
arrangements in respect to the depth and coverage of Internal Audit. We have made a key
recommendation in this respect. We have also made three improvement recommendations in
other areas of governance to strengthen existing arrangements.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 18



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Governance

Recommendation 8 Recommendation 9

recommendation  The Council’s overall Risk Management Strategy and Risk Appetite should be Risks within the Council’s Corporate risk register should be mapped to corporate priorities

reviewed. and the methodology for assessing and scoring risks included in the Risk Management
Strategy.
Why/impact It is important that the Council considers its overall strategy and risk Mapping risks to corporate priorities would ensure that their potential impact on the
o appetite on a regular basis. corporate plan is understood and only key risks are reported to Members.
jabl
Q
(DSummary findings The Council’s Risk Management strategy and risk appetite has not been The risk registers reported to Members include a description of the risk, mitigating actions,
N reviewed since 2009. and a RAG rated risk score derived from the severity and likelihood of the risk occurring.
(@) Risks are assigned to named officers and contain a narrative on the current position. Risks
are not mapped to corporate priorities. Risk updates to members are generally provided
verbally.
Management Accepted. The Audit Committee identified a need for more recent Risk Accepted - virtually already completely discharged. The Audit Committee has received risk
comment Management Training and this was successfully delivered in 2021 to coincide management reports in accordance with the Council’s Risk Management Policy and the

with the roll-out of the new Risk management system. This systemis online,  highest risks always brought to their attention in the covering report both for the Strategic

facilitates ‘drill down’ and is equipped with ‘dashboard’ reporting’ so whilst  Risk Register and Operational Risk Register. Dashboard reporting was demonstrated to

our Risk Management processes are robust, the Council’s overall Risk Councillors at a training session on 2 June 2021 and the whole purpose of this was show the

Management Strategy and Risk Appetite should be reviewed. high level risks, open risks, risks by service area etc. The new Risk Management system
covers all of the above criteria and more except mapping risks to Corporate priorities. This
will be immediately addressed.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 19



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Governance

Recommendation

abed

Why/impact

9¢

Summary findings

Management
comment

Recommendation 10 Recommendation 11

The Council should ensure that weaknesses and control recommendations The Council’s Fraud Risk Management Strategy should be reviewed.
issued as a result of the financial statements audit are implemented in order

to strengthen core financial systems, and particularly the processes for the

production of robust and accurate financial statements underpinned by

good quality and timely audit working papers. The Audit Committee should

follow-up/monitor recommendations made as a result of the financial

statements audit.

The Council has a responsibility to establish a robust control environment It is important that the Council considers its overall fraud strategy and regular updates this
around core financial systems and the production of accurate financial to reflect new or emerging risks.

statement which present a true and fair financial position to users of the

statements.

Good quality, timely audit working papers will contribute to a timely and
efficient audit.

We encountered a number of issues during the financial statements audits ~ There is no evidence that the Council’s Fraud Risk Management Strategy has been regularly
for 2018-19 and 2019-20 which were indicative of weaknesses in the control reviewed.

environment around core financial systems and the production of financial

statements/working papers. Recommendations made as a result of the

audits were not fully implemented and were not monitored/followed up by

the Audit Committee.

Financial Statements were adjusted as part of the Audit process for 2019/20, Accepted. The Council’s Fraud Risk Management Strategy will be formally reviewed and
and accepted the recommendations as part of that process. This was updated and communicated to all councillors and staff. However, whilst the main document
improved for the following financial years, which should be noted as part of  has not been reviewed for several years, we do review our arrangements each year and

the current 2020/21 and 2021/22 audits. The External Audit team was also not report those in the Annual Governance Statement. The Internal Audit team comprises of 2
consistent throughout the process of the 2019/20 audit and this contributed  professionally qualified Investigators and 1experienced Investigator.

to issues with understanding of working papers and query resolution.

range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 20



Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

%

We considered how the Council:

* responded to the changes required
as a result of Covid-19

g * uses financial and performance

(e} information to assess performance
D
N
~

to identify areas for improvement

* evaluates the services it provides to
assess performance and identify
areas for improvement

* ensures it delivers its role within
significant partnerships, engages
with stakeholders, monitors
performance against expectations
and ensures action is taken where
necessary to improve

* ensures that it commissions or
procures services in accordance
with relevant legislation,
professional standards and
internal policies, and assesses
whether it is realising the expected
benefits.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

COVID-19 arrangements

During 2020-21 the Section 151 Officer continually assessed the impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s long-term financial viability and
provided regular updates to Members as part of the standard financial reporting to members. The Council also provided the necessary
monthly returns to central government and used this information to inform its budget monitoring. The Council is able to identify directly
attributable Covid-19 impacts for some income streams such as business rates, parking and leisure, it is not able to identify the Covid-19
related impact indirectly attributable for other income such as planning. It is important for the Council to get an understanding of the
exceptional non-recurring nature of these variances to budget so that it can more accurately assess the financial impact of Covid-19 for
the future. We have made an improvement recommendation with regard to this (recommendation 12).

Performance management

The Council’s Corporate Plan was approved in February 2020 and sets out the five key priority themes:

. Tackling poverty, homelessness and ensuring quality housing;

. Keeping Hastings clean and safe;

. Make best use of our land, buildings, public realm and cultural assets;

. Minimising environment and climate harm in all that we do;

. Delivery of our major regeneration schemes; and ensuring the council can survive and thrive into the future.

Key Performance Indicators (KPls) relating to the delivery of services and the Council’s Corporate Strategy are reported quarterly to the
Council’s Senior Management Team (SMT) and then to members through the Quarterly Performance Reports. The Council moved to an
online reporting portal from December 2020 which has significantly improved the level of reporting in this respect.

Managers are responsible for their own KPI data and there are few Data Quality checks. There has been no Internal Audit of Key
Performance Indicators or Data Quality. A Data Quality Policy is not in place. We have made improvement recommendations in these
respects (recommendation 13).

Performance reports also include financial reports however these are reported independently making it difficult to align financial decisions
with operational delivery and performance overall against the Corporate Priorities. We have also noted that many of the financial
updates are presented verbally rather than in writing. Written reports have also been presented late due to long term sickness and
difficulties with recruitment in the Finance Team. These reports have not been as regular as they should have been, the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee received no financial report in the first half of 2020-21. This does not allow for members to identify areas for debate or
provide effective scrutiny.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 21



Improving economy, efficiency and

effectiveness

The financial information provided to members is sometimes confusing and potentially
misleading. The Annual Budget report includes an Appendix K which sets out the PIER
savings identified for the next year as well as a column with PIER savings for the
current year. We were initially advised that this latter column represented the actual
PIER savings achieved in that year. We were then advised that this represented
additional savings identified during the year. We were then advised to exclude that
column from our review as the figures could be misleading.

As a further example the Council has always revised its budget in February each year
ne month before the year end) and then report any variance against the revised
dget. This had the effect of minimising reported variances. Officers have advised
at the Council will no longer report in this way as this approach was unhelpful and

(Pould be misleading.

M) improvement recommendation has been made with regard to financial
rformance reporting (recommendation 14).

Savings are monitored in-year through the budget monitoring process with variances
identified through projected under or over-spend against budget. Performance in this
respect is not explicitly reported until the annual budget setting process. An
improvement recommendation has been made in this respect (recommendation 15).

For Capital projects the initial proposals are scrutinised for potential Return on
Investment (ROI) however these are not followed through with monitoring of actual ROI
post implementation. An improvement recommendation has been made in this respect
(recommendation 16).

Our review of the Council’s arrangements for managing performance has not
identified any significant weakness.

Benchmarking

Benchmarking is an effective tool that enables an organisation to compare and
analyse its performance with others. It can provide a basis for collaboration and
identify areas for improvement.

We have identified that the Council does not widely undertake performance
benchmarking. It is seen as having limited value due to definitions and not comparing
like with like. There is evidence of limited benchmarking by the Transformation Team as

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

well as for areas such as planning. Informal discussions do take place with ross-Sussex
groups including Finance Officers Group and Revenues Groups. We have raised an
improvement recommendation in this respect (recommendation 17).

Our benchmarking review of the CIPFA Financial Resilience Index highlighted Fees and
Charges to Service Expenditure Ratio as a high-risk area. This indicator shows the
proportion of fees and charges against the Council's total expenditure and for the
Council this is 3.5% which is extremely low compared to its statistical nearest
neighbour group. ltis the lowest ratio by some margin within that group with Great
Yarmouth and Preston being the next lowest at 14.55% and 14.69% respectively.

This is something the Council should consider reviewing given its current financial
situation. We have raised an improvement recommendation in this respect
(recommendation 18).

Significant partnerships

The Council works with a variety of partners to deliver corporate objectives and
priorities for the local area. There are many examples of strategies developed at
partnership level being translated into actions for the Council to deliver, and evidence
that partnership work is overseen by the Council. Separate entries on the Corporate
Risk Register confirm risks are being assessed for such partnerships.

The Financial Rules set out responsibilities for the Chief Finance Officer, Directors and
Chief Legal Officers in the management of Partnerships.

The Council has a number of strategic Partnerships which have individual account
managers, performance is ultimately scrutinised by the Council’s Scruting Committee.

The most significant joint delivery/partnerships the Council has are:
+  Procurement Hub (hosted by Wealden District Council);

+ Financial system (with Rother District Council);

+  Grounds Maintenance (with Rother District Council);

*  Waste Management (Biffa) jointly managed although separate contracts. Managed
by Wealden and management fee paid)

The Council has a number of key performance indicators underwritten by Service Level

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022

22



Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

Agreements (SLAs)however online performance management portal doesn’t, as yet,
include contract management. We have raised an improvement recommendation in
this respect (recommendation 19).

An External Overview & Scrutiny Committee monitors the performance of key partners.
The Committee received a number of such reports which were reviewed and
challenged by the Committee.

The Council belongs to Procurement Hub a key Partnership hosted by Wealden

Borough Council. The constitution Financial Rules set out a Contract Policy to ensure

works, goods and services are obtained honestly and openly; are appropriate for the
Tyrpose for which they are obtained; offer the most advantageous balance of quality
Qnd price and that are consistent with the policies of the Council. These rules also
%pplg to use of consultants.

ur work has not identified any areas of significant weakness regarding how the
uncil works with its strategic partners.

Conclusion

Overall, we have concluded that there is no significant weakness in the arrangements
for improving the way the Council delivers its services. We have made key
recommendations which are set out on the following pages.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 23



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

{3t ) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

Recommendation 12 Recommendation 13

recommendation  The Council should identify recurring and non-recurring variances to budget The Council should undertake an Internal Audit of its Key Performance Indicators and Data

arising specifically as a result of Covid-19. Quality and consider the need to create a Data Quality Policy.

Why/impact It is important for the Council to get an understanding of the exceptional Good data is integral to performance management and so needs to be accurate, timely and

y/1mp p 9 9 p 9 p g Y
my) non-recurring nature of these variances to budget so that it can more complete
Q accurately assess the financial impact of Covid-19 for the future.
Q
CDSummqu findings The Council is able to identify directly attributable Covid-19 impacts for Data is obtained from service heads and collated by performance officer. A Sense check is
w some income streams such as business rates, parking and leisure, it is not applied by Performance Officer and SMT but underlying data not validated.
o able to identify the Covid-19 related impact indirectly attributable for other

income such as planning.

Management As part of the variance analysis of financial performance, reasons are Agreed. An Internal Audit of Key Performance Indicators will be carried out during quarter 1,

comment identified through that process. At time of writing Covid-19 impact is 2023/2024 before publication of the full year’s performance data

decreasing and is not considered a high ongoing risk at this stage, although
services are considering how they provide services in the wake of changes as
a result of Covid-19.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 24



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

{o¥: ) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

%

recommendation

Why/impact

abed

Summary findings

1€

Management
comment

Recommendation 14

Financial reporting arrangements should be reviewed to ensure that:
financial reporting is integrated with performance against the Corporate
Priorities. Financial reporting should be timely, accurate and clear.

There should be a clear line of site between the financial reporting and
performance against the Council’s Corporate Priorities. Inaccurate or
confusing information could impact on the ability for the Council to identify
areas for improvement.

Financial reporting is provided separately from performance monitoring
making it difficult to align financial decisions with operational delivery and
performance overall against the Corporate Priorities.

Financial reporting is discussed at Overview and Scrutiny meetings but
currently two separate reports. Process to combine the reports is underway
with the aim of combining in the future.

Recommendation 15

The Council should review its reporting of savings to include regular monitoring of actual v
budgeted savings

It is important that the Council carefully monitors its outturn against budget for anticipated
savings.

Savings are monitored in-year through the budget monitoring process with variances
identified through projected under or over-spend against budget. Performance in this
respect is not explicitly reported until the annual budget setting process.

Already noted in a previous recommendation and this will be included in the regular financial
reporting moving forwards.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 25



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

{o¥: ) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

)
Recommendation 16 Recommendation 17
recommendation  The Council should review its monitoring arrangements including ongoing The Council should review its Income and Fees strategy to identify areas where fees and
Return on Investment of capital projects. income can be increased.
Why/impact It is important that the Council carefully monitors its outturn against budget  This is something the Council should consider reviewing given its current financial situation.
n) including income and expenditure for capital investments.

QSummary findings For Capital projects the initial proposals are scrutinised for potential Return  Our benchmarking review of the CIPFA Financial Resilience Index highlighted Fees and
@ on Investment (ROI) however these are not followed through with monitoring  Charges to Service Expenditure Ratio as a high risk area. This indicator shows the proportion
w of actual ROI post implementation. of fees and charges against the Council's total expenditure and for the Council this is 3.5%
N which is extremely low compared to its statistical nearest neighbour group. Indeed it is the
lowest ratio by some margin within that group with Great Yarmouth and Preston being the
next lowest at 14.55% and 14.69% respectively.

Management Full project reviews currently underway for existing projects to analyse Already noted in a previous response, Fees and Charges increased as part of Budget setting
comment financial viability and all future proposals are fully challenged and discussions 2023/24.

scrutinised before a decision is made. Finance colleagues are embedded in

discussions with operational colleagues to ensure that all projects have been

fully financially reviewed prior to any decision making, with all costs

(including MRP impact) have been included over the life of the project

proposal.

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 26



Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

{3t ) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

Recommendation 18 Recommendation 19

recommendation  The Council should routinely benchmark service costs against statistically ~ The Council should include contract management performance KPIs as part of its overall
similar councils in order to identify areas where efficiencies or savings could online KPI reporting through the online portal.
be achieved.

Why/impact Formal corporate benchmarking of service costs can be used to inform It is important that there is visibility of the performance of key contractors and partners
future budget rounds and service redesign. This will be particularly relevant

n ) as the Council seeks to implement a more strategic approach to generating
Q savings to balance the budget.
Q
CDSummqrg findings The Council does undertake performance benchmarking for some key The Council has a number of key performance indicators underwritten by Service Level
w service areas. There is however no formal corporate benchmarking of costs.  Agreements (SLAs)however the Council’s online performance management portal doesn’t, as
w Our benchmarking identified Fees and Income as an area of focus for the yet, include contract management.
Council.
Management Noted. Noted.
comment

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| Final December 2022 27



Opinion on the financial statements

Audit opinion on the financial

statements

o
Q The audit of the 2020-21 financial statements audit is

ongoing. We are targeting completion of the audit
prior to Christmas 2022. However this is dependent on

W the efficient turnaround of audit queries, and the
quality of evidence/explanation provided.

Findings from the audit of the financial statements can
have an impact on value for money considerations,
particularly around governance. Therefore, this report
is presented as an Interim Annual Auditor Report and
will be finalized and updated where appropriate on
completion of the financial statements audit.

Audit Findings Report

Our Audit Findings Report, will be reported to the
Council’s Audit Committee on completion of the audit.

Whole of Government Accounts

To support the audit of the Whole of Government
Accounts (WGA), we are required to review and report
on the WGA return prepared by the Council. This work
includes performing specified procedures under group
audit instructions issued by the National Audit Office.

These instructions have yet to be issued and as such
we cannot complete this work or formally certify the
o aclosure of our audit.

Grant Thornton provides an
independent opinion on whether the
accounts are:

¢ True and fair,

* Prepared in accordance with relevant accounting
standards,

* Prepared in accordance with relevant UK legislation.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022

28



Appendices



Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Council

Role of the Chief Financial Officer
(or equivalent):

* Preparation of the statement of
accounts

*  Assessing the Council’s ability to
continue to operate as a going
concern

9g abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money
are accountable for their stewardship of the
resources entrusted to them. They should
account properly for their use of resources
and manage themselves well so that the
public can be confident.

Financial statements are the main way in
which local public bodies account for how
they use their resources. Local public bodies
are required to prepare and publish
financial statements setting out their
financial performance for the year. To do
this, bodies need to maintain proper
accounting records and ensure they have
effective systems of internal control.

All local public bodies are responsible for
putting in place proper arrangements to
secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness from their resources. This
includes taking properly informed decisions
and managing key operational and
financial risks so that they can deliver their
objectives and safeguard public money.
Local public bodies report on their
arrangements, and the effectiveness with
which the arrangements are operating, as
part of their annual governance statement.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent] is
responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Chief Financial
Officer (or equivalent] determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent)
or equivalent is required to prepare the
financial statements in accordance with
proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accounting in the United Kingdom.
In preparing the financial statements, the
Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) is
responsible for assessing the Council’s
ability to continue as a going concern and
use the going concern basis of accounting
unless there is an intention by government
that the services provided by the Council
will no longer be provided.

The Council is responsible for putting in
place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of
these arrangements.

Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022

30



Appendix B - Risks of significant
weaknesses - our procedures and findings

As part of our planning and assessment work, we considered whether there were any risks of significant weakness in the
Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources that we needed to perform
further procedures on. The risks we identified are detailed in the table below, along with the further procedures we performed,
our findings and the final outcome of our work:

Risk of significant Procedures undertaken Findings Outcome
weakness
“Bnancial sustainability was identified No additional procedures undertaken. Financial Significant weaknesses identified One Key and Five improvement
Qs a potential significant weakness at  sustainability was assessed through the standard recommendations raised.
e planning stage, see pages 8 to 17 procedures including reviewing the budget setting
or more details. process and medium-term financial plan.
\l
Governance was not identified as a No additional procedures undertaken Significant weaknesses identified One key and four improvement
potential significant weakness at the recommendations raised.

planning stage , see pages 18 to 24 for
more details.

Improving economy, efficiency and No additional procedures undertaken No Significant weaknesses identified Eight improvement
effectiveness was not identified as a recommendations raised.
potential significant weakness, see

pages 25 to 35 for more details

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 31



Appendix C - An explanatory note on
recommendations

A range of different recommendations can be raised by the Council’s auditors as follows:

Type of
recommendation  Background Raised within this report  Page reference
Written recommendations to the Council under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and No N/A
o Accountability Act 2014. A recommendation under schedule 7 requires the Council to discuss and
respond publicly to the report.
gtotutorg
D
W
00]
The NAO Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses as Yes Pages 5 and 6
part of their arrangements to secure value for money they should make recommendations setting
out the actions that should be taken by the Council. We have defined these recommendations as
Key ‘key recommendations’.
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the Council, Yes Pages 13-17
but are not a result of identifying significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements. Pages 21- 24
Pages 28- 35
Improvement

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 32



Appendix D - Use of formal auditor’s
powers

We bring the following matters to your attention:

Statutory recommendations

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written ~ We have not issued any statutory recommendations.
recommendations to the audited body which need to be considered by the body and

responded to publicly

Public interest report
Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the powerto ~ We have not issued a public interest report.
ake a report if they consider a matter is sufficiently important to be brought to the attention
f the audited body or the public as a matter of urgency, including matters which may
(cxlready be known to the public, but where it is in the public interest for the auditor to publish
(Dtheir independent view.

%pplication to the Court We have not made an application to the Courts.
nder Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item

of account is contrary to law, they may apply to the court for a declaration to that effect.

Advisory notice
Under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an We have not issued any advisory notices.
advisory notice if the auditor thinks that the authority or an officer of the authority:
* is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority
incurring unlawful expenditure,
* is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its
conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency, or
* is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.

Judicial review

Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an We have not applied for a judicial review.
application for judicial review of a decision of an authority, or of a failure by an authority to

act, which it is reasonable to believe would have an effect on the accounts of that body.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report Final December 2022 33



o abed

o Grant Thornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Agenda Iltem 5

It
_—
Hastings...

Borough Council

Report To: Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 January 2023

Report Title: Grant Thornton Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
Report By: Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer

Key Decision: N

Classification: Open

Purpose of Report

This report provides the Audit Committee with an update on Grant Thornton’s progress in
delivering their responsibilities as our external auditors. The report also provides an update
on emerging national issues and developments and Audit fees.

Recommendation(s)
1. To note the report

Reasons for Recommendations

To provide the Audit Committee with a report on progress in delivering their responsibilities as
our external auditors.

Report Template v30.0 o m diSCIbillty
Page 41 ga_..,:% \Eﬁ conﬁdeﬂ

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



Background

1. The report that can be found at Appendix A contains information on emerging national
issues and developments as well as work progress and the status of key external audit
deliverables.

2. This includes the status of the audit of the Financial Statements for 2020/21 and
2021/22.

3. Itis expected that a senior manager from Grant Thornton will attend the meeting and
present the report in more detail.

Audit Fee Variance

4. The audit fee variance proposed by Grant Thornton is yet to be agreed by officers. We
acknowledge that there will need to be some increase in the fee due to external factors
that were not envisaged when the initial scale fees were set by Public Sector Audit
Appointments (PSAA) Ltd. However, we believe further discussions are required in
relation to the variation fee as there is some disparity between the proposed variation
and what we would have expected.

5.  Forinformation, published fees going forward from 2022/23 can be found at:
https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/11/news-release-publication-of-the-2022-23-fee-scale/

Wards Affected
None
Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) No
Risk Management Yes
Environmental Issues & Climate Change No
Economic/Financial Implications Yes
Human Rights Act No
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No
Legal No
Climate Change No

Additional Information

Appendix A - Hastings Borough Council Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Officer to Contact

Officer: Kit Wheeler, Chief Finance Officer
Kit. Wheeler@hastings.gov.uk

Report Template v30.0 o m diSCIbillty
Page 42 g.a_..,} \EEE conﬁdeﬂ

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER


https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/11/news-release-publication-of-the-2022-23-fee-scale/
mailto:Kit.Wheeler@hastings.gov.uk

o Grant Thornton

Hastings Borough Council Audit Progress
Report and Sector Update

Year ending 31 March 2022

_@ January 2023
jab)
«Q
)
IS
w




vt abed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Contents

Section

Introduction

Progress at January 2023
Audit Deliverables

Sector Update

Page

45

7-1

Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the
matters which have come to our attention,
which we believe need to be reported to you
as part of our audit planning process. Itis
not a comprehensive record of all the
relevant matters, which may be subject to
change, and in particular we cannot be held
responsible to you for reporting all of the
risks which may affect the Authority or all
weaknesses in your internal controls. This
report has been prepared solely for your
benefit and should not be quoted in whole or
in part without our prior written consent. We
do not accept any responsibility for any loss
occasioned to any third party acting, or
refraining from acting on the basis of the
content of this report, as this report was not
prepared for, nor intended for, any other
purpose.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in England and Wales:
No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury
Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is
available from our registered office. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant
Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the
member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms.
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of,
and do not obligate, one another and are not
liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



Introduction

Your key Grant Thornton
team members are:

Darren Wells

Engagement Lead

T 01293 654120

E Darren.J.Wells@uk.gt.com

Andy Conlan

Engagement Manager

T 02077 282492

E Andy.N.Conlan@uk.gt.com

Gy obed

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in
delivering our responsibilities as your external auditors.

The paper also includes:

* asummary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as
a local authority; and

* includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the
Committee may wish to consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal
questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we
have a section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of
our publications https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with
Grant Thornton to receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please
contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement Manager.


mailto:Darren.J.Wells@uk.gt.com
mailto:Andy.N.Conlan@uk.gt.com
https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/services/public-sector-services/

Progress at January 2023

Financial Statements Audit
2020/21 year

At the last Audit Committee meeting in October we set out that we had
identified a further period from October onwards to restart audit work
following initial delays largely due to quality of working papers, some delays
in provision of information and also issues with the clarity/quality of
supporting documentation for samples/queries.

We have continued to work closely with your finance team in completing the
audit work. The majority of work is now completed and we expect full
completion of fieldwork by the end of January, subject to senior management
review of the audit file which could potentially raise further queries.

Subsequent to this we will plan to present an Audit Findings Report at the
March Audit Committee meeting, and after this final reporting of findings we
~“gyould expect to be able to sign our auditor’s report.

%021/22 year

Be plan to start our planning work for the 2021/22 audit at the end of

nuary with a view to presenting an Audit Plan at the March Audit
Committee meeting. This would allow us to commence fieldwork at a date
subsequent to this in agreement between your finance team and the audit
team (subject to team availability).

Accounting for infrastructure

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2021/22 requires infrastructure to be reported in the Balance Sheet at historic
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and that where there is
'enhancement’ to the assets, that the replaced components are derecognised.
Where authorities are not fully compliant with these requirements, there may
be a risk of material misstatement.

Many authorities do not possess the records to be able to fully comply with
the requirements. Following extensive consultation and discussions with
interested parties DLUHC has laid before Parliament a Statutory Instrument
by 30 November 2022 introducing a statutory override from 25 December
2022 which simplifies accounting for infrastructure assets until the 2024/25

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

financial year, following which the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting is expected to introduce longer term financial
reporting requirements in this area.

In the 2019/20 year we were able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit
evidence for the authority’s infrastructure assets to gain assurance that the
assets were not materially misstated, and we expect to be able to do the
same for the 2020/21 and 2021/22 financial year audits. For those year’s
financial statements the Authority will need to revise the presentation of
infrastructure assets and disclosures around these assets to ensure they
are in line with the statutory override.

Value for Money

The new Code of Audit Practice (the “Code”] came into force on 1 April 2020
for audit years 2020/21 and onwards. The most significant change under
the new Code was the introduction of an Auditor’s Annual Report,
containing a commentary on arrangements to secure value for money and
any associated recommendations, if required.

The new approach is more complex, more involved and is planned to make
more impact. Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for relevant
authorities other than local NHS bodies auditors are required to issue our
Auditor’s Annual Report no later than 30 September or, where this is not
possible, issue an audit letter setting out the reasons for delay.

As a result of the ongoing pandemic, and the impact it has had on both
preparers and auditors of accounts to complete their work as quickly as
would normally be expected, the National Audit Office has updated its
guidance to auditors to allow us to postpone completion of our work on
arrangements to secure value for money and focus our resources firstly on
the delivery of our opinions on the financial statements. This is intended to
help ensure as many as possible could be issued in line with national
timetables and legislation. The extended deadline for the issue of the
Auditor's Annual Report is now no more than three months after the date of
the opinion on the financial statements. Although the financial statements
audit is ongoing, we have completed our value for money work alongside
the audit utilising our Specialist Value for Money team, and we have
presented our final Auditor’s Annual Report at the January 2023 meeting.



Commercial in confidence

Progress at January 2023(cont.)

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We certify the Authority’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with procedures agreed with the Department for Work and
Pensions (DwP). The certification work for the 2021/22 began in November 2022. The deadline is the 31 January 2023 (noting this was
extended to the 28 February for the 2020/21 claim). Work is ongoing, and we expect to be able to certify the claim for the deadline date.

Meetings
We continue to meet with Finance Officers regularly as part of our regular liaison meetings and continue to be in discussions with finance
staff regarding emerging developments to promote the efficient delivery of the audit.

Sector Updates and workshops

We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members and publications to support the Authority. We are planning
Accounts Workshop in January and February 2023 which your officers will be invited to, where we highlighted financial reporting
requirements for local authority accounts and gave insight into elements of the audit approach.

We also provide

the opportunity to access support from experienced technical colleagues who attend the ICAEW Public Sector Financial Reporting Panel,
and ICAEW Public Sector Audit Panel. This means you will be at the forefront of accounting developments. Through this relationship we
also ensure that communication works both ways and feed issues up from our LG clients

/v abed

insight from our regular meetings with CIPFA and NAO where we discuss emerging developments. We will also raise any areas of concern
that you have over policy, procedure, or regulation with your regulators.

- technical and sector updates for the Audit Committee.

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the Authority are set out in our Sector Update section of this report.

Audit Fees
We have submitted a proposed fee variance for the 2019/20 audit to your Chief Finance Officer in October 2022. This is still under discussion.

We will submit a fee variance for the 2020/21 audit when we have completed our fieldwork.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 5



Commercial in confidence

Audit Deliverables

2020/21Deliverables Planned Date Status

Audit Plan Nov 2021 Completed

We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed approach in
order to give an opinion on the Authority’s 2020/21 financial statements and to report on the Authority's value for
money arrangements in the Auditor's Annual Report

Audit Findings Report March 2023 Not yet due

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the Audit Committee. Date to be confirmed, but having proposed a
date to restart the audit in October 2022, we would anticipate having an Audit Findings Report for the end of
November 2022.

Auditors Report TBC Not yet due

;_,q'his includes the opinion on your financial statements. Date to be confirmed- this is subject to the speed of

urnaround of audit queries/samples, the clarity of explanations and quality of documentation/evidence
(o d of audit queries/samples, the clarity of explanati d quality of d tation/evid
J>|orovided.

Quditor’s Annual Report January 2023 Not yet due

This report communicates the key outputs of the audit, including our commentary on the Authority's value for
money arrangements.

2021/22 Audit-related Deliverables and Audit Deliverables Planned Date Status

Housing Benefit Subsidy - certification Jan-Feb 2023 Not yet due
This is the report we submit to Department of Work and Pensions based upon the mandated agreed upon
procedures we are required to perform.

Audit Plan March 2023 Not yet due

We are required to issue a detailed audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed approach in order
to give an opinion on the Authority’s 2021/22 financial statements and to report on the Authority's value for
money arrangements in the Auditor's Annual Report

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 6



Sector Update

Authorities continue to try to achieve greater efficiency in
the delivery of public services, whilst facing the challenges
to address rising demand, ongoing budget pressures and
social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date
summary of emerging national issues and developments to
“Slipport you. We cover areas which may have an impact on
(c§our organisation, the wider local government sector and
(Ehe public sector as a whole. Links are provided to the
Rletailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and
nd out more.

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake
research on service and technical issues. We will bring you
the latest research publications in this update. We also
include areas of potential interest to start conversations
within the organisation and with audit committee members,
as well as any accounting and regulatory updates.

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

Commercial in confidence

e Grant Thornton Publications

* Insights from local government sector
specialists

* Reports of interest

¢ Accounting and regulatory updates

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and
local government sections on the Grant Thornton website by
clicking on the logos below:

Local

Public Sector
government



http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/

Commercial in confidence

Audit Market Developments

Financial Reporting Council Report On The Quality Of Local Audit

In late October 2022 the Financial Reporting Council (FRC] published
its inspection findings into the quality of major local body audits in England,
which includes large health and local government bodies.

The Quality Assurance Department (QAD) of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) inspects a sample of local
audits that do not meet the definition of a ‘major’ local audit and the FRC’s
report also includes a summary of their findings.

e FRC reported that 71% of Grant Thornton audits inspected (7 in total)
Qvere assessed as either good or limited improvements required.

Q

Mhis is a pleasing result and reflects on our significant investment in audit
(uality over recent years. The positive direction of travel over the past five
Qears is illustrated below:

Our assessment of the quality of financial statement audits reviewed

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

2020721 | 2019220 !

2021/22

M Good or limited improvements required
B Improvements required
Significant improvements required

2018/19

2017/18

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The FRC also inspected our work on VfM arrangements at four bodies.

It is pleasing to note that all of these inspections were assessed as requiring
no more than limited improvements (which is the same as the previous
year).

As far as the ICAEW are concerned, overall, the audit work reviewed was
found to be of a good standard.

Seven of the eight files reviewed (88%) were either ‘good’ or ‘generally
acceptable’, but one file ‘required improvement’.

The ICAEW identified one of our files as requiring ‘Improvement’ - but it
should be noted that this was a 2019-20 file and therefore the learnings from
prior years’ review could not have been taken into account, an issue
recognised by the ICAEW in their report to us.

The ICAEW found that our VIM work was good on each of the files reviewed,
and they did not identify any issues with this aspect of the audit teams’
work.

Whilst are pleased with our continuing improvement journey, we continue to
invest in audit quality to ensure that the required standards are met.

The full report can be found here.

Financial Reporting Council



https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf
https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/aeb9149f-7bf9-45f2-802d-ca7b055b457e/Major-Local-Audits.pdf

Commercial in confidence

Audit Market Developments (continued)

Local Government External Audit Procurement

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has recently announced the
outcome of its national procurement of audit services across the Local
Government sector.

This exercise covers the audits from 2023/24 to 2027/28 and covers the 470
local government, police and fire bodies (99% of eligible local bodies) that
opted into the national scheme.

We are delighted to have been reappointed as the largest supplier of local
vernment audit. The public sector has played a significant role within the
rm for over 30 years and we remain committed to the success of the
(Qector.

@D
ur UK Public Sector Assurance (PSA) team employs 440 people, including
Key Audit Partners and specialists in financial reporting, audit quality,
and value for money.

The team is dedicated to public audit work in local government and the
NHS, with contracts with PSAA, Audit Scotland and over 100 health bodies.
The Public Sector Assurance team is a regular commentator on issues
facing the sector and oversees the firm’s thought leadership, such as its
series of publications on grants and public interest reports.

Mark Stocks, lead Partner for PSA at Grant Thornton, said ‘This is a very
welcome outcome and reflects our previous delivery as well as our ongoing
commitment to invest in the public sector.’

Further information can be found here

Public Sector

Audit Appointments

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP. 9


https://www.psaa.co.uk/2022/10/press-release-psaa-announcement-of-procurement-outcome/

Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton - Nearly 60 councils at risk of
‘running out of money’ next year

Grant Thornton has warned that the soaring cost of living combined with
a decade of austerity could see up to a sixth of English councils fully
deplete their reserves in 2023-24 without substantial spending cuts .

Research found that, as a result of higher inflation, councils are expected
to have a cumulative budget deficit of £7.3bn by 2025-26 - an increase
of £4.6bn since forecasts made at the beginning of this year.

Grant Thornton said that although reserves were bolstered by more than
£6bn in 2020-21 due to higher government funding, these balances will
“continue to unwind through the long tail of Covid-19” with close to 60
councils forecast to use all earmarked and unallocated reserves next
year.

2S abed

Without additional income, authorities would need to make savings of
over £125 per person by 2025-26, equal to the average yearly spend on
homelessness, sports and leisure, parks and open spaces, libraries and
waste services.

Phillio Woolley, Head of Public Services Consulting at Grant Thornton,
said: “Local government has faced unprecedented demands and
pressures over the last decade and without action from both central
government and councils, in the face of these inflationary pressures, the
list of authorities in need of exceptional support looks set to grow quickly.

“Our research shows the additional Covid-19 funding, while critical to
support immediate challenges, has not addressed underlying systemic
issues or the precariousness of councils’ financial sustainability in the
face of economic instability.

Q Grant Thornton

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

“Local authorities are also now facing the risk of interest rate
rises, increasing debt financing costs and the real risk of reduced
funding from central government, in response to the current
economic turmoil facing the country. Without committed
intervention from all sides, there is a risk that the sector levels
down instead of up.”

Grant Thornton estimated unitary authorities would have the
largest budget gap (£1.8bn) by 2025-26, but district councils
would have the largest gap compared to net spending at 10.2%.

The firm added that austerity and changing policy demands have
left councils struggling to innovate in their services and prevented
investment in finance and procurement, diminishing the sector’s
ability to tackle medium-term challenges.

Grant Thornton said additional government funding alone will not
lead to improvements, and that councils should focus on
improving governance and developing financial stability plans.

Joanne Pitt, local government policy manager at CIPFA, said:
“With no spending review and no fair funding review, CIPFA
shares Grant Thornton’s concerns about the financial
sustainability of some in the sector.

“While there are actions local authorities can take to strengthen

their own financial resilience, they are facing significant
inflationary pressures and rising demand which makes this hugely

challenging for the sector.”




Commercial in confidence

Audit Committees: Practical Guidance For Local
Authorities And Police - CIPFA

In October CIPFA published this guide, stating “This fully revised and
updated edition takes into account recent legislative changes and
professional developments and supports the 2022 CIPFA Position
Statement. It includes additional guidance and resources to support audit
committee members, and those working with and supporting the
committee’s development.”

CIPFA go on to state “Audit committees are a key component of
governance. Their purpose is to provide an independent and high-level
focus on the adequacy of governance, risk and control arrangements. They
play an important role in supporting leadership teams, elected
representatives, police and crime commissioners and chief constables.

is edition updates CIPFA’s 2018 publication to complement the 2022
ition of the CIPFA Position Statement on audit committees.

%he suite of publications has separate guidance resources for audit
mmittee members in authorities, members of police audit committees,
@d a supplement for those responsible for guiding the committee.

New aspects include legislation changes in Wales and new expectations in
England following the Redmond Review. All authorities and police bodies are
encouraged to use the publication to review and develop their
arrangements in accordance with the Position Statement.

The appendices include suggested terms of reference, a knowledge and
skills framework and effectiveness improvement tools.”

© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

The guide covers a number of key areas for Audit Committees, including:

o

o

o

o

Purpose

Core functions:

Governance, Risk and Control
Accountability and Public Reporting
Assurance and Audit arrangements

Ensuring focus

Independence and accountability

Membership and effectiveness

The guide can be purchased via the CIPFA website:

Audit Committee Guidance: 2022 update | CIPFA

Audit
committees:

practical guidance for
local authorities and police

2022 edition

cipfa.org/



https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2022-edition

G obed

GrantThornton

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2022Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms,
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



%
Il \

‘M Hastings...-

Borough Council

J

Agenda Item No:

Report to: Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 January 2023

Report Title: Treasury Management Mid-Year Report 2022-23

Report By: Simon Jones
Deputy Chief Finance Officer

Purpose of Report

This report advises the Audit Committee of the Treasury Management activities and
performance during the current year. It provides the opportunity to review the Treasury
Management Strategy and make appropriate recommendations to Cabinet and Council
to take account of any issues or concerns that have arisen since approving the strategy
in February 2022.

Recommendation

Audit Committee is asked to recommend the following to the full Council:
1) To note the Mid-Year report.

Reasons for Recommendations

The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires, as a minimum, a mid-year
review of the Treasury Management Strategy and performance. This is intended to
highlight any areas of concern that have arisen since the original strategy was
approved (February 2022). It is a requirement of the Code of Practice that the Mid-year
review is considered by Cabinet, Audit Committee and full Council.

AB
a5 22 W



Background

Capital Strategy

1.

In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy,
(CIPFA), issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. These require
all local authorities to prepare a Capital Strategy which is to provide the following: -

e a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity contribute to the provision of services;

e an overview of how the associated risk is managed,

e The implications for future financial sustainability.

Treasury Management

2.

The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the
year will meet its cash expenditure in combination with funding from reserves. Part of
the treasury management operations ensure this cash flow is adequately planned, with
surplus monies being invested in low-risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity
initially before considering optimising investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing needs of
the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can
meet its capital spending operations. This management of longer-term cash may
involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses,
and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk
or cost objectives.

Accordingly, treasury management is defined as:

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent
with those risks.”

Covid-19 has again highlighted the fundamental requirement for local authorities to
have proper and effective Treasury Management Practices and Policies in place. The
Council was able to sustain its services throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, did not
experienced undue difficulties in managing major cash flows, and retained sufficient
reserves (given government assistance) throughout the period.

Introduction

6.

7.

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (revised 2017) was adopted by
this Council in February 2018.

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:

Page 56 VYA

Page 2 of 24 DAY



10.

11.

e Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities.

e Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives.

¢ Receipt by the full Council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement -
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy -
for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report (stewardship
report) covering activities during the previous year.

¢ Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions.

¢ Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy
and policies to a specific named body. For this Council the delegated body is the
Audit Committee.

This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice
on Treasury Management, and covers the following:

¢ An economic update for the first part of the 2022/23 financial year;

¢ Areview of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy;

e The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the Capital Strategy, and prudential
indicators;

¢ A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2022/23;

¢ A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2022/23;

¢ A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2022/23;

¢ A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2022/23.

The Committee will need to determine whether there are any issues that require
the amendment of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy or Investment
Policy and that they therefore wish to draw to the attention of Council.

The Council has increased its levels of income generation over the last few years and
this has entailed new borrowing over long periods, with consequent risks in terms of
asset valuations, credit worthiness, cash and reserve fund availability. Such risks
cannot be considered in isolation of all the issues facing the Council now and
potentially in the future. The Council strengthened its reserves when taking on these
additional risks and the level of reserves have to date proven more than adequate to
cope with the immediate effects of Covid-19, increased expenditure levels and reduced
income. However, additional cost pressures are being experiences e.g. homelessness,
which will reduce reserves the level of reserves unless additional government funding
is received or the Council takes action to reduce its costs.

The Cabinet will consider a similar mid-year report at their meeting on 3 January 2023
as will full Council.

Page 57 VYA

Pagé 3 of 24 DAY



12.

13.

Economic Update

A short economic update from the Council’s treasury advisors is provided below with
further detail provided at Appendix B:

The second quarter of 2022/23 saw:

e GDP revised upwards in Q1 2022/23 to +0.2% q/q from -0.1%, which means
the UK economy has avoided recession for the time being;

e Signs of economic activity losing momentum as production fell due to rising
energy prices;

e CPlinflation ease to 9.9% y/y in August, having been 9.0% in April, but
domestic price pressures showing little sign of abating in the near-term;

e The unemployment rate fall to a 48-year low of 3.6% due to a large shortfall in
labour supply;

e Bank Rate rise by 100bps over the quarter, taking Bank Rate to 2.25% with
further rises to come;

e Gilt yields surge and sterling fall following the “fiscal event” of the new Prime
Minister and Chancellor on 23rd September.

Interest rate forecasts

14.

15.

16.

17.

The Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisors and part of their service
is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The PWLB rate forecasts
below are based on the Certainty Rate (the standard rate minus 20 bps) which has
been accessible to most authorities since 1st November 2012.

The latest forecast on 27th September sets out a view that both short and long-dated
interest rates will be elevated for some little while, as the Bank of England seeks to
squeeze inflation out of the economy, whilst the government is providing a package of
fiscal loosening to try and protect households and businesses from the ravages of
ultra-high wholesale gas and electricity prices.

The increase in PWLB rates reflects a broad sell-off in sovereign bonds internationally
but more so the disaffection investors have with the position of the UK public finances
after September’s “fiscal event”. To that end, the MPC has tightened short-term
interest rates with a view to trying to slow the economy sufficiently to keep the
secondary effects of inflation — as measured by wage rises — under control, but its job

is that much harder now.

Our PWLB rate forecasts below are based on the Certainty Rate (the standard rate
minus 20 bps, calculated as gilts plus 80bps) which has been accessible to most
authorities since 1st November 2012.

Page 58 VYA

Page 4 of 24 DAY



Link Group Interest Rate View 27.09.22

Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25

BANK RATE 400 500 500 500 450 400 375 325 300 275 275 250
3 month ave earnings 450 500 500 500 450 400 380 330 300 280 280 250
6 month ave earnings 470 520 510 500 460 410 390 340 310 3.00 290 260

12 month ave earnings 530 530 520 500 470 420 400 350 320 310 300 270

5yr PWLB 500 490 470 450 420 39 370 350 340 330 320 3.20

10yrPWLB 490 470 460 430 410 380 360 350 340 330 320 320

25yrPWLB 510 490 480 450 430 410 390 370 360 360 350 3.40

50 yr PWLB 480 460 450 420 400 380 360 340 330 330 320 310

The Council's Treasury Position — 30 September 2022

Borrowing

18. The Council’s debt and investment position at the 30 September 2022 was as follows:

Table 1 — Borrowing

PWLB £7,500,000 | 25/05/2007 | 01/02/2033 | £7,500,000 | 4.80%
PWLB £909,027 | 04/09/2014 | 02/09/2044 £909,027 | 3.78%
PWLB (Optivo) £1,788,235 | 04/09/2014 | 02/09/2044 | £1,788,235 | 3.78%
PWLB (FT) (Annuity) | £125,981 | 21/03/2016 | 20/03/2026 £110,685 | 1.66%
PWLB £1,000,000 | 11/05/2016 | 11/05/2056 | £1,000,000 | 2.92%
PWLB £1,000,000 | 11/05/2016 | 11/05/2046 | £1,000,000 | 3.08%
PWLB £1,000,000 | 11/05/2016 | 11/05/2036 | £1,000,000 | 3.01%
PWLB £1,000,000 | 11/05/2016 | 11/05/2026 | £1,000,000 | 2.30%
PWLB £2,000,000 | 24/06/2016 | 24/06/2054 | £2,000,000 | 2.80%
PWLB £1,000,000 | 24/06/2016 | 24/06/2028 | £1,000,000 | 2.42%
PWLB £2,000,000 | 21/03/2017 | 21/03/2057 | £2,000,000 | 2.53%
PWLB £2,000,000 | 21/03/2017 | 19/09/2059 | £2,000,000 | 2.50%
PWLB £2,000,000 | 23/03/2017 | 23/03/2060 | £2,000,000 | 2.48%
PWLB (Annuity) £6,772,356 | 01/06/2017 | 01/06/2057 | £6,712,915 | 2.53%
PWLB (Annuity) £7,860,481 | 22/11/2017 | 22/11/2057 | £7,795488 | 2.72%
PWLB £2,000,000 | 12/12/2018 | 12/06/2028 | £2,000,000 | 1.98%
PWLB (Annuity) £3,820,026 | 13/12/2018 | 13/12/2058 | £3,788,678 | 2.55%
PWLB (Annuity) £2,387,758 | 31/01/2019 | 31/01/2059 | £2,368,204 | 2.56%
PWLB (Annuity) £4,273,795 | 31/01/2019 | 31/01/2069 | £4,250,066 | 2.56%
PWLB (Annuity) £8,976,150 | 20/03/2019 | 20/03/2059 | £8,902,335 | 2.54%
PWLB (Annuity) £4,649,533 | 02/09/2019 | 02/09/2069 | £4,618,608 | 1.83%
PWLB £2,000,000 | 13/01/2022 | 13/01/2062 | £2,000,000 | 1.89%
Total Debt £66,063,342 £65,744,241 | 2.75%
SE Aoy,
Page 59 WE

Page'5 of 24



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) amount to be paid for 2022/23 is £1,707,349.
This is equivalent to 2.37% of the 2022/23 opening Capital Financing Requirement
(£71,970,496).

At the 30 September 2022 the Council had debt amounting to £65.744m (PWLB debt).
The Council has not taken on any more debt in the year (as at 31 October 2022).

The Council’'s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital
Financing Requirement (CFR). This figure is a gauge of the Council’s debt position.
The CFR results from the capital activity of the Council and what resources have been
used to pay for the capital spend.

Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for the
Council's borrowing need. Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the
treasury service organises the Council’s cash position to ensure sufficient cash is
available to meet the capital plans and cash flow requirements. This may be sourced
through borrowing from external bodies (such as the Government, through the Public
Works Loan Board [PWLB] or the money markets) or utilising temporary cash
resources within the Council.

The Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise indefinitely.
Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged to
revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an annual revenue
charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision — MRP, to reduce the CFR. This is
effectively a repayment of the borrowing need. This differs from the treasury
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital
commitments. External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does
not change the CFR.

The total CFR can also be reduced by:

¢ the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied
capital receipts); or

e charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP).

The Council’'s 2022/23 MRP Policy was approved as part of the Treasury Management
Strategy Report for 2022/23 by Council in February 2022.

The Council’'s CFR for the year is shown below and represents a key prudential
indicator. It includes leased items on the balance sheet, which increase the Council’s
borrowing need (albeit no additional borrowing is actually required against such items).

Page 60 VYA

Page 6 of 24 DAY



2021/22 2022/23
Table 2 CFR: General Fund Actual Estimate

£000's £000's
Opening balance 72,683 71,970
Add unfinanced capital expenditure 955 9,804
Less MRP (1,668) (1,707)
Closing balance 71,970 80,067

27. Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators for net borrowing and the

CFR, and by the authorised limit.

28. The Council’s long-term borrowing must only be for a capital purpose. This essentially

means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure. Net borrowing

should not therefore, except in the short term, have exceeded the CFR for 2022/23
plus the expected changes to the CFR over 2023/24 and 2024/25 from financing the
capital programme. This indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in

advance of its immediate capital needs in 2022/23.

2021/22 2022/23
Table 3 Internal Borrowing Actual Estimate
(As at 31/10/22)
£000's £000's
Capital Financing Requirement 71,970 80,067
External Borrowing 66,063 75,867
Net Internal Borrowing 5,907 4,200

29. The table above highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR,
which provides an indication of affordability for the Council. The Council has complied

with this prudential indicator.

Investments in 2022-23

30. Table 4 below provides a snapshot of the investments and deposits held on 30
September 2022. The level of investments can fluctuate significantly on a day-to-day
basis, given the level of funding received, precept payments, grants payable and

receivable, salaries and wages, etc.

31. The Council also had longer term investments with CCLA in a property fund and

Diversified Income Fund.

Page

Page'7 of

o
=

N
N



'(Ij'able 4 e R et | e Start Date | End Date Principal | Term
eposits Rate

Lloyds 0.30% - - £5,701,666 | Call
Barclays Corporate 0.25% - - £5,003,195 | Call
NatWest 0.10% - - £6,147 | Call
Australia & NZ BCG Ltd 0.43% | 14/07/2021 | 14/10/2022 | £5,000,000 | Fixed
DBS Bank Ltd, London 3.14% | 01/09/2022 | 01/03/2023 | £5,000,000 | Fixed
Helaba Landesbank Hessen 3.09% | 01/09/2022 | 01/03/2023 | £5,000,000 | Fixed
Clydesdale Bank 2.25% | 12/09/2022 | 12/12/2022 | £5,000,000 | Fixed
Goldman Sachs 3.00% ([ 30/09/2022 | 30/12/2022 | £5,000,000 | Fixed
TOTAL £35,711,008

other organisations.

Table 5 — Loans to Other Organisations

32. As at 30 September 2022 three longer term loans are outstanding — loans made to

Principal
B?E:; g:g:z?::titc?ns Inltélrtzst Start Date | End Date | O/S aspat Type
30/09/2022
Amicus (Optivo) 3.78% | 04/09/2014 | 02/09/2044 | £1,788,235 | Maturity
Foreshore Trust 1.66% | 21/03/2016 | 20/03/2026 £110,685 | Annuity
The Source 2.43% | 17/12/2015 | 17/12/2025 £9,444 | Annuity

33. Borrowing from the PWLB was taken to fund the Amicus Horizon (now Optivo) loan
(£1,788,235 - Maturity loan) and the loan to the Foreshore Trust (£300,000 originally
borrowed - Annuity loan); these correspond to PWLB loans in Table 1 above.

34. The overall investment performance for the first 6 months of 2022/23 provided an
average return of 2.06% (2.18% including CCLA) (2020/21 0.16%).

35. The total interest received for the first 6 months is £44,743 (£128,955 including CCLA)
(2021/22 £24,976). These figures exclude the interest receivable in respect of the
three loans to other organisations and the housing company detailed below.

Loans to Hastings Housing Company Ltd

36. Hastings Housing Company repaid the revenue loan and interest due to the Council in
September 2020. It still has a capital loan of £5,489,398 outstanding. The capital loan
interest rate is based on the rate prevailing at the time of the advance and is fixed for
the period of the loan. The borrowing costs incurred by the Council in making
advances to the housing company are covered by the interest repayments.

I\\\\EABO(I) .

z 005

Page 62 ?».\/\/ﬁ
Page 8 of 24 RS



The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators)

37. This part of the report is structured to provide updates on:

The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
How these plans are being financed;

The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential
indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and

Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.

Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure

38. This table shows the forecast outturn for capital expenditure for 2022/23.

2022/23 2022/23

Original Forecast
Table 6 Capital Expenditure (Net) by Service Estimate Outturn
(net) (net)
£000 £000
Corporate Resources 11,174 8,404
Operational Services 3,680 3,275
Total Capital Expenditure (Net) 14,854 11,679

Capital Expenditure — Financing

39. The new Capital schemes, approved since the budget, will generally be financed by
borrowing, unless grants or Capital receipts from the sale of assets are available.

40. The larger schemes in the capital programme which are expected to require financing
in 2022/23 from borrowing include:-

(1) Buckshole Reservoir Works
2) Priory Meadow
3) Cornwallis Street Development

4) Churchfield Business Centre

5) Lacuna Place Development / Refurbishment
6) Castleham Industrial Units

7) Playground upgrades

8) Energy — Solar Panels

9) Pelham Crescent building and road works
10) Bexhill Road South (Housing & Car Park)

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(11) Lower Bexhill Road (Housing)

Page 63 VYA

Pagé& 9 of 24 DAY



(12) Mayfield E (Housing)
(13) MUGA Refurbishment

Impact on the prudential indicators

41.

The Capital Financing Requirement has continued to increase. It is expected to reach
some £80.1m by April 2023. The position at 31 October 2022 is shown in Table 3
above, and highlights that there would be an underlying financing requirement of some
£4.2m by the year end if further borrowing is undertaken. The option of using capital
receipts, once received, in lieu of external borrowing is expected to be beneficial to the
Council.

Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.

42.

43.

44.

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that
over the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a
capital purpose. Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed
the total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for the
current and next two financial years.

A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing. This is the
Authorised Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited; this
is set by full Council and can only be revised by full Council. It reflects the level of
borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term. It is the
expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements.
This is the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act
2003.

The graph below shows that the Council is operating within its approved borrowing
limits.

\‘\EABO(/),

5 0f0f s

Page 64 SWWE
Page 10 of 24 Yspm &



Graph: Estimated CFR/ Debt and Debt boundaries at year end

140,000
s E xternal Debt s A uthorized Limit
Operational Bound ary e Capital Financing Requirement
120,000
= = = o 115,000
1140, (HHD IREIRCTI IREIRICTT L0 003-—110,000
100,000 -
. JRITTRII] 91,040
90,000 90,000 87,148
80,067
2
60,000
£ 1
40,000 =
20,000

1017118 101819 2019720 2020121y, 2021122 2022123 202324 1024725

Borrowing Strategy

45.

46.

47.

The Council now has some £65.74m of PWLB debt and could potentially borrow up to
a level of £80.1m (estimated CFR at 31 March 2023). This figure does not take
account of any new capital spending in future years which could potentially be funded
by new borrowing.

The interest rate forecasts from the Council’s treasury advisers identify that it is likely
interest rates will rise to hit a peak of 5% in March 2023 before starting to gradually
reduce at the end of 2023 and the coming years. The era of historically low interest
rates has come to an abrupt end with the Bank of England base rate sharply rising
from 0.1% in December 2021 to 2.25% by October 2022, with further rate rises
anticipated.

The Council’s corporate plans require substantial new borrowing by the Council in the
future and play a part in the consideration as to when to borrow and the level of
internal borrowing. Given the sharp rise in interest rates and the cost of borrowing now
jeopardising the viability of some capital schemes there is a stronger case for
increasing the level of internal borrowing in order to reduce the impact of borrowing
costs on the revenue budget. It appears that the Council may benefit for taking any

S

Page 65 N

Page™1 of 24 DAY



48.

49.

50.

future borrowing over a short initial period and then looking to refinance at a later date
when interest rates are anticipated to have reduced. This does however open the
Council up to the interest rate risk i.e., events may lead to rates being unexpectedly
high at the time that refinancing is necessary.

Commercial investments (including commercial property) are not part of cashflow
management or prudent treasury risk management, and they do not directly help
deliver service outcomes. Leveraged investment is a form of speculation, which
chooses to take on additional risk in order to earn a profit, much as an investment bank
or property company might do. A local authority has powers to borrow and invest ‘for
the prudent management of its financial affairs’ (Local Government Act 2003 sections

1 and 12). It is CIPFA’s view that throughout the public services the priority for treasury
management is to protect capital rather than to maximise return. The magnified risks of
leveraged investments, and the fact that they put public money at unnecessary risk,
mean that borrowing in order to invest for the primary purpose of earning a return is
not in CIPFA’s view a prudent use of public funds. Regeneration, and investing for
economic development purposes, particularly within the boundary of the local authority
is still permitted.

CIPFA has updated the prudential Code guidance and released a statement on
borrowing to invest. The Code says that authorities must not borrow to invest for the
primary purpose of financial return, but it is not always straightforward to identify if the
authority is borrowing for this purpose or not. Any authority which is a net borrower and
which is holding or considering investments of a long term nature must consider
whether it is in effect borrowing to invest.

The Code’s statement that authorities ‘must not borrow to invest for the primary
purpose of financial return’ is not intended to require the forced sale of existing
commercial investments, whether commercial properties or financial investments.
Selling these investments and using the proceeds to net down debt does, however,
reduce treasury risks on both sides of the balance sheet and is therefore an option
which should be kept under review, especially if new long-term borrowing is being
considered. Code paragraph 53 also makes it clear that where an authority has
existing commercial properties, the Code’s requirement that an authority must not
borrow to invest for the primary purpose of financial return, is not intended to prevent
authorities from appropriate capital repair, renewal or updating of existing properties.
The Council has, and continues to hold, a large number of industrial units and other
properties within the borough which provide substantial income for the Council —
without which the Council would be unsustainable in its current form.

Debt Maturity

51.

The Graph below shows the profile of when debt (loans from the PWLB) become
repayable. Blue lines indicate maturity loans and red lines indicate annuity loans.

Page 66 VYA

Pagge 12 of 24 DA



52.

B Maturity Repayment B Annuity Repayment

The Council will need to carefully consider the structure and timing of any new
borrowing to ensure debt does not exceed the CFR in the years ahead.

Debt Rescheduling

53.

Debt rescheduling opportunities have been very limited in the current economic climate
and following the various increases in the margins added to gilt yields which have
impacted PWLB new borrowing rates since October 2010. No debt rescheduling has
therefore been undertaken to date in the current financial year. However, now that the
whole of the yield curve has shifted higher there may be better opportunities in the
future, although only prudent and affordable debt rescheduling will be considered.

Investment Strategy

54.

95.

56.

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2022/23, which includes
the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by full Council on 16 February 2022. In
accordance with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice, it sets out the
Council’s investment priorities as being:

e Security of capital

e Liquidity

e Yield

The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity and with the Council’s risk
appetite. In the current economic climate, it is considered appropriate to keep
investments short term to cover cash flow needs, but also to seek out value available
in periods up to 12 months with high credit rated financial institutions, using the Link
suggested creditworthiness approach, including a minimum sovereign credit rating and
Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay information.

Priority is given to security and liquidity of investments in order to reduce counterparty
risk to the maximum possible extent.
'QQEABOG) .
VOV
Page 67 \/\/@

Page™3 of 24 Ysap®



57. The Council has a limit of £5m with any one institution (rated A or above, supported by
Government, and given a blue (12 month) rating by Link Group). This generally
represents a level of up to 20% of the investment portfolio with any one institution or
group at any one time. It is also necessary, at times, to invest sums of this size in order
to attract the larger institutions which have the higher credit ratings.

58. The world economic climate has led to a number of downgrades to banks' credit
ratings, making it increasingly difficult to spread investments across a number of
institutions. The Chief Finance Officer has the authority to amend the limits if
necessary, to ensure that monies can be placed with appropriate institutions.

59. The net cost to the Council of borrowing, investment interest and fees will be reviewed
as part of the budget setting process.

Property Fund

60. It was agreed in February 2017 that the option for diversification of some of the
investments into a property fund be undertaken with CCLA in the sum of £2m. The
investment being in respect of the Council’s reserves that are not required for a period
of at least 5 years in order that any fall in values and entry costs into such funds can
be covered. The £2m was invested in April 2017 and the performance from June 2020
is detailed below:

CCLA - LA’s Property Prices and Dividend yields

End of| Sep-22 Jun-22 Mar-22 Sep-21 Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-19 Mar-18 Apr-17
Offer Price p 371.27 387.73 368.46 335.31 313.45 315.7 327.4 322.40 307.19
Net Asset Value p 347.79 363.21 345.17 314.11 293.63 295.74 306.7 302.01 287.77
Bid Price p 342.40 357.58 339.82 309.24 289.08 291.15 301.95 297.33 283.31

Dividend* on XD Date p 3.26 2.8523 2.7875 2.6917 2.9797 3.25 3.31 3.21 -
Dividend* - Last 12 Months p 11.78 11.21 11.22 12.28 12.63 13.06 13.08 13.70 13.19
Dividend Yield on NAV % 3.39 3.09 3.13 3.91 4.3 4.41 4.26 4.54 4.58

61. The dividend yield is around 3.39% on the net asset value, which results in quarterly
cash dividends of around £21,200. Full year dividends are estimated at around
£77,000.

Property Fund Capital Value

Units (651,063)| Sep-22 Jun-22 Mar-22 Sep-21 Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-19 Mar-18 Apr-17
Mid Market Price(£)| 2,264,332 | 2,364,726 | 2,247,274 | 2,045,054 | 1,911,716 | 1,925,454 | 1,996,810 | 1,966,275 | 1,873,564
Bid Price (£)| 2,229,240 | 2,328,071 | 2,212,442 | 2,013,347 | 1,882,093 | 1,895,570 | 1,965,885 | 1,935,806 | 1,844,527

62. The Capital value has increased by 20.86% between April 2017 and September 2022
and is now above that of the original investment. At the end of September 2022, the
mid-market value is £2,229,240. It is important that this is continued to be viewed as a
longer-term investment (5 years plus).

Diversified Income Fund
63. It was agreed in February 2019 that a sum of £3m would be made available for further

diversification of the Council’s investments. £1m was invested on 26 July 2019 and a
further £2m investment was made on 24 September 2019 into the CCLA Diversified

Page 68 VYA

Pagge 14 of 24 DAY



Income Fund. Anticipated returns were around 3% with the added advantage of much
higher liquidity than the property fund.

64. The capital value has decreased by 9.43% from the initial investment and was valued
at £2,717,180 at the end of September 2022. The quarterly dividend yield was 2.79%
for September (£18,443). This compares to a dividend yield of 2.62% in June 2022
(£25,959). It should be remembered that this is a long-term investment and prices can
go up and down — as the impact of the pandemic has highlighted. Despite the current
loss in capital value the fund has paid out consistent quarterly dividends which have
been more than what we could get from other investments and have helped support
the revenue budget. Over time the capital value should recover its losses and continue
to grow.

Compliance with Treasury Limits

65. It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the affordable
borrowing limits. During the half year ended 30th September 2022, the Council has
operated within the treasury and prudential indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy Statement for 2022/23. The Chief Finance Officer reports that
no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with these
indicators.

66. All treasury management operations have also been conducted in full compliance with
the Council's Treasury Management Practices. The Prudential Indicators have been
complied with - reproduced in Appendix 1 for reference.

67. Due to difficulties in identifying enough suitable counterparties there have been times
where the limits for balances held with Lloyds bank were raised about the initial £5m
limit — approved by the Chief Finance Officer in compliance with the Council's Treasury
Management Practices. Exceeding the normal approved limits is a decision that is not
taken lightly, and whilst the investment return achieved will have been lower than
otherwise may have been the case, the need for security has been considered to be
more important.

Financial Implications

68. The Council’'s 2022/23 budget included an estimated return on investments of just
0.2% (excluding CCLA funds). This was consistent with returns being achieved at the
time. Since setting the budget there have been rapid increases in the Bank of England
base rate which has increased from 0.5% when the budget was agreed to 2.25% in
October 2022.

69. The Council’s actual average rate of return for the year to 30 September 2022 was
2.06% (2.18% including the CCLA investments).

Risk Management

70. The Council continues to face serious risks in terms of volatility in its income streams,
expenditure and future funding. Business rates and property income are susceptible
during economic recessions and business rate appeals for example can have sudden
and significant impacts. The Council has seen a massive increase in its homelessness
expenditure this year and inflation is resulting budget overspends. Income from sales

Page 69

Page™5 of 24

\‘\(—‘ ABO(/

S PN
gl.él

. QU
Ysap®

\Z



fees and charges e.g. car park income, remains at risk. Where there is more risk and
volatility in income streams the Council will need to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves to ensure the Council’s ability to deliver key services is not jeopardised.

71. The Council spreads its risk on investments by limiting the amount of monies with any
one institution or group and limiting the timeframe of the exposure. In determining the
level of the investment and period the Council considers formal credit ratings (Fitch)
along with its own advisers (Link Group) ratings advice.

72. The security of the principal sum remains of paramount importance to the Council.

73. To date the strategy of externalising debt has been successful. The fact that the
Council’s reserves were cash backed meant that there was no need to borrow at high
interest rates when funds were required during Covid. Currently the Council has not
borrowed externally as it may wish to finance Capital expenditure from capital receipts
and avoid borrowing costs. It is thus borrowing internally i.e. temporarily using its cash
balances/reserves to fund the expenditure.

74. The investments made in the Property Fund (CCLA) and the Diversified Investment
Fund (CCLA), totalling £5m are currently showing good returns. The risks currently
faced in achieving a sustainable Council budget mean that no further long-term
investments can be made. However, there are no reasons to sell the current
investments at this time.

Timetable of Next Steps

1. Please include a list of key actions and the scheduled dates for these:

Action Key milestone Due date Responsible
(provisional)
Review and revise Annual | Setting of February 2023 | Deputy Chief
Treasury Management 2023/24 Budget Finance Officer
Strategy & Capital
Strategy
Treasury Management Close of 2022/23 | July 2023 Deputy Chief
Outturn Report to Cabinet | accounts Finance Officer
Wards Affected
None
Area(s) Affected
\‘\EABO(/),
Page 70 WG
Page 16 of 24 Yspm &



None

Implications

Relevant project tools Applied? N/A
Climate change implications considered? N/A

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) No
Risk Management Yes
Environmental Issues No
Economic/Financial Implications Yes
Human Rights Act No
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No

Additional Information

Appendix 1: Prudential Indicators
Appendix 2: Economic Update from Link Group
Appendix 3: Approved countries for investments as of 30t September 2022

Officer to Contact

Kit Wheeler
Chief Finance Officer
kit.wheeler@hastings.gov.uk

Simon Jones
Deputy Chief Finance Officer
simon.jones@hastings.gov.uk

Page 71

Page 17 of 24


mailto:kit.wheeler@hastings.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@hastings.gov.uk

APPENDIX 1 - Prudential Indicators

The Council’s Capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management

activity. The output of the Capital expenditure plans (detailed in the budget) is reflected

in the prudential indicators below.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Authorised Limit for external debt
borrowing 110,000 | 110,000 | 110,000| 110,000 | 110,000
other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
TOTAL 115,000 | 115,000 | 115,000 | 115,000 | 115,000
Operational Boundary for external debt
borrowing 105,000 | 105,000 | 105,000 | 105,000 | 105,000
other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
TOTAL 110,000 | 110,000 | 110,000 | 110,000 | 110,000

The Council’s external borrowing at 30 September 2022 amounted to £65,744,241
which is well within approved borrowing limits.

Page 72
Pagé 18 of 24

SVO §°

\‘\(—‘ ABO(/),

. QU
Ysap®



Interest Rate Exposures 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24
Upper | Upper | Upper

Limits on fixed interest rates based on net debt 100% 100% 100%
Limits on variable interest rates based on net debt 100% 100% 100%
Limits on fixed interest rates:

Debt only 100% 100% 100%

Investments only 100% 100% 100%
Limits on variable interest rates

Debt only 30% 30% 30%

Investments only 100% 100% 100%
Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2022/23 Lower | Upper
Under 12 Months 0% 100%
12 months to 2 years 0% 100%
2 years to 5 years 0% 100%
5 years to 10 years 0% 100%
10 years to 20 years 0% 100%
20 years to 30 years 0% 100%
30 years to 40 years 0% 100%
40 years to 50 years 0% 100%
Maturity Structure of variable interest rate borrowing
2022/23 Lower | Upper
Under 12 Months 0% 30%
12 months to 2 years 0% 30%
2 years to 5 years 0% 30%
5 years to 10 years 0% 30%
10 years to 20 years 0% 10%
20 years to 30 years 0% 10%
30 years to 40 years 0% 10%
40 years to 50 years 0% 10%

Page 73

Page 19 of 24



Affordability prudential indicator - Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

This indicator assesses the affordability of the capital investment plans. It provides an indication of
the impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances This indicator identifies
the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term obligation costs net of investment

income) against the net revenue stream.

Prudential Indicator: Financing Cost to Net 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Revenue Stream Actual Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Financing Costs £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
1. Interest Charged to General Fund 1,805 2,137 2,320 2,494 2,994
2. Interest Payable under Finance Leases and
any other long term liabilities - - - - -
3. Gains and losses on the repurchase or
early settlement of borrowing credited or
charged to the amount met from government
grants and local taxpayers - - - - -
4. Interest and Investment Income (540) (503) (513) (505) (605)
5. Amounts payable or receivable in respect of
financial derivatives - - - - -
6. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) /
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP) 1,668 1,707 1,943 2,243 2,554
7. Depreciation/Impairment that are charged
to the amount to be met from government
grants and local taxpayers - - - - -
Total 2,933 3,341 3,750 4,232 4,943
Net Revenue Stream
Amount to be met from government grants
and local taxpayers 14,253 14,245 13,960 13,821 13,683
Ratio

Financing Cost to Net Revenue Stream 21% 23% 27% 31% 36%

Note: Outturn figures for 2021/22 are unaudited

This prudential indicator shows that the ratio of financing costs to the net revenue stream is
increasing. This is not unexpected given the Council’s large capital expenditure ambitions and

agreed programmes of Capital expenditure - thus increasing borrowing costs.

\‘\EABO(/),

s Y
Page 74 - WV/¢
Page 20 of 24 R



APPENDIX 2 - Economic Update from Link Group

Further details from our treasury management advisors, Link Group, to accompany the
economic update in the body of the report are shown below:

1.

The UK economy grew by 0.2% q/q in Q1 2022/23, though revisions to historic data
left it below pre-pandemic levels.

There are signs of higher energy prices creating more persistent downward effects
in economic activity. Both industrial production (-0.3% m/m) and construction output
(-0.8% m/m) fell in July 2022 for a second month in a row. Although some of this
was probably due to the heat wave at the time, manufacturing output fell in some of
the most energy intensive sectors (e.g. chemicals), pointing to signs of higher
energy prices weighing on production. With the drag on real activity from high
inflation having grown in recent months, GDP is at risk of contracting through the
autumn and winter months.

The fall in the composite PMI from 49.6 in August to a 20-month low preliminary
reading of 48.4 in September points to a fall in GDP of around 0.2% g/q in Q3 and
consumer confidence is at a record low. Retail sales volumes fell by 1.6% m/m in
August, which was the ninth fall in 10 months. That left sales volumes in August
just 0.5% above their pre-Covid level and 3.3% below their level at the start of the
year. There are also signs that households are spending their excess savings in
response to high prices. Indeed, cash in households’ bank accounts rose by £3.2bn
in August, which was below the £3.9bn rise in July and much smaller than the 2019
average monthly rate of £4.6bn.

The labour market remained exceptionally tight. Data for July and August provided
further evidence that the weaker economy is leading to a cooling in labour demand.
Labour Force Survey (LFS) employment rose by 40,000 in the three months to July
(the smallest rise since February). But a renewed rise in inactivity of 154,000 over
the same period meant that the unemployment rate fell from 3.8% in June to a new
48-year low of 3.6%. The single-month data showed that inactivity rose by 354,000
in July itself and there are now 904,000 more inactive people aged 16+ compared
to before the pandemic in February 2020. The number of vacancies has started to
level off from recent record highs but there have been few signs of a slowing in the
upward momentum on wage growth. Indeed, in July, the 3my/y rate of average
earnings growth rose from 5.2% in June to 5.5%.

CPl inflation eased from 10.1% in July to 9.9% in August, though inflation has not
peaked yet. The easing in August was mainly due to a decline in fuel prices
reducing fuel inflation from 43.7% to 32.1%. And with the oil price now just below
$90pb, we would expect to see fuel prices fall further in the coming months.

However, utility price inflation is expected to add 0.7% to CPI inflation in October
when the Ofgem unit price cap increases to, typically, £2,500 per household (prior
to any benefit payments). But, as the government has frozen utility prices at that
level for two years, energy price inflation will fall sharply after October and have a
big downward influence on CPI inflation.

\‘\EABO(/), <

VOV

Page 75 VYL
Page 27T of 24 R



10.

11.

Nonetheless, the rise in services CPI inflation from 5.7% y/y in July to a 30-year
high of 5.9% y/y in August suggests that domestic price pressures are showing little
sign of abating. A lot of that is being driven by the tight labour market and strong
wage growth. CPl inflation is expected to peak close to 10.4% in November and,
with the supply of workers set to remain unusually low, the tight labour market will
keep underlying inflationary pressures strong until early next year.

During H1 2022, there has been a change of both Prime Minister and Chancellor.
The new team (Liz Truss and Kwasi Kwarteng) have made a step change in
government policy. The government’s huge fiscal loosening from its proposed
significant tax cuts will add to existing domestic inflationary pressures and will
potentially leave a legacy of higher interest rates and public debt. Whilst the
government’s utility price freeze, which could cost up to £150bn (5.7% of GDP)
over 2 years, will reduce peak inflation from 14.5% in January next year to 10.4% in
November this year, the long list of tax measures announced at the “fiscal event”
adds up to a loosening in fiscal policy relative to the previous government’s plans of
£44.8bn (1.8% of GDP) by 2026/27. These included the reversal of April’s national
insurance tax on 6th November, the cut in the basic rate of income tax from 20p to
19p in April 2023, the cancellation of next April’s corporation tax rise, the cut to
stamp duty and the removal of the 45p tax rate, although the 45p tax rate cut
announcement has already been reversed.

Fears that the government has no fiscal anchor on the back of these
announcements has meant that the pound has weakened again, adding further
upward pressure to interest rates. Whilst the pound fell to a record low of $1.035 on
the Monday following the government’s “fiscal event”, it has since recovered to
around $1.12. That is due to hopes that the Bank of England will deliver a very big
rise in interest rates at the policy meeting on 3rd November and the government
will lay out a credible medium-term plan in the near term. This was originally
expected as part of the fiscal statement on 23rd November but has subsequently
been moved forward to an expected release date in October. Nevertheless, with
concerns over a global recession growing, there are downside risks to the pound.

The MPC has now increased interest rates seven times in as many meetings in
2022 and has raised rates to their highest level since the Global Financial Crisis.
Even so, coming after the Fed and ECB raised rates by 75 basis points (bps) in
their most recent meetings, the Bank of England’s latest 50 basis points hike looks
relatively dovish. However, the UK’s status as a large importer of commodities,
which have jumped in price, means that households in the UK are now facing a
much larger squeeze on their real incomes.

Since the fiscal event on 23rd September, we now expect the Monetary Policy
Committee (MPC) to increase interest rates further and faster, from 2.25% currently
to a peak of 5.00% in February 2023. The combination of the government’s fiscal
loosening, the tight labour market and sticky inflation expectations means we
expect the MPC to raise interest rates by 100bps at the policy meetings in
November (to 3.25%) and 75 basis points in December (to 4%) followed by further
50 basis point hikes in February and March (to 5.00%). Market expectations for
what the MPC will do are volatile. If Bank Rate climbs to these levels the housing
market looks very vulnerable, which is one reason why the peak in our forecast is
lower than the peak of 5.50% - 5.75% priced into the financial markets at present.

Page 76 VYA

Pag& 22 of 24 DAY



12. Throughout 2022/23, gilt yields have been on an upward trend. They were initially

13.

14.

15.

caught up in the global surge in bond yields triggered by the surprisingly strong rise
in CPl inflation in the US in May. The rises in two-year gilt yields (to a peak of
2.37% on 21st June) and 10-year yields (to a peak of 2.62%) took them to their
highest level since 2008 and 2014 respectively. However, the upward trend was
exceptionally sharp at the end of September as investors demanded a higher risk
premium and expected faster and higher interest rate rises to offset the
government’s extraordinary fiscal stimulus plans. The 30-year gilt yield rose from
3.60% to 5.10% following the “fiscal event”, which threatened financial stability by
forcing pension funds to sell assets into a falling market to meet cash collateral
requirements. In response, the Bank did two things. First, it postponed its plans to
start selling some of its quantitative easing (QE) gilt holdings until 31st October.
Second, it committed to buy up to £65bn of long-term gilts to “restore orderly
market conditions” until 14th October. In other words, the Bank is restarting QE,
although for financial stability reasons rather than monetary policy reasons.

Since the Bank’s announcement on 28th September, the 30-year gilt yield has
fallen back from 5.10% to 3.83%. The 2-year gilt yield dropped from 4.70% to
4.30% and the 10-year yield fell back from 4.55% to 4.09%.

There is a possibility that the Bank continues with QE at the long-end beyond 14th
October or it decides to delay quantitative tightening beyond 31st October, even as
it raises interest rates. So far at least, investors seem to have taken the Bank at its
word that this is not a change in the direction of monetary policy nor a step towards
monetary financing of the government’s deficit. But instead, that it is a temporary
intervention with financial stability in mind.

After a shaky start to the year, the S&P 500 and FTSE 100 climbed in the first half
of Q2 2022/23 before falling to their lowest levels since November 2020 and July
2021 respectively. The S&P 500 is 7.2% below its level at the start of the quarter,
whilst the FTSE 100 is 5.2% below it as the fall in the pound has boosted the value
of overseas earnings in the index. The decline has, in part, been driven by the rise
in global real yields and the resulting downward pressure on equity valuations as
well as concerns over economic growth leading to a deterioration in investor risk
appetite.

Page 77 TN

Page 23 of 24 DAY



Based on lowest available rating

AAA
Australia
Denmark
Germany
Luxembourg
Netherlands
Norway
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland

AA+
Canada
Finland
US.A.

AA

Abu Dhabi (UAE)

France

AA-
Belgium
Hong Kong
Qatar

U.K.

APPENDIX 3 - Approved countries for investments as of 30th September 2022

Page

Page 24

o

f

(00]

N

4



Agenda Item 7
I

‘i Hastings...-

Borough Council

J

Report To: Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 January 2023
Report Title: Treasury Management Strategy and Capital Strategy 2023/24

Report By: Simon Jones

Deputy Chief Finance Officer
Key Decision: Yes

Classification: Open

Purpose of Report

To consider the draft Treasury Management Strategy, Annual Investment Strategy, Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy and Capital Strategy and make recommendations to full
Council as appropriate. This is to ensure that there is an effective framework for the
management of the Council's investments, cash flows and borrowing activities prior to the start
of the new financial year.

The Council is expected to have some £65.4 million of external debt (as at 31 March 2023), and
investments which can fluctuate between £15m and £35m in the year. The level of debt is set to
increase to some £110.3m by 2024/25.

Recommendations
Audit Committee recommends to Cabinet and full Council that:

A. The Council approve the Treasury Management Strategy, Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) Policy, Annual investment Strategy and the Capital Strategy.

B. The strategies listed are updated as necessary during 2023/24 in the light of
changing and emerging risks and the Council’s evolving future expenditure plans.

Report Template v30.0 o m diSCIbillty
Page 79 g.a_..,} \EEE conﬁdeﬂ

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



Reasons for Recommendations

1.

The Council seeks to minimise the costs of borrowing and maximise investment income
whilst ensuring the security of its investments. The Council continues to make substantial
investments in property, housing and energy generation initiatives, and this will continue to
involve the Council in taking on additional borrowing.

The sums involved are significant and the assumptions made play an important part in
determining the annual budget. The CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice,
previously adopted by the Council, has been revised to take account of the more
commercialised approach being adopted by councils and the enhanced levels of
transparency required. The Code has represented best practice and helps ensure
compliance with statutory requirements.

The Council has the ability to diversify its investments and must consider carefully the level
of risk against reward against a background of historically very low interest rates.
Investments can help to close the gap in the budget in the years ahead and thus help to
preserve services, assist in the regeneration of the town, provide additional housing and
enhance the long-term sustainability of the town. However, over reliance on such income
streams would involve taking unnecessary risks with the future of the Council and its ability
to deliver statutory services.

Introduction

1.

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash
raised will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to
ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is
needed. Surplus monies are invested in low-risk counterparties or instruments
commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially
before considering investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing needs of
the Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can
meet its capital spending operations. This management of longer-term cash may
involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses,
and on occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or
cost objectives.

The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, as
the balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity and the ability to meet
spending commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger
capital projects. The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt
and the investment income arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget.
Since cash balances generally result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to
ensure adequate security of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will result in a loss
to the General Fund balances.

Report Template v30.0

Page 80



4. Treasury management in this context is defined by CIPFA as:

"The management of the organisation’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance
consistent with those risks"

5. The Cabinet are due to receive the same report and strategies at its meeting on the 6
February 2023 and will thereafter make recommendations on the policies and
strategies to full Council on 15 February 2023.

Revisions to the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code

6. CIPFA published the revised Codes on 20th December 2021 and has stated that
revisions need to be included in the reporting framework from the 2023/24 financial
year. The Council, therefore, has to have regard to these Codes of Practice when it
prepares the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy, and also related reports during the financial year, which are taken to full
Council for approval.

7. The Treasury Management Strategy details the requirements of the revised codes.

Borrowing / Borrowing Levels

Investment guidance

8. The revised Treasury Management Code requires all investments and investment
income to be attributed to one of the following three purposes: -

Treasury management

Arising from the organisation’s cash flows or treasury risk management activity, this type
of investment represents balances which are only held until the cash is required for use.

Treasury investments may also arise from other treasury risk management activity which
seeks to prudently manage the risks, costs or income relating to existing or forecast debt
or treasury investments.

Service delivery

Investments held primarily and directly for the delivery of public services including
housing, regeneration and local infrastructure. Returns on this category of investment
which are funded by borrowing are permitted only in cases where the income is “either
related to the financial viability of the project in question or otherwise incidental to the
primary purpose”.

Commercial return

Investments held primarily for financial return with no treasury management or direct
service provision purpose. Risks on such investments should be proportionate to an
authority’s financial capacity — i.e., that ‘plausible losses’ could be absorbed in budgets or
reserves without unmanageable detriment to local services. An authority must not borrow
to invest primarily for financial return.

Report Template v30.0

Page 81



The Primary Requirements of the Code

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets out
the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities.

Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives.

Receipt by the full Council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement -
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - for
the year ahead, a Capital Strategy, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report
(stewardship report) covering activities during the previous year.

Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring treasury
management policies and practices and for the execution and administration of
treasury management decisions.

Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy and
policies to a specific named body. For this Council the delegated body is the Audit
Committee.

Publication of the Strategies on the Council’s website.

Reporting Arrangements

15.

The reporting arrangements proposed, in accordance with the requirements of the
Code, are summarised below:-

Council/
Area of Responsibility Committee/ Frequency
Officer
Treasury Management
Strategy / Annual Investment Cabinet and Annually before the start
Strategy / MRP policy/ Capital | Council of the year
Strategy (in future years)
Treasury Management
Strategy / Annual Investment :
Strategy / Capital gsgl:ce”t and Mid-year
Strategy/MRP policy — Mid
Year report
Treasury Management
Strategy/Capital Strategy / :
Annual Investment Strategy / gab'”"tt and As required
: ouncil
MRP policy — updates or
revisions at other times
Annual Treasury Outturn Cabinet and Annually by 30 September
Report Council after the end of the year
Treagury Management S151 Officer Re.vi.ewed as required
Practices (minimum - annually)

Report Template v30.0

Page 82



16.

17.

Scrutiny of Treasury
Management Strategy

Annually before the start

Audit Committee
of the year

Scrutiny of treasury
management performance and | Audit Committee
strategy

Quarterly Monitoring
reports, Mid-Year report,

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2021) was adopted by this
Council in February 2022. The main clauses adopted are included in Appendix 8.

The Audit Committee is required to consider the Prudential Indicators as part of the
Treasury Management Strategy and make recommendations to Cabinet and full
Council; these are identified in the report and Appendix 4 of the Treasury Management
Strategy.

Capital Strategy

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

In the light of the increasing commercialisation within local government in particular, in
December 2017, CIPFA issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes.
The codes require all local authorities to produce detailed Capital Strategies.

The Capital Strategy is intended to give a high-level overview of how capital
expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity contribute to the
provision of services along with an overview of how associated risk is managed and the
implications for future financial sustainability.

The development of such a strategy allows flexibility to engage with full council to
ensure that the overall strategy, governance procedures and risk appetite are fully
understood by all elected members.

The Capital Strategy should be tailored to the authority’s individual circumstances but
should include capital expenditure, investments and liabilities and treasury
management. The Capital Strategy should include sufficient detail to allow all members
to understand how stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and
affordability will be secured and to meet legislative requirements on reporting.

The Capital strategy being a high-level document that summarises in appropriate detail
the requirements for specific investment appraisals. As a minimum such requirements
being:

o The capital schemes that are proposed and their objectives

o The legal power to undertake a particular scheme

o The key aspects of the financial appraisal, including any significant risks that have
been identified

o Qualitative criteria that have underpinned the recommendation for a scheme to
proceed e.g. links to Corporate plan, economic growth, job retention, etc.

o Likely source of funding

o Long term implications

o Risks and affordability

Report Template v30.0

Page 83



23.

24.

25.

In assessing new income generating proposals the Council does already consider the
above list of issues as part of the due diligence checklist and decisions are fully
documented.

This capital strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement; non-treasury investments will be reported through the former. This ensures
the separation of the core treasury function under security, liquidity and yield principles,
and the policy and commercialism investments usually driven by expenditure on an
asset.

The Capital Strategy looks to cover a much longer planning period than the existing
capital programme. The future expenditure plans continue to evolve. The capital
strategy and all the prudential indicators and controls are attached for the known
schemes. Borrowing limits will need to be determined by full Council based on
affordability and risk in due course.

Risk Management

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

The Investment strategy prioritises security of investments over return. Where
investments are made, they are limited in size and duration. External treasury advisers
are used to advise the Council and have been used to train members. The Council has
introduced further checks on credit worthiness of counterparties over the years as and
when these have been further developed by its advisers.

Whilst there is no absolute security for investments made, the Council has limited its
investments to the higher rated institutions, in order to mitigate the risk as far as
practical and looks to reduce the risk by spreading its investment portfolio. The Council
has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice.

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury
management. This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.

The training needs of treasury management officers will also be reviewed in the light of
the Code’s requirements and experience of new staff.

The additional risks that the Council has taken on with commercial property, housing
and energy investments needs to be considered in the context of the totality of risk that
the Council faces e.g. unexpected expenditure demands, robustness of income
streams, loans and guarantees to other parties, economic downturns, pandemics etc.
Where there is more risk and volatility in income streams the Council will need to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves to ensure the Council’s ability to deliver key
services is not jeopardised.

The Council spreads its risk on investments by limiting the amount of monies with any
one institution or group and limiting the timeframe of the exposure. In determining the
level of the investment and period the Council considers formal credit ratings (Fitch)
along with its own advisers (Link Group) ratings advice.

The security of the principal sum remains of paramount importance to the Council.

Report Template v30.0

Page 84



Economic/Financial Implications

33. The Council generally has investments in the year of between £15 million and £35 million at

any one time and is estimated to have longer term borrowings of £65.4m by the end of March
2023 (if no further external borrowing is undertaken). Management of its investments,
borrowing and cash flow remains crucial to the proper and effective management of the
Council. The Strategies and Policies detailed in the report directly influence the Council's
Medium Term Financial Strategy and the annual budget.

Organisational Consequences

34.

35.

36.

37.

The Cabinet is responsible for the development and review of the Treasury Management
Strategy, Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy, Investment Strategy and the future
Capital Strategy. The Audit Committee is responsible for scrutinising these strategies,
policies and performance throughout the year. Full Council, as the budget setting body,
remains responsible for the approval of the Treasury Management Strategy, MRP Policy, and
Investment Strategy and for the Capital Strategy.

Monitoring reports will be produced and will be presented to Cabinet and the Audit
Committee. A mid-year report is presented to full Council on any concerns arising since
approving the initial strategies and policies. Only full Council will be able to amend the
Treasury Management Strategy, MRP Policy, Investment Strategy or Capital Strategy. The
Chief Finance Officer will determine the Treasury Management Practices and associated
schedules.

There are new responsibilities placed on the Council and the Chief Finance officer from the
2021 Codes of Practice which relate to governance arrangements, ensuring robustness of
business cases, and risk management. The risk management requirements relate to asset
related properties which the Council has borrowed to finance, and assessments of overall
risk.

There are specific requirements to maintain schedules of counterparties and of any
guarantees that the Council may give or have given in the past in order to fully assess the
potential risks that the Council may be exposed to when making investment decisions.

Timetable of Next Steps

Please include a list of key actions and the scheduled dates for these:

Action

Key milestone

Due date
(provisional)

Responsible

Arrange Training for
new and existing
members / officers

For Mid-Year

Review and prior

to setting

strategies for the

July 2023

&

Chief Finance Officer

Report Template v30.0

Page 85




forthcoming year | January 2024
Report
Wards Affected
None
Policy Implications
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) No
Risk Management Yes
Environmental Issues & Climate Change No
Economic/Financial Implications Yes
Human Rights Act No
Organisational Consequences Yes
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No
Legal No

Additional Information

Documents Attached:
(i Treasury Management Strategy (including Investment Policy)
Includes the following Appendices:-

1. MRP Introduction and Policy Statement

2. Interest Rate Forecasts

3. Economic Review

4. Prudential and Treasury Indicators

5. Specified and non-Specified Investments

6. Approved Countries for Investments

7. Treasury Management Policy Statement

8. Purpose and Requirements of the Code

9. Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation

10. The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer

(ii) Capital Strategy
Other Supporting Documents:-
CIPFA - Treasury Management Code of Practice (2021)

CIPFA - The Prudential Code (2021)
Budget Report - Cabinet 6 February 2023

Report Template v30.0

Page 86



Officer to Contact

Kit Wheeler
kit.wheeler@hastings.gov.uk

Simon Jones
simon.jones@hastings.gov.uk

Report Template v30.0

Page 87


mailto:kit.wheeler@hastings.gov.uk
mailto:simon.jones@hastings.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) for 2023/24

The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act) and supporting regulations require the Council to
‘have regard to’ the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management Code of
Practice to set Prudential and Treasury Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the
Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

The Act therefore requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing and to
prepare an Annual Investment Strategy; this sets out the Council’s policies for managing its
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. There is
also the requirement to produce a Capital Strategy — also for determination by full Council.

The Treasury Management strategy covers two main areas:

(i) Capital issues

. the capital plans (in summarised form) and the prudential indicators;
« the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy.

(i) Treasury management issues
« the current treasury position;
. treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
. prospects for interest rates;
» the borrowing strategy;
« policy on borrowing in advance of need;
« debt rescheduling;
. the investment strategy;
. creditworthiness policy; and
« policy on use of external service providers.

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Prudential Code, DLUHC MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and
DLUHC Investment Guidance.

The strategy for 2023/24 in respect of the following aspects of the treasury management
function is based upon the Council officers’ views on interest rates, supplemented with
leading market forecasts provided by the Council’s treasury advisor, Link Group.

Revisions to the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code

CIPFA published the revised Codes on 20th December 2021 and has stated that revisions
need to be included in the reporting framework from the 2023/24 financial year. The
Council, therefore, has to have regard to these Codes of Practice when it prepares the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy, and also
related reports during the financial year, which are taken to full Council for approval.

The revised Treasury Management Code requires all investments and investment income to
be attributed to one of the following three purposes: -

Treasury management

Arising from the organisation’s cash flows or treasury risk management activity, this type of
investment represents balances which are only held until the cash is required for use.
Treasury investments may also arise from other treasury risk management activity which

< AB,
Report Template v25.0 u?s. :0) &~
Page 89 Ve
Page™ of 49 RO



seeks to prudently manage the risks, costs or income relating to existing or forecast debt or
treasury investments.

Service delivery

Investments held primarily and directly for the delivery of public services including housing,
regeneration and local infrastructure. Returns on this category of investment which are
funded by borrowing are permitted only in cases where the income is “either related to the
financial viability of the project in question or otherwise incidental to the primary purpose”.

Commercial return

Investments held primarily for financial return with no treasury management or direct service
provision purpose. Risks on such investments should be proportionate to an authority’s
financial capacity — i.e., that ‘plausible losses’ could be absorbed in budgets or reserves
without unmanageable detriment to local services. An authority must not borrow to invest
primarily for financial return.

8. The revised Treasury Management Code will requires an authority to implement the
following: -

1. Adopt a new liability benchmark treasury indicator to support the financing risk
management of the capital financing requirement; this is to be shown in chart form for a
minimum of ten years, with material differences between the liability benchmark and actual
loans to be explained;

2. Long-term treasury investments, (including pooled funds), are to be classed as
commercial investments unless justified by a cash flow business case;

3. Pooled funds are to be included in the indicator for principal sums maturing in years
beyond the initial budget year;

4. Amendment to the knowledge and skills register for officers and members involved in
the treasury management function - to be proportionate to the size and complexity of the
treasury management conducted by each authority;

5. Reporting to members is to be done quarterly. Specifically, the Chief Finance Officer
(CFO) is required to establish procedures to monitor and report performance against all
forward-looking prudential indicators at least quarterly. The CFO is expected to establish a
measurement and reporting process that highlights significant actual or forecast deviations
from the approved indicators. However, monitoring of prudential indicators, including
forecast debt and investments, is not required to be taken to full Council and should be
reported as part of the authority’s integrated revenue, capital and balance sheet
monitoring;

6. Environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues to be addressed within an
authority’s treasury management policies and practices (TMP1).

9.  The main requirements of the Prudential Code relating to service and commercial
investments are: -

1. The risks associated with service and commercial investments should be proportionate to
their financial capacity — i.e. that plausible losses could be absorbed in budgets or
reserves without unmanageable detriment to local services;

2. An authority must not borrow to invest for the primary purpose of commercial return;

< AB,
Report Template v25.0 & %,
Page 90 =WV

Page 2 of 49 DA



10.

11.

It is not prudent for local authorities to make any investment or spending decision that will
increase the CFR, and so may lead to new borrowing, unless directly and primarily related
to the functions of the authority, and where any commercial returns are either related to
the financial viability of the project in question or otherwise incidental to the primary
purpose;

An annual review should be conducted to evaluate whether commercial investments
should be sold to release funds to finance new capital expenditure or refinance maturing
debt;

A prudential indicator is required for the net income from commercial and service
investments as a proportion of the net revenue stream;

Create new Investment Management Practices to manage risks associated with non-
treasury investments, (similar to the current Treasury Management Practices).

An authority’s Capital Strategy or Annual Investment Strategy should include: -

The authority’s approach to investments for service or commercial purposes (together
referred to as non-treasury investments), including defining the authority’s objectives, risk
appetite and risk management in respect of these investments, and processes ensuring
effective due diligence;

An assessment of affordability, prudence and proportionality in respect of the authority’s
overall financial capacity (i.e. whether plausible losses could be absorbed in budgets or
reserves without unmanageable detriment to local services);

Details of financial and other risks of undertaking investments for service or commercial
purposes and how these are managed;

Limits on total investments for service purposes and for commercial purposes respectively
(consistent with any limits required by other statutory guidance on investments);

Requirements for independent and expert advice and scrutiny arrangements (while
business cases may provide some of this material, the information contained in them will
need to be periodically re-evaluated to inform the authority’s overall strategy);

State compliance with paragraph 51 of the Prudential Code in relation to investments for
commercial purposes, in particular the requirement that an authority must not borrow to
invest primarily for financial return;

As this Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy deals
solely with treasury management investments, the categories of service delivery and
commercial investments should be addressed as part of the Capital Strategy report.

Background

12. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash raised

during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to
ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed.
Surplus monies are invested in low-risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the
Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment
return.

< AB,
Report Template v25.0 u?s. :0) &~
Pa%e 91 W
Page™3 of 49 RO



13.

14.

15.

16.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s
capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council,
essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that it can meet its capital spending
obligations. This management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or short-term
loans or using longer-term cash flow surpluses. On occasion, when it is prudent and
economic, any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet risk or cost objectives.

The contribution the treasury management function makes to the Council is critical, as the
balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet spending
commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects. The
treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment income
arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget. Since cash balances generally
result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to ensure adequate security of the sums
invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund Balance.

CIPFA defines treasury management as:

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, including its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with
those risks.”

Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury function,
these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising usually from capital
expenditure), and are separate from the day-to-day treasury management activities.

Reporting Requirements

17.

18.

19.

Capital Strategy

The CIPFA 2021 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local authorities to
prepare a Capital Strategy report which will provide the following: -

¢ a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity contribute to the provision of services;

e an overview of how the associated risk is managed;

e The implications for future financial sustainability.

The aim of the strategy is to ensure that all the councils’s elected members fully understand
the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting Capital Strategy requirements,
governance procedures and risk appetite.

Treasury Management Reporting

The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.

a. Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first,
and most important report is forward looking and covers: -

e the capital plans, (including prudential indicators)

e a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy, (how residual capital expenditure
is charged to revenue over time)

o the Treasury Management Strategy, (how the investments and borrowings are
to be organised), including treasury indicators; and

Report Template v25.0

QB
N

Page 92 \'/\'/ﬁ

Page 4 of 49 DA



e an Annual Investment Strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be
managed)

b. A mid-year treasury management report — This is primarily a progress report and
will update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as
necessary, and whether any policies require revision. In addition the Council will
report performance against all forward-looking prudential indicators quarterly as part
of the quartetly budget monitoring process.

c. An annual treasury report — This is a backward-looking review document and
provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual
treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy.

20. The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being recommended to
the full Council. This role is undertaken by the Audit Committee.

21. Quarterly reports — In addition to the three major reports detailed above, from 2023/24
quarterly reporting (end of June/end of December) is also required. However, these
additional reports do not have to be reported to full Council but do require to be adequately
scrutinised. This role is undertaken by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

Key Notes to the Strategy
22. The key notes and changes from the previous year's strategy are:

1. The Council has not taken on any additional external borrowing in the last 12
months. The level of capital expenditure has been lower than forecast as a result of
slippage in the capital programme and borrowing has remained well within the
operational and authorised boundaries.

The Capital expenditure plans of the Council are expected to involve more borrowing
again in 2023/24 and the years ahead. The borrowing limits proposed in the strategy
have been increased to allow for the additional capital expenditure expected. If the
business plans for the Town Deal projects involve additional borrowing by the
council these limits will need to be reviewed and increased further.

2. The maijority of the new borrowing in future years will be for Capital purposes, but
there will inevitably continue to be a smaller requirement for loans that are revenue
in nature — to cover potential short term cash deficits. Such monies cannot be
borrowed from the Public Works Loan Board, and will be financed from the market or
where there are revenue loans made e.g. to the housing company then from existing
Council reserves.

3. The Council is required to make a Minimum Revenue Provision in respect of its
borrowing — to ensure debt is repaid over an appropriate period. Where the Council
is making significant investments in property, housing or other programmes the
Council’s MRP policy enables the Council to match the principal repayments made
on loans arranged with a near equal MRP payment (an annuity methodology).

4. Investment returns are increasing as the bank base rate is increasing rapidly. The
investing enviroment ramins uncertain. The overall cash returns are expected to
decrease as the Council’s reserves decline.

5. The Council invested some £5m of its reserves in longer period investments e.g.
Property Fund, Diversified Investment fund. There are no proposals to invest more

< AB,
Report Template v25.0 u?s. :0) &~
Pa%e 93 Ve
Page™s of 49 RO



23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

monies for potentially longer periods given the further potential calls on reserves.
The monies in these funds can still be obtained quickly should the need arise.

Balanced Budget

It is a statutory requirement under the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for the Council
to calculate its Council Tax requirement. In particular, Section 31 requires a local authority
in calculating the Council Tax requirement for each financial year to include the revenue
costs that flow from capital financing decisions. Thus, any increases in costs (running costs
& borrowing costs) from new capital projects must be limited to a level which is affordable
within the projected income of the Council for the foreseeable future.

Environmental, Social & Governance (ESG) Considerations

This topic is becoming a more commonplace discussion within the wider investment
community, including Local Authorities. While around two thirds of councils have declared a
“climate emergency” to date, this has not translated into the incorporation of something
more formal within their treasury-related Annual Investment Strategy. Changes to the
CIPFA TM Code 2021 will see ESG incorporated into Treasury Management Practice 1.
The following wording (page 18 of the Treasury Management Code) suggests the scope of
what is included: “The organisation's credit and counterparty policies should set out its
policy and practices relating to environmental, social and governance (ESG) investment
considerations. This is a developing area, and it is not implied that the organisation’s ESG
policy will currently include ESG scoring or other real-time ESG criteria at individual
investment level.”

Furthermore, page 50 of the Treasury Management Code states “ESG issues are
increasingly significant for investors and investment managers. This is better developed in
equity and bond markets than for short-term cash deposits, and there is a diversity of
market approaches to ESG classification and analysis. This means that a consistent and
developed approach to ESG for public service organisations is currently difficult.
Organisations are therefore recommended to consider their credit and counterparty policies
in light of ESG information and develop their own ESG investment policies and treasury
management practices consistent with their organisation’s own relevant policies, such as
environmental and climate change policies.”

The most important issue is ensuring that there is a clear understanding of what
“environmental, social and governance (ESG)” investment considerations means. It is about
understanding the ESG “risks” that an entity is exposed to and evaluating how well it
manages these risks, (all entities will be subject to these to one extent or other). It is NOT
the same as Socially Responsible Investing, (typically where you apply negative screens),
and equally, it is NOT the same as Sustainable Investing, (investing in products /
companies based on expected sustainable and beneficial societal impact, alongside a
financial return).

There is such a huge potential for misunderstanding which could have material unintended
consequence i.e., limiting of potential counterparty options, thus decreasing diversification.
The above could then lead to authorities widening credit criteria to take on more names, or
those with a stronger “ESG” performance, which could then increase credit risk...which
would place the cornerstone of prudent investing at risk.

The other factor, i.e., what local authorities can or already do to take this into account, is
credit ratings. All the main agencies are now extoling how they incorporate ESG risks
alongside more traditional financial risk metrics when assessing counterparty ratings. As
such, you could argue that their incorporation is already being done, to an extent, by the
use of mainstream rating agencies.

Report Template v25.0

S Aoy, .
Page 94 \'/\'/ﬁ

Page 6 of 49 DA



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

Also, a final note to point out is that given ESG risks are all about potential impact on entity
enterprise value; the “G” is by far the most important one when considering treasury
investments, the majority of which will be shorter-term in nature. This is because poor
governance can have a more immediate impact on the financial circumstances of an entity
and the potential for a default event that would impact the amount the local authorities
receive back from their investments. Those financial institutions that are viewed as having
poor/weak corporate governance are generally less well rated in the first instance or have a
higher propensity for being subject to negative rating action. So, this element of ESG is of
high importance to an investor that is following investment guidance with the security,
liquidity and yield (SLY) principle at its core. Environmental & Social factors are also
important, but more for the long-term impact, unless you are specifically going down the
“impact” / “sustainable” type investment route...and there are not many options for that in
respect of short-term investments.

PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY LIMITS FOR 2023/24 TO 2025/26
The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators)

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital
expenditure plans.

The prudential code requires the local authority to identify prudential indicators that
enable members, officers and the public to make a meaningful judgement on the
Council’s total exposure from borrowing and investment decisions. The indicators
are required to cover both the Council’s current position and the expected position
assuming all planned investments in the forthcoming years are completed.

This part of the report is structured to update:

e The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
e How these plans are being financed;

e The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential
indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and

e Reviewing the limits in place for borrowing activity.
Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans,
both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. The table
summarises how the capital expenditure plans are being financed by capital or
revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a funding borrowing need.

Report Template v25.0 N o/

\QE ABO(/)

Pag/e 95 \/Q/«‘?

Page™7 of 49 DA



Actual Budget | Forcast | Budget | Budget | Budget
2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Capital Expenditure 4,614 26,380 17,593 30,716 14,524 2,591

Financed by:

Capital receipts 60 5,000 0 0 0 0
Capital grants 3,192 8,943 9,687 5,347 3,243 2,056
Reserves 407 4,246 0 0 0 0
Revenue 0 0 0 0 0 0
Borrowing 955 8,191 7,906 25,369 11,281 535

Capital Expenditure — Financing

34. The table above summarises the capital expenditure plans and how these plans are
being financed — either by own resources e.g. Section 106, Capital receipts or
through borrowing. New Capital schemes will generally be financed by borrowing,
unless Capital receipts from the sale of assets are available. If capital receipts can
be generated from asset sales the amount of borrowing shown above may
decrease.

35. The schemes in the capital programme which are expected to require financing (as
least in part) from borrowing in 2023/24 are:

Cornwallis Street Development (£9m)

Housing Acquisition Programme 50 units of Temporary Accomodation (£4.7m)
Mayfield E — Housing (£3.5m)

Bexhill Road South (£2.5m)

Energy — Unallocated (£2.3m)

Cliff Railways (£1m)

Annual programme of roof refurbishment (£700k)
Grounds Maintenance Equipment (£626k)

Energy — Solar Panels (£500k)

Priory Meadow Contribution to Capital Works (£288k)
Restoration of Pelham Crescent / Pelham Arcade (£100k)
Conversion of 12-13 York Buildings (£74k)

Groyne Refurbishment (£35k)

Impact on the prudential indicators

36. The treasury indicators for borrowing activity are the Authorised Limit and the
Operational Boundary for external debt.

Report Template v25.0 N o/

€ ABo,,
N
7S

Page 96 IW/¢

Page 8 of 49 DA




37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

The Authorised Limit, which is a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited,
needs to be set or revised by the full Council; it is a statutory duty under Section 3
(1) of the Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations. It reflects the
level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term. It is
the expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected

movements.

Authorised Limit 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Debt 110,000 | 110,000 | 135,000 | 135,000 | 135,000

Other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

TOTAL 115,000 | 115,000 | 140,000 | 140,000 [ 140,000

The Operational Boundary is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally

expected to exceed.

Operational Boundary 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Debt 105,000 | 105,000 | 130,000 | 130,000 | 130,000

Other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000

TOTAL 110,000 | 110,000 | 135,000 | 135,000 | 135,000

Essentially the Council is required to ensure that total capital investment remains
within sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future Council
Tax levels is ‘acceptable’.

Whilst termed an "Affordable Borrowing Limit", the capital plans to be considered for
inclusion in the Capital programme incorporate financing by both external borrowing
as well as other forms of liability e.g. Credit arrangements (such as leases).

The Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary are to be set, on a rolling basis, for
the forthcoming financial year and two successive financial years by full Council as
part of this strategy.

The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ plans, or
those of a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised.

Given the current level of capital expenditure plans for the years ahead it is
recommened that the limits are each increased by £25m to allow sufficient
headroom for our capital aspirations.

PROSPECTS FOR INTEREST RATES

The Council has appointed Link Group, Link Treasury Services Limited as its
external treasury management advisor. Part of their service is to assist the Council
to formulate a view on interest rates. Link provided the following forecasts on
19/12/2022. These are forecasts for certainty rates, gilt yields plus 80 bps.The table
below provides an overview (please also see Appendix 2).

Report Template v25.0

AB,

?Os/
))L
o
(J
&
%%

. Q
Ysag®

Pa%e 97

Page™ of 49



Link Group Interest Rate View 19.12.22

Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25 Dec-25

BANK RATE 3.50 4.25 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.00 3.75 3.50 3.25 3.00 2,75 2.50 2.50
3 month ave eamings 3.60 4.30 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.00 3.80 3.30 3.00 3.00 2.80 2.50 2.50
6 month ave eamings 4.20 4.50 4.60 4.50 4.20 4.10 3.90 3.40 3.10 3.00 2.90 2.60 2.60

12 month ave earnings 4.70 4.70 4.70 4.50 4.30 4.20 4.00 3.50 3.20 3.10 3.00 2.70 2.70

Syr PWLB 4.20 4.20 4.20 4.10 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.80 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.20 3.10

10 yr PWLB 4.30 4.40 4.40 4.30 4.10 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.60 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.30

25yr PWLB 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.50 4.40 4.20 4.10 4.00 3.90 3.70 3.60 3.50 3.50

50 yr PWLB 4.30 4.30 4.30 4.20 4.10 3.90 3.80 3.70 3.60 3.50 3.30 3.20 3.20

43. Economic and interest rate forecasting remains difficult with so many external
influences weighing on the UK. The above forecasts, (and MPC decisions), will be
liable to further amendment depending on how economic data and developments in
financial markets transpire over the next year. Geopolitical developments could also
have a major impact. Forecasts for average investment earnings beyond the three-
year time horizon will be heavily dependent on economic and political
developments.

44. The central forecast reflects a view that the MPC will be keen to demonstrate its
anti-inflation credentials by delivering a succession of rate increases. This has
happened throughout 2022, but the new Government’s policy of emphasising fiscal
rectitude will probably mean Bank Rate does not now need to increase to further
than 4.5%.

45. Further down the road, we anticipate the Bank of England will be keen to loosen
monetary policy when the worst of the inflationary pressures have lessened — but
that timing will be one of fine judgment: cut too soon, and inflationary pressures may
well build up further; cut too late and any downturn or recession may be prolonged.

46. The CPI measure of inflation will peak at close to 11% in Q4 2022. Despite the
cost-of-living squeeze that is still taking shape, the Bank will want to see evidence
that wages are not spiralling upwards in what is evidently a very tight labour market.
Wage increases, excluding bonuses, are currently running at 5.7%.

47. Regarding the plan to sell £10bn of gilts back into the market each quarter
(Quantitative Tightening), this has started but will focus on the short to medium end
of the curve for the present. This approach will prevent any further disruption to the
longer end of the curve following on from the short-lived effects of the
Truss/Kwarteng unfunded dash for growth policy.

48. In the upcoming months, our forecasts will be guided not only by economic data
releases and clarifications from the MPC over its monetary policies and the
Government over its fiscal policies, but the on-going conflict between Russia and
Ukraine. More recently, the heightened tensions between China/Taiwan/US also
have the potential to have a wider and negative economic impact.

49. On the positive side, consumers are still estimated to be sitting on over £160bn of
excess savings left over from the pandemic so that will cushion some of the impact
of the above challenges. However, most of those are held by more affluent people
whereas lower income families already spend nearly all their income on essentials
such as food, energy and rent/mortgage payments.

50. An economic review from the Council’s treasury advisors is included in Appendix 3.
Such forecasts are being kept under regular review.

& ABO,
Report Template v25.0 i\\QO l(/) >

Page 98 IW/¢

Page 10 of 49 DA



Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) Rates

51. Yield curve movements have become less volatile under the Sunak/Hunt
government. PWLB 5 to 50 years Certainty Rates are, generally, in the range of
3.75% to 4.50%. The medium to longer part of the yield curve is currently inverted
(vields are lower at the longer end of the yield curve compared to the short to
medium end).

52. Link Group view the markets as having built in, already, nearly all the effects on gilt
yields of the likely increases in Bank Rate and the poor inflation outlook but markets
are volatile and further whipsawing of gilt yields across the whole spectrum of the
curve is possible.

The balance of risks to the UK economy:

53. The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is to the downside.
Indeed, the Bank of England projected two years of negative growth in their
November Quarterly Monetary Policy Report.

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates include:

e Labour and supply shortages prove more enduring and disruptive and depress
economic activity (accepting that in the near-term this is also an upside risk to
inflation and, thus, rising gilt yields).

e The Bank of England acts too quickly, or too far, over the next two years to raise
Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be
weaker than we currently anticipate.

e UK/ EU trade arrangements — if there was a major impact on trade flows and
financial services due to complications or lack of co-operation in sorting out
significant remaining issues.

e Geopolitical risks, for example in Ukraine/Russia, China/Taiwan/US, Iran, North
Korea and Middle Eastern countries, which could lead to increasing safe-haven
flows.

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates:

e The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank
Rate and, therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly and for
a longer period within the UK economy, which then necessitates an even more
rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster than we currently expect.

e The Government acts too slowly to increase taxes and/or cut expenditure to
balance the public finances, in the light of the cost-of-living squeeze.

e The pound weakens because of a lack of confidence in the UK Government’s
fiscal policies, resulting in investors pricing in a risk premium for holding UK
sovereign debt.

e Longer term US treasury yields rise strongly, if inflation numbers disappoint on
the upside, and pull gilt yields up higher than currently forecast.

Report Template v25.0 P s

| Page 99 ‘WG
Page91 of 49 Ogg



54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

Borrowing advice from Link Group: Our long-term (beyond 10 years) forecast for
Bank Rate stands at 2.5%. As all PWLB certainty rates are now above this level,
borrowing strategies will need to be reviewed in that context. Better value can
generally be obtained at the shorter end of the curve and short-dated fixed LA to LA
monies should be considered. Temporary borrowing rates are likely, however, to
remain near Bank Rate and may also prove attractive whilst the market waits for
inflation, and therein gilt yields, to drop back later in 2023.

Link Group’s suggested budgeted earnings rates for investments up to about three
months’ duration in each financial year are as follows: -

Average earnings in each year _

2022/23 (remainder) 3.95%
2023/24 4.40%
2024/25 3.30%
2025/26 2.60%
2026/27 2.50%

Years 6 to 10 2.80%
Years 10+ 2.80%

As there are so many variables at this time, caution must be exercised in respect of
all interest rate forecasts.

Link Group’s interest rate forecast for Bank Rate is in steps of 25 bps, whereas
PWLB forecasts have been rounded to the nearest 10 bps and are central forecasts
within bands of + / - 25 bps. Naturally, Link Group continue to monitor events and
will update their forecasts as and when appropriate.

BORROWING STRATEGY

The capital expenditure plans set out in the budget provide details of the service
activity of the Council. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s
cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that
sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity. This will involve both the
organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of
appropriate borrowing facilities.

Current Portfolio Position

59. The Council’s forecast debt position for 31 March 2023, if no further borrowing is
taken for the rest of the financial year, as at 12 January 2023, amounted to £65.4m
(See Table 1 below).

Table 1 - Borrowing
Report Template v25.0 i\\qt Py, RS

Page 100 VL

ge 12 of 49 DA



60.

61.

Debt L AP"'_2022 Start Date | Maturity Date <A M?rc!\ AL Rate
Principal Principal
PWLB £7,500,000] 25/05/2007 01/02/2033 £7,500,000| 4.80%
PWLB £909,027| 04/09/2014 02/09/2044 £909,027| 3.78%
PWLB (Optivo) £1,788,235| 04/09/2014 02/09/2044 £1,788,235| 3.78%
PWLB (FT) (Annuity) £125,981| 21/03/2016 20/03/2026 £95,262| 1.66%
PWLB £1,000,000] 11/05/2016 11/05/2056 £1,000,000] 2.92%
PWLB £1,000,000| 11/05/2016 11/05/2046 £1,000,000] 3.08%
PWLB £1,000,000] 11/05/2016 11/05/2036 £1,000,000| 3.01%
PWLB £1,000,000| 11/05/2016 11/05/2026 £1,000,000| 2.30%
PWLB £2,000,000] 24/06/2016 24/06/2054 £2,000,000] 2.80%
PWLB £1,000,000| 24/06/2016 24/06/2028 £1,000,000| 2.42%
PWLB £2,000,000| 21/03/2017 21/03/2057 £2,000,000] 2.53%
PWLB £2,000,000] 21/03/2017 19/09/2059 £2,000,000] 2.50%
PWLB £2,000,000] 23/03/2017 23/03/2060 £2,000,000] 2.48%
PWLB (Annuity) £6,772,356| 01/06/2017 01/06/2057 £6,652,722| 2.53%
PWLB (Annuity) £7,860,481| 22/11/2017 22/11/2057 £7,729,610] 2.72%
PWLB £2,000,000] 12/12/2018 12/06/2028 £2,000,000] 1.98%
PWLB (Annuity) £3,820,026] 13/12/2018 13/12/2058 £3,756,930] 2.55%
PWLB (Annuity) £2,387,758| 31/01/2019 31/01/2059 £2,348,400| 2.56%
PWLB (Annuity) £4,273,795| 31/01/2019 31/01/2069 £4,226,034| 2.56%
PWLB (Annuity) £8,976,150| 20/03/2019 20/03/2059 £8,827,583| 2.54%
PWLB (Annuity) £4,649,533| 02/09/2019 02/09/2069 £4,587,401| 1.83%
PWLB £2,000,000] 13/01/2022 13/01/2062 £2,000,000] 1.89%
Total Debt £66,063,342 £65,421,204| 2.81%
The Council has loaned money to four other organisations. Six longer-term loans
are outstanding. Namely:
Table 2 - Loans to Other Organisations
.. Rate/ Outl.:,:::‘li:r:; as
3rd Party Organisations Return| Start Date | End Date at 31/03/2023 Type
(%) :
Amicus /Optivo 3.78% | 04/09/2014| 02/09/2044 £1,788,235|Maturity
The Foreshore Trust 1.66% | 21/03/2016| 20/03/2026 £95,262|Annuity
The Source 2.43% | 17/12/2015| 17/12/2025 £8,144|Annuity
Sub-Total £1,891,641
Hastings Housing Company
Hastings Housing Company - Loan 1| 4.48% | 28/02/2018| 28/02/2058 £784,676|Maturity
Hastings Housing Company - Loan 2| 4.84% | 12/02/2019| 12/02/2059 £344,810|Maturity
Hastings Housing Company - Loan 3| 4.84% | 13/06/2019| 13/06/2059 £4,359,912|Maturity
Sub-Total £5,489,398
Total £7,381,039

Borrowing from the PWLB was taken to fund the Amicus Horizon (now Optivo) loan
(£1,788,235 - maturity loan) and the loan to the Foreshore Trust (£300,000 originally
borrowed — annuity loan); these correspond to PWLB loans in Table 1 above. The

Report Template v25.0

Page

Pagrie 101

3 of 49

¢ ABQ,
ISP
VA £
e &
Ysag®




62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

£25,000 loan to the Source is repayable over a 10 year period and is financed from
HBC reserves.

Borrowing from the PWLB was taken to fund the loans to Hastings Housing
Company Ltd (HHC). The three loans, totalling £5,489,398, are maturity loans and
will be due for repayment by HHC at the end of their term.

Borrowing Limit — Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

The second prudential indicator is the Authority’s Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR). The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which
has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a
measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure which
has not been funded from grants, revenue, reserves or capital receipts will increase
the CFR.

The Council has at the time of writing some £65.4m of PWLB debt. To borrow for
the remainder of the 2022/23 capital programme i.e. up to the projected level of the
CFR (£78.2m) it would need to borrow a further £12.8m by the end of March 2023.
The Capital Financing Requirement has increased significantly over the last few
years. It is expected to reach some £110.3m by 2024/25 (based on the capital
programme).

As a key indicator the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except
in the short term, exceed the total of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) in
the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2022/23 and the
following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing
for future years but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or
speculative purposes.

The Council’s underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed to rise indefinitely.
Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly charged to
revenue over the life of the asset. The Council is required to make an annual
revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), to reduce the CFR.
This is effectively a repayment of the borrowing need. This differs from the treasury
management arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital
commitments. External debt can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this
does not change the CFR.

The total CFR can also be reduced by:

(i) the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital
receipts); or

(ii) charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP).

The Council had achieved a near fully funded position at the start of 2020/21 which
put the Council in a good position when the pandemic hit. This means that the
capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has been fully funded
with loan debt. This strategy had been considered prudent as borrowing costs had
been increasing. However, there is a cost of doing this as investment returns are

Report Template v25.0 N

€ ABo,,
N
7S

PaF%e 102 W/

ge 14 of 49 DA



low compared to borrowing costs and counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to
be considered.

69. However during 2020/21 and much of 2021/22, interest rates looked set to remain
low for a period of time and thus there was a stronger case to not borrow externally
until we really had to i.e. temporarily use existing resources. This was the strategy
that was proposed for 2021/22 (as far as practical) and has saved on borrowing
costs and assisted the Council’s revenue account. There is however only a limited
ability to do this given the depletion of Council reserves, and funds already invested
for longer periods.

70. For 2021/22 the Council started the year with internal borrowing of £7.994m - cash
supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a
temporary measure to fund the Capital expenditure. With interest rates now
increasing and forecast to increase further over the coming years, the Council will
need to externalise some of this internal borrowing. This process has already begun
with the Council taking a new £2m, 40 year maturity loan from the PWLB on 13t
January 2022. The rapid rate of the rise of interest rated during 2022 has caught the
Council somewhat off guard with the potential cost of borrowing now jepodising
some capital schemes.

71. To finance the future Capital programme will require substantial new borrowing by
the Council. The key considerations are when to borrow and the level of internal
borrowing. The Chief Finaince Officer will make these dicisions in conjunction with
advice and guidance from our treasury advisors. Current guidance suggest that
interest rates will peak in December 2023 so the strategy will be looking at untalising
internal borrowing as much as possible to see us through untill the expected lower
rate environment. Where borrowing is required the option of borrowing short-term
will be considered rather than locking into to higher rates for a prolonged period.
Some longer term borrowing will be required and will be encouraged where
affordable as it reduced the risk of future adverse movements in interest rates.

The table below provides an estimate of the Council’'s Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) for the current and next 3 years.

Table 3 - Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
CFR (unaudited) (Estimate) | (Estimate) | (Estimate) | (Estimate)
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
CFR-Opening 72,683 71,970 78,169 101,589 110,303
Less MRP (1,668) (1,707) (1,950) (2,567) (3,127)
Plus New Borrowing 955 7,906 25,369 11,281 535
CFR Closing 71,970 78,169 101,589 110,303 107,711

72. The table below highlights the Council’s projected gross borrowing position against
the CFR (showing the level that is financed from internal borrowing).

Table 4 - Council’s Projected Gross Borrowing Position Against the CFR

Report Template v25.0 %\\“E.AB;’O»O&
Pagrie 103 \/\/~
Page 15 of 49 Dpp



2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26
Internal Borrowing Actual Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£000's | £000's | £000's £000's £000's £000's
Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) 72,683 71,970 78,169 | 101,589 | 110,303 | 107,711
External Borrowing 64,690 | 66,063 73,327 98,038 | 108,645 | 107,711
Net Internal Borrowing 7,994 5,907 4,842 3,551 1,658 0

73. The Council is now (12 January 2023) maintaining an under-borrowed position.

Borrowing activity is constrained by prudential indicators particularly the CFR, and
by the authorised limit. The Council’s long term borrowing must only be for a capital
purpose. This essentially means that the Council is not borrowing to support

revenue expenditure.

Table 5 - External Debt, Authorised Limits and CFR Projections

160,000

140,000

120,000

100,000

80,000

£000's

60,000

40,000

20,000

Operational

1
100,000

90,000

mmm External Debt

Boundary

oy
10,000

oy
110,000

e A uthorised Limit

=== Capital Financing Requirement

115,000
110,000
101,5

)
135,000

110,303

2018/19

Debt Profile and CFR
74.

2019/20

2023/24

2024/25

MRP payments are made. The yellow line shows the level of external debts
reducing as principal repayments are made (see debt maturity graph below).

40,000

)
135,000-135,000

107,711

The graph below shows how the CFR (blue and purple lines) reduce over time as

Report Template v25.0

PaF%

e 104

ge 16 of 49

S

. Q
Ysag®




120,000,000
£ ’ Debt Profile Vs CFR atJanuary 2023
~
I\ .
100,000,000 { RN - —
I ] Q = + CFR-Opening
| - NG ——MRP
[] ~
] . N N = CFR- Closing
80,000,000 7, N~ O Debt o/s year end
. N o
/ N
¢ N
60,000,000 / -
! N ~
/ NS
! N
/. .
40,000,000 +—/ )
/ N o
/, N
\.Q
20,000,000 4 - Q
=. _
it NS
- : ‘ ‘ : : ‘ : T ————
Ny Ny el “) ] “g % g ] ") ] > > Y]
i -|5¢\Nq,\'\’\q’\q'\q’lc\'\'q,\q'\%\m’\%b\%(\’\b"\,\g\b‘c&h\b‘\o’@\%c&"’\%g\bf\,\%\b\b\(o
e S S S & g g & & & & 4P &

75.

76.

77.

78.

The graph above is based on the current known capital programme up to 2025/26. If
further capital expenditure is finance by borrowing, which is highly likely, then this
will push the trajectory of the graph out into further years and increase future MRP
payment.

Liability Benchmark

A third and new prudential indicator for 2023/24 is the Liability Benchmark (LB).
The Authority is required to estimate and measure the LB for the forthcoming
financial year and the following two financial years, as a minimum, however CIPFA
strongly recommends that the LB is produced for at least 10 years and should
ideally cover the full debt maturity profile of the local acthority.

There are four components to the LB:

1. Existing loan debt outstanding: the Authority’s existing loans that are still
outstanding in future years.

2. Loans CFR: this is calculated in accordance with the loans CFR definition in
the Prudential Code and projected into the future based on approved
prudential borrowing and planned MRP.

3. Net loans requirement: this will show the Authority’s gross loan debt less
treasury management investments at the last financial year-end, projected
into the future and based on its approved prudential borrowing, planned MRP
and any other major cash flows forecast.

4. Liability benchmark (or gross loans requirement): this equals net loans
requirement plus short-term liquidity allowance.

CIPFA notes on page 13 of the 2021 TM Code: “The liability benchmark should be
analysed as part of the annual treasury management strategy, and any substantial
mismatches between actual loan debt outstanding and the liability benchmark

Report Template v25.0

EA30(/
%
i

e 105 V%4

Page 7 of 49 U5



79.

should be explained. Any years where actual loans are less than the benchmark
indicate a future borrowing requirement; any years where actual loans outstanding
exceed the benchmark represent an overborrowed position, which will result in
excess cash requiring investment (unless any currently unknown future borrowing
plans increase the benchmark loan debt requirement). The treasury strategy should
explain how the treasury risks inherent in these mismatched positions will be
managed.”

The Liability Benchmark for the Council is shown in the chart below.

£ thousands

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

-20,000

Year

80.

Liability Benchmark

50
0/51
1/52
‘
‘
55
:
:
:
=

2020421
202122
2022/23
2023/24
202425
2025/26
202627
2027/28
2028/29
2029/30
2030/31
2031/32
2032/33
2033/34
2034/35
2035/36
2036/37
2037/38
2038/39
2039/40
204041
2041/42
204243
2043/44
204445
2045/46
204647
2047/48
2048/49
2049/
205
205
208
2053/
2054/
2055/
2055/
2057/

5

.
206162
2062/63
2063/64
206465
2065/66
2066/67
2067/68
2068/69
2089/70

e Existing loan debt outstanding Forecast netloan debt (net loan requirement)

Loans CFR e Gross loans requirement (benchmark)

Some analysis on the lines on the chart above is provided below:

e Existing Loan Debt Outstanding (black line) — The line shows the external
loans that the Council has with the PWLB and how the value decreases over
time as the principal is repaid.

e Loans CFR (green line) — This line shows the Capital Finaincing Requirement
for the Council. The line decreases as annual MRP payments are made.

¢ Net Loan Debt (yellow dotted line) — This line shows the Council’s debt (CFR)
less the value of any external investments it has made i.e. the net debt. You
can see that in 2057/58 the line goes below zero and becomes negative. This
is because the value of external investments the council is forcasitng to be
holding is greater that the level of debt that the council has.

e Groass loans requirement (red line) — this line very closely mirrors the Net
Loan Debt (yellow dotted) line. It essentially shows the same thing but with an
added liquidity allowance — essentially a working balance for the councils
treasuty activities. This level has been set at £6m to match the councils

A
Report Template v25.0 Y

& ABQ,

&

Page 106 VL

ge 18 of 49 DA

2070/71



81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

minimum recommended level of reserves (but in the chart has been inflated by
2% annually so that it maintains it's value in real terms).

It should be noted that the Libality Benchmark is only a snapshot in time and as
capital expendite plans evolve further borrowing is likely to be incurred which will
increase the CFR and push the point at which the lines move towards zero further
out into future years.

Borrowing — Overall Limits

In determining what is a prudent level of borrowing, the Council needs to ensure that
it would still be able to provide core services if its investments or income generating
initiatives failed — at least in part. As a guide each £1m of new borrowing, financing
an asset with a life of 40 years would currently cost the Council some 7% p.a.
(based on a maturity loan with a 4.5% interest rate) i.e. £70,000 p.a.

In taking on significant levels of additional debt the Council has to ensure that it can
afford to do so. It also needs to ensure that it has an affordable exit strategy in the
event that expected returns are not realised. Where property is concerned there is
normally an asset to dispose of and such schemes are not therefore at the higher
end of the risk spectrum. It is considered that the Council currently has sufficient
reserves to ensure that it could dispose of assets in a reasonable period and not be
forced into an immediate fire sale. In the event that property values fell by say 20%
the Council would not be forced to sell assets providing the rental streams were
secure.

Borrowing — Certainty Rate

The Council again registered for the PWLB certainty rate earlier in the year which
has given a 20 basis point reduction in the average rate of borrowing. The Council
will look to do so again annually — for as long as it remains available.

Borrowing — Change of Sentiment

In normal circumstances the main sensitivities of the forecast are likely to be the two
scenarios noted below. The Chief Finance Officer, in conjunction with the treasury
advisors, will continually monitor both the prevailing interest rates and the market
forecasts, adopting the following responses to a change of sentiment:

a. if it were felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and short
term rates, e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession
or of risks of deflation, then long term borrowings will be postponed, and potential
rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term borrowing will be considered.

b. if it were felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in long and
short term rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from a greater than
expected increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in inflation
risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised with the likely action that
fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are still relatively cheap.

Borrowing — Timing

Report Template v25.0 N

\QE ABO(/)

Pagrie 107 W/

Page 9 of 49 DA



86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.

The general aim of this treasury management strategy is to minimise the costs of
borrowing in both the short and longer term. In the short term it can consider
avoiding new borrowing and using cash balances to finance new borrowing (internal
borrowing). However, to minimise longer term costs it needs to borrow when rates
are at lower levels. The timing of new borrowing is therefore important to minimise
the overall costs to the Council.

The Council has previously sought to achieve near full financing of the Capital
programme via external debt over recent years in order to take advantage of the
historically low borrowing rates and avoid the risk of having to lock into high interest
rates when it has no option but to borrow. For the last year a higher level of internal
borrowing was adopted to temporarily finance long life assets. Currently, with
interest rates looking likely to increase further the Council is considering
externalising some of the internal debt to lock in rates at lower levels.

Given that the Council is increasingly using its reserves these need to be readily
available and not subjected to unnecessary risk or exposure.

Summary

No new external borrowing has been taken over the last 12 months but instead the
council has been utalising internal borrowing to minimise interest costs.

The capital expenditure plans require further substantial new borrowing by the
Council. The plans play a large part in the consideration as to when to borrow and
the level of internal borrowing. The Council has taken advantage of other investment
opportunities which have been providing higher returns than the cost of borrowing
e.g. property funds. To date the Council has increased the level of internal funding
in order to save on interest payments as the cost of these exceeds returns that can
be achieved by investing surplus funds in the short term.

For the last few years the cheapest borrowing has been internal borrowing by
running down cash balances and foregoing interest earned at historically low

rates. However, the Council may not have sufficient balances to temporarily finance
all the capital expenditure in 2022/23 and may need to borrow before March 2023.

In view of the overall forecast for long term borrowing rates to increase in the
medium term, consideration has been given to weighing the short term advantage of
internal borrowing against the potential increase in long term costs as rates rise. As
such additional new borrowing will continue to be taken when good opportunities
arise in the interest of minimising the costs of debt over the long term.

The use of PWLB variable rate loans for up to 10 years will still be considered as
they can be repaid early without early redemption premiums. They can also be
converted into longer dated fixed rate debt should it be considered prudent to do so.

The use of fixed rate market loans will also be considered should rates be below
PWLB rates for the equivalent maturity period. The use of either PWLB maturity or
annuity loans will be considered in order to minimise annual borrowing costs.

Policy on borrowing in advance of need

The Council will not borrow more than, or in advance of, its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in

Report Template v25.0 N o/

€ ABo,,
N
7S

Page 108 W

ge 20 of 49 DA



advance will be considered carefully to ensure value for money can be
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.

95. In determining whether borrowing will be undertaken in advance the Council will:

a.

ensure that there is a clear link between the capital programme and maturity
profile of the existing debt portfolio which supports the need to take funding in
advance.

ensure the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the implications for the future
plans and budgets have been considered.

evaluate the economic and market factors that might influence the manner and
timing of any decision to borrow.

consider the merits and demerits of alternative forms of funding.
consider the appropriate funding period.

consider the impact of borrowing in advance on temporarily (until required to
finance capital expenditure) increasing investment cash balances and the
consequent increase in exposure to counterparty risk, and the level of such risks
given the controls in place to minimise them.

96. Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting
mechanism.

Debt Maturity

97. The Graph below shows the profile of when debt (loans from the PWLB) become
repayable. Blue lines indicate maturity loans and red lines indicate annuity loans.

£8,000,000

£7,000,000

£6,000,000

£5,000,000

£4,000,000

£3,000,000

£2,000,000

£1,000,000

£0

23
59

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
2046
2047
2048
2049
2050
2051
2052
2053
2054
205"
2056
2057
2058
20
2060
2061
2062
2063
2064
2065
2066
2067
2068
2069

B Maturity Repayment B Annuity Repayment

98. The Council will need to carefully consider the structure and timing of any new
borrowing to ensure debt does not exceed the CFR in the years ahead.

Report Template v25.0 N

€ ABo,,
N
A

Page 109 VL

Page 21 of 49 'Qﬂsgf

2070



99.

100.

101.

102.

103.

104.

105.

Debt Rescheduling

The Council also keeps under review the potential for making premature debt
repayments in order to reduce borrowing costs as well as reducing counterparty risk
by reducing investment balances. However, the cost of the early repayment
premiums that would be incurred and the increase in risk exposure to significantly
higher interest rates for new borrowing, continue to make this option unattractive.
No debt rescheduling is being contemplated at present.

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:
a. the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings,
b.  helping to fulfil the strategy outlined above

c. enhancing the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the
balance of volatility).

If rescheduling is to be undertaken, it will be reported to the Audit Committee and
Cabinet, at the earliest meeting following its action.

Other Source of Borrowing

Currently the PWLB Certainty Rate is set at gilts + 80 basis points. However,
consideration may still need to be given to sourcing funding from the following
sources for the following reasons:

e Local authorities (primarily shorter dated maturities out to 3 years or so —
generally still cheaper than the Certainty Rate).

e Financial institutions (primarily insurance companies and pension funds but
also some banks, out of forward dates where the objective is to avoid a “cost
of carry” or to achieve refinancing certainty over the next few years).

¢ UK Municipal Bonds Agency and UK Infrastructure Bank

Our advisors will keep us informed as to the relative merits of each of these
alternative funding sources.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

Appendix 1 of this report provides the detail on what the MRP is and the basis of the
calculation. Basically, authorities are required each year to set aside some of their
revenues as provision for debt repayment. Unlike depreciation which is reversed out
of the accounts, this provision has a direct impact on the Council Tax requirement.
The provision is in respect of capital expenditure that is financed by borrowing or
credit arrangements e.g. leases.

The Council is required to make a “Prudent Provision” which basically ensures that
revenue monies are set aside to repay the debt over the useful life of the asset
acquired i.e. the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). This can be achieved by
equal annual instalments (current practice) or an annuity method — annual payments
gradually increasing over the life of the asset. Where an annuity loan is taken, the

Report Template v25.0 5 og0

€ ABo,,
N
7S

PaF%e 110 -‘3\/\/5?

ge 22 of 49 DA



Council’s policy (Appendix 1) was amended to reflect the matching, as far as
possible, of the MRP with the actual principal repaid (within each debt repayment).

106. The MRP for 2023/24 is estimated at £1,949,600 (the statutory charge to revenue
that remains within the accounts).

107. The Government are consulting on amendinig MRP regulations/guidance for
England. One of the revisions likely is to make it clear to all authorities that where
loans have been made for capital purposes to other organisations e.g local authority
companies, housing providers, then provision for debt repayments must be made.
Hastings BC has always done so and is not caught out by this sensible requirement.
The latest information we have is that any changes to the guidance will take effect
from 2024/25 at the earliest.

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY

Investment Policy

108. The Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC - this was
formerly the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG))
and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both financial
and non-financial investments. This report deals solely with treasury (financial)
investments, (as managed by the treasury management team). Non-financial
investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the
Capital Strategy.

109. The Council’s investment policy has regard to the DLUHC’s Guidance on Local
Government Investments (“the Guidance”), the CIPFA Treasury Management in the
Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes 2021 (“the
Code”) and the CIPFA Treasurym Management Guidance Notes 2021.

110. The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second,
and then yield (return). The Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on
its investments commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity and with
the Council’s risk appetite.

111. In the current economic climate, it is considered appropriate to maintain a degree of
liquidity to cover cash flow needs but to also consider “laddering” investments for
periods up to 12 months with high credit rated financial institutions, whilst
investment rates remain elevated, as well as wider range fund options.

112. The above guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA places a high priority on the
management of risk. This Council has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk
and defines its risk appetite by the following means:

a. Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of
highly creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus
avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties
are the short-term and long-term ratings.

b. Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on

\QE ABO(/

A 2
Report Template v25.0 FRTA) §"°

Page 111

Page Z3 of 49 'O/SABL&Q



both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take
account of information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this
consideration the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on
market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on
top of the credit ratings.

c. Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and
other such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to establish the
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment
counterparties.

d. This Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the
treasury management team are authorised to use. There are two lists in Appendix
5 under the categories of ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments.

Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to
a maturity limit of one year or have less than a year left to run to maturity if
originally, they were classified as being non-specified investments solely due to
the maturity period exceeding one year.

Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for
periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments which
require greater consideration by members and officers before being authorised
for use.

e. Lending limits, (amounts and maturity), for each counterparty as set out in the
creditworthiness policy below.

f. Transaction limits are set for each type of investment.

g. Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a
specified minimum sovereign rating.

h. This Council has engaged external consultants (Link Group), to provide expert
advice on how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and yield,
given the risk appetite of the council in the context of the expected level of cash
balances and need for liquidity throughout the year.

i.  All investments will be denominated in sterling.

j- Consideration wil be given to organisations Environmental, Social & Governance
(ESG) credentials, although no scoring will be applied.

kK. As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2022/23 under IFRS 9, the
Council will consider the implications of investment instruments which could result
in an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and resultant
charges at the end of the year to the General Fund. (In November 2018, the
MHCLG, concluded a consultation for a temporary override to allow English local
authorities time to adjust their portfolio of all pooled investments by announcing a
statutory override to delay implementation of IFRS 9 for five years ending

€ ABo,,
Report Template v25.0 N N

Page 112 W/

ge 24 of 49 DA



31/03/2023. In December 2022 a further extension to the over-ride was agreed by
Government until 31/03/2025.

113. However, the Council will also pursue value for money in treasury management and
will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for
investment performance. Regular monitoring of investment performance will be
carried out during the year.

114. There are no changes in our risk management policy and the above criteria remain
unchanged from last year.

115. The borrowing of monies purely to invest or on-lend and make a return is unlawful
and this Council will not engage in such activity.

116. In accordance with guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA, and in order to minimise
the risk to investments, the Council has below clearly stipulated the minimum
acceptable credit quality of counterparties for inclusion on the lending list. The
creditworthiness methodology used to create the counterparty list fully accounts for
the ratings, watches and outlooks published by all three ratings agencies with a full
understanding of what these reflect in the eyes of each agency.

Creditworthiness Policy

117. The Council uses the creditworthiness service provided by Link Group. The potential
counterparty ratings are monitored on a real time basis with knowledge of any
changes notified electronically as the agencies notify modifications. This service
uses a sophisticated modelling approach with credit ratings from all three rating
agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s, forming the core
element. However, it does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of
counterparties but also uses the following as overlays: -

e Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;

e Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads to give early warning of likely changes in
credit ratings;

e Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy
countries.

118. This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks
in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS
spreads for which the end product is a series of colour code bands which indicate
the relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are also used by
the Council to determine the duration for investments and are therefore referred to
as durational bands. This is a service which the Council would not be able to
replicate using in-house resources.

119. The selection of counterparties with a high level of creditworthiness will be achieved
by selection of institutions down to a minimum durational band within Link Group’s
weekly credit list of worldwide potential counterparties. The Council will therefore
use counterparties within the following durational bands: -

e Purple 2 years (but HBC will only invest for up to 1 year — except
Property Fund and Diversified Income Fund)

Report Template v25.0 %\\“E.AB;’O»O&
Page 113 W
Page Z5 of 49 Dpp



e Blue 1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK

Banks)
e Orange 1 year
e Red 6 months
e Green 100 days

e No Colour notto be used

120. The Link Groups’ creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information other
than just primary ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted scoring system, it
does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.

121. Typically, the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally
lower than these ratings but may still be used. In these instances, consideration will
be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information,
to support their use.

122. This Council will not use the approach suggested by CIPFA of using the lowest
rating from all three rating agencies to determine creditworthy counterparties as
Moody’s tend to be more aggressive in giving low ratings than the other two
agencies. This would therefore be unworkable and leave the Council with few banks
on its approved lending list. The Link creditworthiness service does though, use
ratings from all three agencies, but by using a risk based scoring system, does not
give undue weighting to just one agency’s ratings.

123. The Council is alerted to the changes to credit ratings of all three agencies through
its use of the Link creditworthiness service. These are monitored on a daily basis
with lists updated weekly by Link Group. If a downgrade results in the counterparty /
investment scheme no longer meeting the Authority’s minimum criteria, its further
use as a new investment will be withdrawn immediately.

124. Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition, this
Council will also use market data and market information, information on
government support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support.

125. The Council only use approved counterparties from countries with a minimum
sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch Ratings (or equivalent from other agencies
if Fitch does not provide). The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as
at the date of this report are shown in Appendix 6. This list will be added to, or
deducted from, by officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy. The
maximum investment in any non UK country is not to exceed £10m.

Investment Strategy
126. The level of investments can fluctuate significantly on a day to day basis, given the

level of funding received, precept payments, grants payable and receivable, salaries
and wages, etc.

& ABQ,
Report Template v25.0 A

Page 114 W/

ge 26 of 49 DA



127. As at 1 December 2022 the Council had balances amounting to £35.7m. The
monies held are higher than would normally be expected and include monies that
the Council is holding in respect of a number of grant schemes.

128. Priority is given to security and liquidity of investments in order to reduce
counterparty risk to the maximum possible extent. To this end at the start of the
Covid-19 crisis special arrangements were made with the Council’s bankers to be
able to accommodate larger than normal balances and daily transaction amounts
associated with the government’s business grant schemes. The Council is now
again in the position to ensure that its cash balances are spread across numerous
counterparties.

129. The Council has had various investment limits depending upon the credit rating e.g.
£5m with any one institution with a minimum short term rating of F+, and a long term
rating of A+ or above, supported by a red (6 month) rating by Link Group. The £5m
limit generally represents a level of up to 25% of the investment portfolio with any
one institution or group at any one time. It is also necessary, at times, to invest
sums of this size in order to attract the larger institutions which have the higher
credit ratings.

130. The Eurozone and Brexit led to a number of downgrades to banks' credit ratings,
making it increasingly difficult at times to spread investments across a number of
institutions. The Chief Finance Officer has the authority to amend the limits on a
daily basis if necessary, to ensure that monies can be placed with appropriate
institutions. The use of Money Market funds is anticipated and the Council is in the
process of getting setup on a portal to allow access to a diversified range of money
market funds from different providers.

131. The pandemic has impacted on countries around the world and in turn on credit
ratings. The Council follows the Credit ratings of Link Group and the ratings now
enable the Council to invest £6m with any one institution with a minimum short term
rating of F (rather than F+), and a long term rating of A+ and above (Unchanged),
supported by a red (6 month) rating.

Investment Strategy — Property Fund

132. It was agreed in February 2017 that the option for diversification of some of the
investments into a property fund be undertaken with CCLA in the sum of £2m. The
investment being in respect of the Council’s reserves that are not required for a
period of at least 5 years in order that any fall in values and entry costs into such
funds can be covered. The £2m was invested in April 2017 and the performance is
detailed below:

Table 6: CCLA - LA’s Property Prices and Dividend yields

End of| Sep-22 Jun-22 Mar-22 Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-19 Mar-18 Apr-17
Offer Price p 371.27 387.73 368.46 313.45 315.7 327.4 322.40 307.19
Net Asset Value p 347.79 363.21 345.17 293.63 295.74 306.7 302.01 287.77
Bid Price p 342.40 357.58 339.82 289.08 291.15 301.95 297.33 283.31

Dividend* on XD Date p 3.26 2.8523 2.7875 2.9797 3.25 3.31 3.21 -
Dividend* - Last 12 Months p 11.78 11.21 11.22 12.63 13.06 13.08 13.70 13.19
Dividend Yield on NAV % 3.39 3.09 3.13 4.3 4.41 4.26 4.54 4.58

Report Template v25.0 é\\“E.AB:(’» RS
Page 115 W
Page 27 of 49 Usap e



133.

The dividend yield is currently around 3.4% p.a. on the net asset value. Dividends
for the first 2 quarters of 2022/23 amount to £39,811 (£36,178 at the same point last
year). Full year dividends for 2022/23 are estimated at around £80,300 and a similar
return is anticipated for 2023/24.

Table 7: CCLA - Property Fund Capital Value

Units (651,063)

Sep-22

Jun-22

Mar-22

Mar-21

Mar-20

Mar-19

Mar-18

Apr-17

Mid Market Price(£)

2,264,332

2,364,726

2,247,274

1,911,716

1,925,454

1,996,810

1,966,275

1,873,564

Bid Price (£)

2,229,240

2,328,071

2,212,442

1,882,093

1,895,570

1,965,885

1,935,806

1,844,527

134.

135.

136.

137.

138.

The Capital value has increased by 20.86% between April 2017 and September
2022 and is now above that of the original investment made and continues to
recover from the low point experienced in August 2020 following the impact of
Covid-19. It is important that this is continued to be viewed as a longer term
investment (5 years plus).

Diversified Income Fund

It was agreed in February 2019 that a sum of £3m would be made available for
further diversification of the Council’s investments. £1m was invested on 26 July
2019 and a further £2m investment was made on 24 September 2019 into the CCLA
Diversified Income Fund. Anticipated returns were around 3% with the added
advantage of much higher liquidity than the property fund.

The capital value had recovered from the initial investment where charges are
effectively deducted and was valued at £3,012,479 at the end of December 2019.

In March 2020 the market value had fallen to £2.62m but continues to recover and
was valued at £2,717,180 on 30 September 2022 (9.4% below the initial investment
amount). Dividend yield on price was at 2.79% for September 2022 (2.6%
September 2021). Dividends payable for the first 2 quarters of 2022/23 amount to
£44.402 (£39,614 at the same point last year). It should be remembered that this is
a long term investment and prices can go up and down.

Investment Strategy — View on Interest Rates

As the Bank of England (BOE) has increased interest rates investment returns have
increased in line with the increase in base rate. Investment returns are likely to
increase further as additional increases in the base rate are anticipated. The Council
at this time needs access to its cash reserves and as such cannot afford to invest
further longer term — until it achieves a balanced budget or has capital receipts.

Investment Return Expectations

Bank Rate is forecast to peak at 4.5% in the second quarter of 2023 then gradulally
reduce over the following years. However, as has been seen during 2022 the
financial position can often change quickly, and the Council needs to be prepared
for increases in rates. The historic low interest rates that we have been accustomed
to have now gone and we may never see rates at those levels again.

Report Template v25.0 N

\QE ABO(/)

Page 116 SW/E

ge 28 of 49 DA



139.

140.

141.

142.

143.

The Council will look to report on the actual return achieved on its cash investments,
both in terms of percentage and actual cash. It will look to report separately on
different categories of cash investments e.g. Property Fund.

Regeneration and Economic Development — Income Generation

The Council has remained keen to pursue capital schemes that also generate
income. Substantial investments in housing and energy projects will necessitate
new borrowing. The levels of new borrowing that the Council can afford to take on
board will be dependent upon the individual proposals and credit worthiness of the
counterparties involved.

The additional risks that the Council is taking on need to be considered in the
context of the totality of risk that the Council faces e.g. external claims, rates
revaluation, robustness of income streams, economic downturns, etc. Where there
is more risk and volatility in income streams the Council will need to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves to ensure the Council’s ability to deliver key services is
not jeopardised.

Treasury Management Reporting

The Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and
actuals.

a) Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The first,
and most important report is forward looking and covers:

e the capital plans, (including prudential indicators);

e a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy, (how residual capital
expenditure is charged to revenue over time);

¢ the treasury management strategy, (how the investments and borrowings
are to be organised), including treasury indicators; and

e an investment strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be
managed).

b) A mid-year treasury management report — This is primarily a progress report
and will update members on the capital position, amending prudential
indicators as necessary, and whether any policies require revision.

c) An annual treasury report — This is a backward-looking review document and
provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and
actual treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy. At
the end of the financial year, officers will report to Council on its investment
activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report (to be presented by no later than
30 September).

Policy on Use of External Service Providers

The Council uses Link Group, Treasury solutions as its external treasury
management advisors. There is currently value in employing external providers of

Report Template v25.0 N

€ ABo,,
N
7S

Page 117 W/

Page 29 of 49 DA



144.

145.

146.

147.

148.
149.

150.

151.

152.

treasury management services in order to acquire access to credit worthiness
information and specialist advice.

Training

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer (Chief Financial Officer) to ensure
that members with responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training
in treasury management. This especially applies to members responsible for
scrutiny. In terms of treasury management in general, training has been undertaken
by members on an annual basis to date.

Furthermore, the Code state that they expect “all organisations to have a formal and
comprehensive knowledge and skills or training policy for the effective acquisition
and retention of treasury management knowledge and skills for those responsible
for management, delivery, governance and decision making.

As a minimum, authorities should carry out the following to monitor and review
knowledge and skKills:

Record attendance at training and ensure action is taken where poor attendance is
identified.

Prepare tailored learning plans for treasury management officers and key
members.

Require treasury management officers and key members to undertake self-
assessment against the required competencies.

Have regular communication with officers and key members, encouraging them to
highlight training needs on an ongoing basis.

Treasury Management Training was offered to all members on 10th January 2022
and the following year on 11th January 2023. Further training will be arranged as
required.

The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically reviewed.

A formal record of the training received by officers and members central to the
Treasury function is maintained by the Deputy Chief Finance Officer.

MiFID Il (Markets in Financial Instruments Directive)

In brief, this directive requires the Council to distinguish itself as either a retail or
professional client. In order to qualify for professional status, the Council is required
to show that it has more than £10m in investments, invests regularly (more than 10
times a quarter), as well as having appropriately trained and experienced staff.

To date only two counterparties have required us to complete the forms in order to
maintain the existing professional status. The directive became law on 1 January
2018.

The two parties to date are Link Group and CCLA. A schedule of such
counterparties will be maintained, as per the requirements of the Code, should the
list expand further.

Report Template v25.0 N

€ ABo,,
N
7S

PaF%e 118 W/

ge 30 of 49 DA



Scheme of Delegation
153. Please see Appendix 9.
Role of the Section 151 Officer

154. Please see Appendix 10.

Report Template v25.0

Pa
Page

J

e 119

1 0f 49

S ABO(’»



APPENDIX 1
Minimum Revenue Provision — An Introduction

1. What is a Minimum Revenue Provision?

Capital expenditure is generally expenditure on assets which have a life expectancy of
more than one year e.g. buildings, vehicles, machinery etc. It would be impractical to
charge the entirety of such expenditure to revenue in the year in which it was incurred
therefore such expenditure is spread over several years in order to try to match the years
over which such assets benefit the local community through their useful life. The manner
of spreading these costs is through an annual Minimum Revenue Provision, which was
previously determined under Regulation, and will in future be determined under
Guidance.

2. Statutory duty

Under Regulation 27 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England)
Regulations 2003, where the Authority has financed capital expenditure by borrowing it is
required to make a provision each year through a revenue charge (MRP).

The Authority is required to calculate a prudent provision of MRP which ensures that the
outstanding debt liability is repaid over a period that is reasonably commensurate with
that over which the capital expenditure provides benefits. The MRP Guidance (2018)
gives four ready-made options for calculating MRP, but the Authority can use any other
reasonable basis that it can justify as prudent.

The MRP policy statement requires full council approval in advance of each financial
year.

There is no requirement to charge MRP where the Capital Financing Requirement is nil or
negative at the end of the preceding financial year.

3. Government Guidance

Along with the above duty, the Government issued guidance which came into force on
31st March 2008 which requires that a Statement on the Council’s policy for its annual
MRP should be submitted to the full Council for approval before the start of the financial
year to which the provision will relate.

The Council is legally obliged to “have regard” to the guidance, which is intended to
enable a more flexible approach to assessing the amount of annual provision than was
required under the previous statutory requirements. The guidance offers four main
options under which MRP could be made, with an overriding recommendation that the
Council should make prudent provision to redeem its debt liability over a period which is
reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital expenditure is estimated to
provide benefits. The requirement to ‘have regard’ to the guidance therefore means that: -

Although four main options are recommended in the guidance, there is no intention to be
prescriptive by making these the only methods of charge under which a local authority
may consider its MRP to be prudent.

It is the responsibility of each authority to decide upon the most appropriate method of
making a prudent provision, after having had regard to the guidance.

€ ABo,,
Report Template v25.0 N N

PaF%e 120 W/

ge 32 of 49 DA



Option 1: Regulatory Method

Under the previous MRP regulations, MRP was set at a uniform rate of 4% of the
adjusted CFR (i.e. adjusted for “Adjustment A”) on a reducing balance method (which in
effect meant that MRP charges would stretch into infinity). This historic approach must
continue for all capital expenditure incurred in years before the start of this new
approach. It may also be used for new capital expenditure up to the amount which is
deemed to be supported through the Supported Capital Expenditure (SCE) annual
allocation.

Option 2: Capital Financing Requirement Method

This is a variation on option 1 which is based upon a charge of 4% of the aggregate CFR
without any adjustment for Adjustment A, or certain other factors which were brought into
account under the previous statutory MRP calculation. The CFR is the measure of an
authority’s outstanding debt liability as depicted by their balance sheet.

Option 3: Asset Life Method.
This method may be applied to most new capital expenditure, including where desired
that which may alternatively continue to be treated under options 1 or 2.

Under this option, it is intended that MRP should be spread over the estimated useful life
of either an asset created, or other purpose of the expenditure. There are two useful
advantages of this option: -

e Longer life assets e.g. freehold land can be charged over a longer period than
would arise under options 1 and 2.

¢ No MRP charges need to be made until the financial year after that in which an
item of capital expenditure is fully incurred and, in the case of a new asset, comes
into service use (this is often referred to as being an ‘MRP holiday’). This is not
available under options 1 and 2.

There are two methods of calculating charges under option 3:
¢ equal instalment method — equal annual instalments,
e annuity method — annual payments gradually increase during the life of the asset.

Option 4: Depreciation Method

Under this option, MRP charges are to be linked to the useful life of each type of asset
using the standard accounting rules for depreciation (but with some exceptions) i.e. this is
a more complex approach than option 3.

The same conditions apply regarding the date of completion of the new expenditure as
apply under option 3.

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2023/24

The Council implemented the new Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) guidance in
2008/09 and will assess the MRP for 2023/24 in accordance with the main
recommendations contained within the guidance issued by the Secretary of State under
section 21(1A) of the Local Government Act 2003.

Report Template v25.0 %\\“E.AB;’O»O&
Page 121 V%
Page 33 of 49 Dpp



A major proportion of the MRP for 2023/24 relates to the more historic debt liability that
will continue to be charged at the rate of 4%, in accordance with option 1 of the
guidance. Certain expenditure reflected within the debt liability at 31st March 2023 will
under delegated powers be subject to MRP under option 3, which will be charged over a
period which is reasonably commensurate with the estimated useful life applicable to the
nature of expenditure, using the equal annual instalment method. For example, capital
expenditure on a new building, or on the refurbishment or enhancement of a building, will
be related to the estimated life of that building.

Estimated life periods will be determined under delegated powers — subject to the
limitations of the government’s investment requirements (2018). To the extent that
expenditure is not on the creation of an asset and is of a type that is subject to estimated
life periods that are referred to in the guidance, these periods will generally be adopted by
the Council. However, the Council reserves the right to determine useful life periods and
prudent MRP in exceptional circumstances where the recommendations of the guidance
would not be appropriate.

As some types of capital expenditure incurred by the Council are not capable of being
related to an individual asset, asset lives will be assessed on a basis which most
reasonably reflects the anticipated period of benefit that arises from the expenditure.
Also, whatever type of expenditure is involved, it will be grouped together in a manner
which reflects the nature of the main component of expenditure and will only be divided
up in cases where there are two or more major components with substantially different
useful economic lives.

Repayments included in finance leases are applied as MRP. It should also be noted that
in regards of the loans to Optivo (previously Amicus Horizon) in respect of the Coastal
Space scheme, Optivo will meet the costs of the Council PWLB loan (Principal and
Interest) and the Council makes the payments to the PWLB i.e matching the MRP
requirement. Likewise, for any loan to the Foreshore Trust - as the interest and principal
repayments made by the Council to the PWLB are funded in full from the sums payable
by the Trust this matches the MRP requirement for the Council.

Where the Council generates additional income from capital Investments it will look to
make a prudent provision for the repayment of debt over the expected life of the asset. In
doing so, where an annuity loan is taken or may be taken at some stage in the future to
finance the purchase the MRP made will reflect as far as possible the principal element of
the actual loan repayments (rather than accruals). The interest rate to be calculated at the
outset being determined by the Chief Finance Officer.

Capital expenditure incurred during 2022/23 will not be subject to an MRP charge until
2023/24, or in the year after the asset becomes operational.

MRP in respect of assets acquired under Finance Leases or PFI will be charged at an
amount equal to the principal element of the annual repayment.

MRP Overpayments - Under the MRP guidance, any charges made in excess of the
statutory MRP can be made, known as voluntary revenue provision (VRP).

VRP can be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent. In order for these
amounts to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must disclose the cumulative
overpayment made each year. Cumulative VRP overpayments made to date are £0m.

€ ABo,,
Report Template v25.0 N N

Page 122 W/

ge 34 of 49 DA



APPENDIX 2 - Interest Rate Forecasts
Link Group Interest rate forecast — Dec 2022 — March 2025

Link Group Interest Rate View 19.12.22

Dec-22 Mar-23 Jun-23 Sep-23 Dec-23 Mar-24 Jun-24 Sep-24 Dec-24 Mar-25 Jun-25 Sep-25 Dec-25

BANK RATE 3.50 4.25 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.00 3.75 3.50 3.25 3.00 275 2.50 2.50
3 month ave eamings 3.60 4.30 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.00 3.80 3.30 3.00 3.00 2.80 2.50 2.50
6 month ave eamings 4.20 4.50 4.60 4.50 4.20 410 3.90 3.40 3.10 3.00 2.90 2.60 2.60
12 month ave earnings 4.70 4.70 4.70 4.50 4.30 4.20 4.00 3.50 3.20 3.10 3.00 2.70 2.70
5yr PWLB 4.20 4.20 4.20 410 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.60 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.20 3.10
10 yr PWLB 4.30 4.40 4.40 4.30 4.10 4.00 3.90 3.80 3.60 3.50 3.40 3.30 3.30
25yr PWLEB 4.60 4.60 4.60 4.50 4.40 4.20 410 4.00 3.90 3.70 3.60 3.50 3.50
50 yr PWLB 4.30 4.30 4.30 4.20 4.10 3.90 3.80 3.70 3.60 3.50 3.30 3.20 3.20
Nﬂe: PWLB rates and forecast shown above have taken into account the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012.
g
D
H
N
w
Report Template v25.0 é\\‘“;AB:%ﬁ&

Page 35 Usupd



APPENDIX 3 - Economic Review (by Link Group)

ECONOMIC BACKGROUND

Against a backdrop of stubborn inflationary pressures, the easing of Covid restrictions in most
developed economies, the Russian invasion of Ukraine, and a range of different UK
Government policies, it is no surprise that UK interest rates have been volatile right across the
curve, from Bank Rate through to 50-year gilt yields, for all of 2022.

Market commentators’ misplaced optimism around inflation has been the root cause of the rout
in the bond markets with, for example, UK, EZ and US 10-year yields all rising by over 200bps
since the turn of the year. The table below provides a snapshot of the conundrum facing central
banks: inflation is elevated but labour markets are extra-ordinarily tight, making it an issue of
fine judgment as to how far monetary policy needs to tighten.

UK Eurozone us
Bank Rate 3.5% 2.0% 4.25%-4.50%
GDP -0.2%q/q Q3 +0.2%q/q Q3 2.6% Q3 Annualised
(2.4%yly) (2.1%yly)
Inflation 10.7%yly (Nov) 10.1%yly (Nov) 7.1%yly (Nov)
UnemRr’)onment 3.7% (Oct) 6.5% (Oct) 3.7% (Nov)
ate

Q2 of 2022 saw UK GDP revised upwards to +0.2% qg/q, but this was quickly reversed in the
third quarter, albeit some of the fall in GDP can be placed at the foot of the extra Bank Holiday
in the wake of the Queen’s passing. Nevertheless, CPI inflation has picked up to what should
be a peak reading of 11.1% in October, although with further increases in the gas and electricity
price caps pencilled in for April 2023, and the cap potentially rising from an average of £2,500 to
£3,000 per household, there is still a possibility that inflation will spike higher again before
dropping back slowly through 2023.

The UK unemployment rate fell to a 48-year low of 3.6%, and this despite a net migration
increase of c500k. The fact is that with many economic participants registered as long-term
sick, the UK labour force actually shrunk by c£500k in the year to June. Without an increase in
the labour force participation rate, it is hard to see how the UK economy will be able to grow its
way to prosperity, and with average wage increases running at over 6% the MPC will be
concerned that wage inflation will prove just as sticky as major supply-side shocks to food and
energy that have endured since Russia’s invasion of Ukraine on 22nd February 2022.

Throughout Q3 Bank Rate increased, finishing the quarter at 2.25% (an increase of 1%). Q4
has seen rates rise to 3% in November and the market expects Bank Rate to hit 4.5% by May
2023.

Following a Conservative Party leadership contest, Liz Truss became Prime Minister for a
tumultuous seven weeks that ran through September and December. Put simply, the markets
did not like the unfunded tax-cutting and heavy spending policies put forward by her Chancellor,
Kwasi Kwarteng, and their reign lasted barely seven weeks before being replaced by Prime
Minister Rishi Sunak and Chancellor Jeremy Hunt. Their Autumn Statement of 17" November
gave rise to a net £55bn fiscal tightening, although much of the “heavy lifting” has been left for
the next Parliament to deliver. However, the markets liked what they heard, and UK gilt yields
have completely reversed the increases seen under the previous tenants of No10/11 Downing
Street. ,,»N

Globally, though, all the major economies are expected to struggLe uﬁ the near term. The fall
below 50 in the composite Purchasing Manager Indices for thewktks kbSpEZ and China all point

NE ABg,,

Report Template v25.0 5 Wé&
< &
Pagg 2o RAD

O’SAB\S’«Q




to at least one if not more quarters of GDP contraction. In November, the MPC projected eight
quarters of negative growth for the UK lasting throughout 2023 and 2024, but with Bank Rate
set to peak at lower levels than previously priced in by the markets and the fiscal tightening
deferred to some extent, it is not clear that things will be as bad as first anticipated by the Bank.

The £ has strengthened of late, recovering from a record low of $1.035, on the Monday
following the Truss government’s “fiscal event”, to $1.20. Notwithstanding the £’s better run of
late, 2023 is likely to see a housing correction of some magnitude as fixed-rate mortgages have
moved above 5% and affordability has been squeezed despite proposed Stamp Duty cuts
remaining in place.

In the table below, the rise in gilt yields, and therein PWLB rates, through the first half of
2022/23 is clear to see.

PWLB Rates 1.4.22 - 30.9.22

22 22
o ,\,.W\ ,\,N’ AS®

==e25 Year =50 Year

- =5Year - - 10 Year =50 year target %

However, the peak in rates on 28" September as illustrated in the table covering April to
September 2022 below, has been followed by the whole curve shifting ever lower. PWLB rates
at the front end of the curve are generally over 1% lower now whilst the 50 years is over 1.75%
lower.

1 Year 5 Year 10 Year 25 Year 50 Year
Low 1.95% 2.18% 2.36% 2.52% 2.25%
Date 01/04/2022 13/05/2022 04/04/2022 04/04/2022 04/04/2022
High 5.11% 5.44% 5.35% 5.80% 5.51%
Date 28/09/2022 28/09/2022 28/09/2022 28/09/2022 28/09/2022
Average 2.81% 2.92% 3.13% 3.44% 3.17%
Spread 3.16% 3.26% 2.99% 3.28% 3.26%

After a shaky start to the year, the S&P 500 and FTSE 100 have climbed in recent weeks, albeit
the former is still 17% down and the FTSE 2% up. The German DAX is 9% down for the year.

CENTRAL BANK CONCERNS - NOVEMBER 2022

At the start of November, the Fed decided to push up US rates by 0.75% to a range of 3.75% -
4%, whilst the MPC followed a day later by raising Bank Rate from 2.25% to 3%, in line with
market expectations. EZ rates have also increased to 1.5% with further tightening in the
pipeline.

Having said that, the press conferences in the US and the UK were very different. In the US,
Fed Chair, Jerome Powell, stated that rates will be elevated and stay higher for longer than

Page 125




markets had expected. Governor Bailey, here in the UK, said the opposite and explained that
the two economies are positioned very differently so you should not, therefore, expect the same
policy or messaging.

Regarding UK market expectations, although they now expect Bank Rate to peak within a lower
range of 4.5% - 4.75%, caution is advised as the Bank of England Quarterly Monetary Policy
Reports have carried a dovish message over the course of the last year, only for the Bank to
have to play catch-up as the inflationary data has proven stronger than expected.

In addition, the Bank’s central message that GDP will fall for eight quarters starting with Q3
2022 may prove to be a little pessimistic. Will the £160bn excess savings accumulated by
households through the Covid lockdowns provide a spending buffer for the economy — at least
to a degree? Ultimately, however, it will not only be inflation data but also employment data that
will mostly impact the decision-making process, although any softening in the interest rate
outlook in the US may also have an effect (just as, conversely, greater tightening may also).

Page 126




APPENDIX 4 - Prudential Indicators

The Council’s Capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the Capital expenditure plans (detailed in the budget) is reflected

in the prudential indicators below.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

2021/22 | 2022/23 | 2023/24

2024/25 | 2025/26

Authorised Limit for external debt

£'000 £000 £'000

£000 £'000

borrowing 110,000 | 110,000 135,000 | 135,000 | 135,000
other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
TOTAL 115,000 | 115,000 | 140,000 | 140,000 | 140,000

Operational Boundary for external debt

borrowing 105,000 | 105,000 | 130,000 | 130,000 | 130,000
other long term liabilities 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
TOTAL 110,000 | 110,000 | 135,000 | 135,000 | 135,000
Interest Rate Exposures 2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25
Upper | Upper | Upper
Limits on fixed interest rates based on net debt 100% 100% 100%
Limits on variable interest rates based on net debt 100% 100% 100%
Limits on fixed interest rates:
Debt only 100% 100% 100%
Investments only 100% 100% 100%
Limits on variable interest rates
Debt only 30% 30% 30%
Investments only 100% 100% 100%
Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2023/24 Lower | Upper
Under 12 Months 0% 100%
12 months to 2 years 0% 100%
2 years to 5 years 0% 100%
5 years to 10 years 0% 100%
10 years to 20 years 0% 100%
20 years to 30 years 0% 100%
30 years to 40 years 0% 100%
40 years to 50 years 0% 100%
Maturity Structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2023/24 Lower | Upper
Under 12 Months 0% 30%
12 months to 2 years 0% 30%
2 years to 5 years 0% 30%
5 years to 10 years 0% 30%
10 years to 20 years 0% 10%
20 years to 30 years 0% 10%
30 years to 40 years 0% 10%
40 years to 50 years 0% 10%

Page 127




Affordability Prudential Indicator - Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream

This indicator assesses the affordability of the capital investment plans. It provides an
indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.

Prudential Indicator: Financing Cost to Net
Revenue Stream

2021/22
Actual

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

2025/26
Estimate

Financing Costs

1. Interest Charged to General Fund

2. Interest Payable under Finance Leases and
any other long term liabilities

3. Gains and losses on the repurchase or
early settlement of borrowing credited or
charged to the amount met from government
grants and local taxpayers

4. Interest and Investment Income

5. Amounts payable or receivable in respect of
financial derivatives

6. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) /
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP)

7. Depreciation/Impairment that are charged
to the amount to be met from government
grants and local taxpayers

£'000
1,825

(540)

1,668

£'000
1,847

(808)

1,707

£'000
2,811

(824)

1,950

£'000
3,681

(618)

2,567

£'000
3,665

(618)

3,127

Total

2,953

2,746

3,937

5,630

6,174

Net Revenue Stream
Amount to be met from government grants
and local taxpayers

14,253

14,530

14,821

15,117

15,420

Ratio
Financing Cost to Net Revenue Stream

21%

19%

27%

37%|

40%

Note: Outturn figures for 2021/22 are unaudited

This prudential indicator shows that the ratio of financing costs to the net revenue
stream is increasing. This is not unexpected given that the Council has had an income
generation strategy that has resulted in increased Capital expenditure over the period
2017/18 to 2021/22 and that the Council agreed a programme for over £54m of Capital
expenditure over the period 2020/21 to 2023/24 - thus increasing borrowing costs. The
above ratio does not take into account the income is being generated from some of the
initiatives and commercial property acquisitions as these are not treated as investment

income.

Other Prudential Indicators

Internal Borrowing and Gearing ratios for the authority are included in the Capital

Strategy.

Page 128




APPENDIX 5 - Specified and Non-Specified Investments

Specified Investments:

The idea of specified investments is to identify investments offering high security and
high liquidity. All these investments should be in sterling and with a maturity of up to a

maximum of one year.

Schedule A

Security / Minimum
Credit Rating

Maximum
Maturity Period

Local authorities N/A 1 year

DMADF — UK Government N/A 1 year

Money Market Funds AAA Liquid

(CNAV, LVAV,VNAV)

Term deposits with banks and Blue Up to 1 year

building societies Orange Up to 1 year
Red Up to 6 months
Green Up to 3 months
No Colour Not for use

Certificates of deposits (CDs) Blue Up to 1 year

issued by credit rated deposit Orange Up to 1 year

takers (banks and building Red Up to 6 months

societies) Green Up to 3 months
No Colour Not for use

UK Government Gilts UK sovereign rating | 12 months

UK Government Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating | 12 months

Non-Specified Investments

These are any investments which do not meet the specified investment criteria.

The aim is to ensure that proper procedures are in place for undertaking risk
assessments of investments made for longer periods or with bodies which do not have
a “high” credit rating. As far as this Council is concerned the risks are in relation to the
value of the investments, which may rise, or fall, rather than deficient credit rating.

There is no intention to invest in Non-Specified Investments, other than those Property
Funds where there are no Capital accounting implications, without taking specialist
advice first. The limits on Investments in Property Funds will be agreed as part of this
Treasury Management Strategy and Investment Policy. For clarity any increase in the
level of the investment would need Council approval.

Page 129




Schedule B

Investment [Security / Minimum (A) Why use it?
credit rating (B) Associated risks

Property The use of these instruments can be deemed capital expenditure,

Funds and as such will be an application (spending) of capital resources.
This Authority will check on the status of any fund it may consider
using. Appropriate due diligence will also be undertaken before
investment of this type is undertaken. These are longer term
investments and will extend beyond 365 days (expected to be
invested for 5 years or more)

UK Government backed (A)Why use it?

Government (i) Excellent credit quality.

Gilts with (i) Very liquid.

maturities in (iii) if held to maturity, known yield (rate of

excess of 1 return) per annum — aids forward planning.

year (iv) If traded, potential for capital gain through

Custodial appreciation in value (i.e. sold before maturity)

arrangement (v) No currency risk.

required (B) Associated risks

prior to (i) ‘Market or interest rate risk’: Yield subject to

purchase movement during life of sovereign bond which

could negatively impact on price of the bond
i.e. potential for capital loss.

Page 130




APPENDIX 6 - Approved Countries for Investments

The list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher (the
lowest rating shown from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also have banks operating in
sterling markets which have credit ratings of green or above in the Link credit
worthiness service.

Countries that meet our criteria 1 (at 02.12.2022)
Based on lowest available rating

AAA
e Australia
e Denmark
e Germany
o Netherlands

e Norway
e Singapore
e Sweden

e Switzerland

AA+
e Canada
e Finland
e USA.
AA
e Abu Dhabi (UAE)
e France
AA-
e Belgium
e Qatar
e UK

Page 131




APPENDIX 7 - Treasury Management Policy Statement

The Council defines the policies and objectives of its treasury management activities as:

“The management of the organisation’s borrowing, investments and cash flows,
including its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks”.

This Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be
the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will be
measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities
will focus on their risk implications for the organisation, and any financial instruments
entered into to manage these risks.

The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support
towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore
committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury management, and
to employing suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques, within the
context of effective risk management.”

Page 132




APPENDIX 8 - Key Principles and Clauses formally adopted
The Code identifies three key principles:
Key Principle 1

Public service organisations should put in place formal and comprehensive objectives,
policies and practices, strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective
management and control of their treasury management activities.

Key Principle 2

Their policies and practices should make clear that the effective management and
control of risk are the prime objectives of their treasury management activities and that
responsibility for these lies clearly within their organisations. Their appetite for risk
should form part of their annual strategy, including any use of financial instruments for
the prudent management of those risks, and should ensure that priority is given to
security and portfolio liquidity when investing treasury management funds.

Key Principle 3

They should acknowledge that the pursuit of value for money in treasury management
and the use of suitable performance measures, are valid and important tools for
responsible organisations to employ in support of their business and service objectives;
and that within the context of effective risk management, their treasury management
policies and practices should reflect this.

Clauses formally adopted

1. This organisation will create and maintain, as the cornerstones for effective treasury
management:

- A Treasury Management Policy Statement, stating the policies, objectives and
approach to risk management of its treasury management activities.

- Suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMPs), setting out the manner in which
the organisation will seek to achieve those policies and objectives, and prescribing
how it will manage and control those activities.

- Investment Management Practices (IMPs) for investments which are not for
treasury management purposes

The content of the policy statement TMPs and IMPs will follow the
recommendations contained in Sections 6, 7 and 8 of the Code, subject only to
amendment where necessary to reflect the particular circumstances of this
organisation. Such amendments will not result in the organisation materially
deviating from the Codes key principles.

2. This organisation (i.e. full Council) will receive reports on its treasury management
policies, practices and activities, including, as a minimum, an annual strategy and
plan in advance of the year, a mid- year review and an annual report after its close,
in the form prescribed in its TMPs and IMPs.

Page 133




3. This council delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular monitoring
of its treasury management policies and practices to Cabinet, and for the execution
and administration of treasury decisions to the Chief Financial Officer, who will act
in accordance with the organisations policy statement, TMPs and IMPs and, if
he/she is a CIPFA member, CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management.

4. This Council nominates the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective
scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

Page 134




APPENDIX 9 - Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation

(i) Full Council

1.

Approval of the Treasury Management Strategy - prior to the new financial year

2. Approval of the Investment Strategy - prior to the new financial year

3. Approval of the MRP Policy - prior to the start of the new financial year

4. Approval of any amendments required to the Strategy during the year

5. Receipt of a mid-year report on the Treasury Management Strategy, to include

consideration of any recommendations of the Cabinet or Audit Committee arising
from any concerns since the original approval.

(ii) Cabinet

1.  Developing and determining the Treasury Management Strategy, Investment
Strategy and MRP policy and recommending them to full Council - prior to the start
of the new financial year.

2. Receipt of a mid-year report on the Treasury Management Strategy and any
concerns since the original approval and making recommendations to Council as
appropriate.

3. Receiving, and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, practices,
activities, and performance reports (based on quarterly reporting).

4.  Approval offamendments to the organisation’s adopted clauses, treasury
management policy statement;

5. Budget consideration and approval;

6. Approval of the division of responsibilities;

(iii) Audit Committee

1. Scrutinising the Council's Treasury Management Strategy, Investment Strategy and
MRP policy, Treasury Management Policy Statement and Treasury Management
Practices and making recommendations to Cabinet and Council as appropriate.

2. Receiving and reviewing monitoring reports (based on quarterly reporting) and
making recommendations as appropriate.

Page 135




APPENDIX 10 - The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer

Chief Finance Officer (S151 Officer) responsibilities:

e recommending clauses, treasury management policy for approval, detemining
Treasury Management Practices, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring
compliance

e submitting regular treasury management policy reports

e submitting budgets and budget variations

e receiving and reviewing management information reports

¢ reviewing the performance of the treasury management function

e ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function

e ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit

e recommending the appointment of external service providers.

Additional Responsibilities following new Codes of Practice/ Investment
Guidance

The above list of specific responsibilities of the S151 officer in the 2021 Treasury
Management Code has not changed. However, implicit in the changes in both the
Prudential and the Treasury Management Codes, is a major extension of the functions
of this role, especially in respect of non-financial investments, (which CIPFA has defined
as being part of treasury management). Namely:-

1.  preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing,
non-financial investments and treasury management, with a long term timeframe
(say 20+ years — to be determined in accordance with local priorities).

2. ensuring that the capital strategy is sustainable, affordable and prudent in the long
term and provides value for money.

3. ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority.

4. ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure
on non-financial assets and their financing.

5.  ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of
risk compared to its financial resources.

6. ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval,
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long
term liabilities.

7.  provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees

Page 136




10.

ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk
exposures taken on by an authority.

ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally
provided, to carry out the above.

creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed, to include the following): -

Risk management (TMP1 and schedules), including investment and risk
management criteria for any material non-treasury investment portfolios;

Performance measurement and management (TMP2 and schedules),
including methodology and criteria for assessing the performance and success
of non-treasury investments;

Decision making, governance and organisation (TMP5 and schedules),
including a statement of the governance requirements for decision making in
relation to non-treasury investments; and arrangements to ensure that
appropriate professional due diligence is carried out to support decision
making;

Reporting and management information (TMP6 and schedules), including
where and how often monitoring reports are taken;

Training and qualifications (TMP10 and schedules), including how the relevant
knowledge and skills in relation to non-treasury investments will be arranged.

Page 137




This page is intentionally left blank



Capital Strateqy (2023/24)

Introduction

1.

Hastings Borough Council has a range of capital resources at its disposal which
is used in the delivery of its strategic priorities and objectives. These resources
include iconic assets such as Hastings Castle and the CIiff Railways, to parks
and open spaces, leisure facilities and entertainment venues.

The council’s ability to ensure that these vital assets are well maintained is
crucial to the future financial stability and resilience of the council. If assets fall
into disrepair and are no longer fulfilling their maximum potential and primary
purpose, then the ability to deliver our objectives and priorities is severely
hindered.

The Capital Strategy should provide a high-level overview of how capital
expenditure, capital financing, investments, liabilities and treasury management
activity contribute to the provision of services. Together with an overview of how
associated risk is managed and the implications for future financial sustainability.

It is therefore imperative that the council manages and plans its use of capital
resources wisely and why one of the stated corporate objectives is to develop a
full and detailed Corporate Asset Management Plan which will feed into future
capital strategies, along with a Housing Strategy to deal with the Housing crisis
that the Council finds itself in currently.

With all capital expenditure comes associated risk, and this comes in different
forms and needs to be managed by the council when apprising different options.
The risks could be from;

e Will the Asset deliver the projected outcome?

e Are the estimates for running costs and income accurate?
e What is the most prudent way of financing the asset i.e. borrowing?

Page 139



Regulation

6.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The CIPFA revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local
authorities to prepare a capital strategy report, which seeks to provide the
following:

o a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing
and treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services.

o an overview of how the associated risk is managed.

o the implications for future financial sustainability.

The aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the full
Council fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting
capital strategy requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite.

This Capital Strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement; non-treasury investments will be reported through the
Capital Strategy and the budget report. This ensures the separation of the core
treasury function under security, liquidity and yield principles, and the policy and
commercialism investments usually driven by expenditure on an asset.

The capital strategy seeks to identify:

The corporate governance arrangements for these types of activities;
Service objectives relating to the Capital expenditure;

The expected income, costs and resulting contribution;

The debt related to the activity and the associated interest costs;

The payback period (MRP policy);

For non-loan type investments, the cost against the current market value;
The risks associated with each activity.

Where a physical asset is being bought, details of market research, advisers
used, ongoing costs and investment requirements and any credit information will
be disclosed, including the ability to sell the asset and realise the investment
cash.

To demonstrate the proportionality between the treasury operations and the non-
treasury operation, high-level comparators are identified.

The Capital strategy, and in particular the capital programme supports the
Council’'s Corporate plan and is closely tied to the Medium Term Financial
Strategy and the budget. The Capital Strategy is required to be compiled for a
longer timeframe — generally 10 to 20 years although not specified.

The Council’s future spending plans are continuing to evolve and as such the
Capital Strategy and other strategies may need to be re-determined by full
Council when the future plans are sufficiently robust — given the impact of the
Towns Fund monies and the potential housing schemes. The report does detail

Page 140



the Council’s borrowing commitments until 2069/70 that result from past and
current capital programmes.

Objectives of the Capital Strategy

14. The Capital Strategy is one of the council’s key documents in providing a medium
to long term plan. It needs to be consistent with other key plans such as the
following;

Corporate Asset Strategy
Corporate Plan

Capital Programme

Treasury Management Strategy
Medium Term Financial Plan
Revenue Budget

Resources Plan

15. The Capital Strategy is therefore the policy framework document that sets out the
principles to be used to guide the allocation of capital investment across all of the
councils’ priorities and informs the decisions on capital spending priorities.

16. In addition, and as part of the strategy, the Chief Financial Officer reports
explicitly on the affordability and risk associated with the Capital Strategy.

High Level Overview of how Capital Expenditure, Capital Financing
and Treasury Management Activity Contribute to the Provision of
Services

17. As detailed in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS), the Council
continues to be in a difficult financial position requiring service reforms in its
journey to becoming a lower spending council. The Council seeks to use capital
investment in the borough to not only achieve key corporate objectives but also
to generate additional income in order to continue to provide services to its
residents. The expenditure plans for the next three years are detailed below
along with the expected outcomes.

Capital Expenditure 2023/24

18. Capital Investment is defined as ‘Expenditure on the acquisition, creation, or
enhancement of ‘non-current assets’ i.e. items of land, property and plant which
have a useful life of more than 1 year’. Expenditure outside of this definition will
therefore be revenue expenditure.

Page 141



19. The Council’'s Capital programme amounts to some £30.716m (£25.369m net of
grants and contributions) in 2023/24. The major areas of expenditure include:-

() Cornwallis Street Development (£9m for 2023/24)
The redevelopment of Cornwallis street car park for a hotel. This is expected
to help regenerate the town centre, provide much needed overnight
accommodation, as well as securing new jobs.

() Housing Acquisition Programme (£11,866,000 of which £5.953m is
expected to be spent in 2023/24)
A programme to potentially acquire up to 50 housing units of various bedroom
sizes to use as Temporary Accommodation to reduce the cost to the council of
using privately owned accommodation.

(1) Mayfield E — Affordable Housing (£8m of which £3.5m is expected to be
spent in 2023/24)
Development of 38 affordable housing units.

(IV) Bexhill Road South — Affordable Housing and Car Park (£3.575m of
which £2.5 is expected to be spent in 2023/24)
Affordable housing development of 16 plus units and car park refurbishment.
The council has set a target to provide 500 Affordable Rent Homes over 5
years through a variety of projects, including direct delivery.

(V) Energy Generation — Unallocated (£4.3m of which £2.3m is expected to
be spent in 2023/24)
An additional £4.3m has been allocated for energy generation projects but
remains unallocated.

(VI) Disabled Facility Grants (£2.056m (Est) — all grant funding)
Property related grants for adapting homes. In 2022/23 the Council will receive
funding approaching £2.1m. The figure for 2023/24 is not yet known — but is
not expected to be less. Unspent grant from previous years can be carried
forward to use for future spend.

(VIl) Lower Bexhill Road — Housing Development (£6.9m of which £2.m is
expected to be spent in 2023/24)
The Council has received funding of some £6.9m to progress this site (grant
claimed in arrears).

(V) CIiff Railway (E1m for 2023/24)
East Hill Cliff Railway essential Health & Safety improvements and track
maintenance.

(IX) Annual programme of roof refurbishment (£1.7m of which £0.7m is
expected to be spent in 2023/24)
An annual programme of roof refurbishment is required for our commercial
and industrial buildings to ensure they remain watertight for their tenants and
the council is able to maintain their rental income over the coming years.

Page 142



(X)

(X1)

(X1

(X1

(XIV)

(XV)

Grounds Maintenance Equipment (£626k for 2023/24)
Equipment is required for the new in-house grounds maintenance team to be
able to carry out their role.

Energy — Solar Panels (£1.638m of which £0.5m is expected to be spent
in 2023/24)

The installation of solar panels on non-domestic rooftops within the borough —
providing cheaper energy for businesses. An additional £4.3m has been
allocated for energy generation projects in future years but remains
unallocated.

Priory Meadow Contribution to capital works (£288,000 for 2023/24)

The Council owns 10% of the Priory Meadow shopping centre. The money
represents its share of any capital investment costs for 2022/23. The Council
receives 10% of the net income for the centre which provides a significant
contribution towards meeting the service costs of the council.

Pelham Crescent / Pelham Arcade — Building/Restoration Works
(£204,000 in 2023/24)

In line with the strategic priority of an attractive town, the council is working
with property owners to restore the crescent and roadway. Much of the work is
conditional on receipt of external grants and contributions.

Conversion of 12/13 York Buildings (£74k for 2023/24)
Final costs for the conversion of 6 flats at York Buildings.

Groyne Refurbishment (£35k for 2023/24)

Preserving sea defences and the town is a key priority. The Council funds the
groyne refurbishment/ sea defence works and sets aside £35,000 p.a. for this
— sometimes packaged together over several years.

Capital Expenditure 2024/25

20. The 2024/25 Capital programme amounts to some £14.524m (£11.281m net of
grants and contributions).

21. The main areas of expenditure are Housing Acquisition Programme (£5.933m),
Mayfield E Housing (£3.5m), Disabled Facility Grants (£2.056m fully grant
funded), Energy Generation (£2m unallocated, £500,000 for Solar Panels),
Annual programme of roof refurbishment (£500,000) and Groyne refurbishment
(£35,000).

Capital Expenditure 2025/26

22. The Council’s current capital expenditure plans for 2025/46 amount to some
£2.591m (£535,000 net of grants and contributions).

Page 143



23. The main areas of expenditure are currently Disabled Facility Grants (£2.056m

fully grant funded), Annual programme of roof refurbishment (£500,000) and

Groyne Refurbishment (£35,000).

Summarised Capital Expenditure and Funding - 2022/23 to 2025/26

24. The table below shows a summary of the expenditure for the current and next
three years, along with the projected borrowing requirements.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Forecast
2022/23 | 2023/24 | 2024/25 | 2025/26
£'000s £°000s £°000s £°000s
Gross Capital Expenditure 17,593 30,716 14,524 2,591
Net Capital Expenditure 7,906 25,369 11,281 535
Financing from own resources / Grants 9,687 5,347 3,243 2,056
Borrowing Requirement 7,906 25,369 11,281 535

Financing the Capital Programme

The Council can invest in a capital programme so long as its capital spending
plans are “affordable, prudent and sustainable”.

The main sources of finance for capital projects are as follows:

. Capital receipts (from asset sales)

J Capital grants (e.g. Disabled Facilities Grant)

. External contributions (e.g. Section 106 developers’ contributions)
. Earmarked Reserves

. Revenue contributions

J Borrowing including internal (Capital Financing Requirement).

Borrowing (or Capital Financing Requirement) makes up the most significant
element. While the Council has sufficient cash and investment balances in the
near term it is able to internally borrow but, in the future, will need to borrow
externally in addition to the estimated £65.4m borrowing which will be
outstanding at 31 March 2023.

The Capital Financing Requirement is reduced over the life of individual assets
by an annual contribution from revenue (Minimum Revenue Provision). Further
information including borrowing forecasts, the provision for the repayment of
debt, and borrowing limits are set out in the Treasury Management Strategy. The
table below shows the projected indebtedness of the Council based on the
current Capital programme and expected levels of capital receipts, grants and
contributions.

Page 144



Table: Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) less Minimum Revenue

Provision (MRP)

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
CFR (unaudited) (Estimate) | (Estimate) | (Estimate) | (Estimate)
£'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s £'000s
CFR-Opening 72,683 71,970 78,169 101,589 110,303
Less MRP (1,668) (1,707) (1,950) (2,567) (3,127)
Plus New Borrowing 955 7,906 25,369 11,281 535
CFR Closing 71,970 78,169 101,589 110,303 107,711

29.

The table above highlights that by the end of 2024/25 the level of debt will have

increased to some £110.3m (subject to viability and the approval of schemes

within the Capital prog

ramme).

Revenue Consequences of the Capital Programme on the General Fund

30.

Borrowing has long term revenue consequences. The overall indebtedness of the

Council is reduced by the MRP each year. The overall level of debt needs to be
viewed against the overall Long-Term Assets of the authority which stood at
£185.420m at 31 March 2022 (unaudited) (£182.088m as at 31 March 2021).

Debt Profile and CFR

31.

The graph below shows how the CFR (blue and purple lines) reduce over time as

MRP payments are made. The yellow line shows the level of external debts
reducing as principal repayments are made (see debt maturity graph below).

120,000,000
£ / Debt Profile Vs CFR atJanuary 2023
N
I'\. -
100,000,000 f RS :
1 N = - CFR-Opening
! -
| - - ——MRP
| ! X- N = CFR- Closing
80,000,000 *
o 7, ~T O Debt o/s year end
. N o
/ X-
¢ Q
60,000,000 /- .
! N o
/ . Neo
] ~-
/ ANE
40,000,000 +—j— <. -
/, X
. N
20,000,000 \'\
\. -
~.-
S
—— s -
o 9 o CS Ao o & @
--\\”\"b\”\"”\m\w\\“?’\”’\*\“’\"\"‘\"\‘*\“\"\\‘°\‘°\‘°\b\“=\b\‘°\‘°
F":'Zr;?m'» 5 % '»6‘9 m&m m@h w&b m@c’b "Pup m@ &L °°‘ °&L QP °° "E? & m"% FE S '»nv '»QF & '19("%

Page 145




32.

The graph above is based on the current known capital programme up to
2025/26. If further capital expenditure is finance by borrowing, which is highly
likely, then this will push the trajectory of the graph out into further years and
increase future MRP payment.

Debt Maturity

33.

The Graph below shows the profile of when debt (loans from the PWLB) become
repayable. Blue lines indicate maturity loans and red lines indicate annuity loans.

£8,000,000

£7,000,000
£6,000,000
£5,000,000
£4,000,000
£3,000,000
£2,000,000

£1,000,000

34.

£0

32
38

0
2039
48

]
2049
21

045
2046
068
2069

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
20
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
21
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
b
2047
b

050
2051
2052
2053
2054
2055
2056
2057
2058
2059
2060
2061
2062
2063
2064
2065
2066
2067
21

W Maturity Repayment B Annuity Repayment

The Council will need to carefully consider the structure and timing of any new
borrowing to ensure debt does not exceed the CFR in the years ahead.

Financial Risk Management

35.

36.

37.

38.

The treasury management strategy outlines in some detail the economic
environment and the risks that the Council faces in managing its investments and
borrowing activities.

A significant proportion of the Council’s capital programme is likely to be financed
by borrowing and this exposes the Council to the risk of changing interest rates
and the ability to afford debt repayments.

Where borrowing money to finance economic development or regeneration
schemes the Council is increasingly dependent upon the income streams to
finance the debt repayments. No matter how good the business cases, and how
much of the debt is at fixed rates, there is a limit to the exposure that is
acceptable without putting the Council at complete risk of being unable to provide
key services in the event of a significant recession.

To arrive at an overall borrowing level (Authorised and Operational borrowing
limits), the Council needs to take a considered view of its other potential

Page 146

2070



39.

40.

41.

42.

liabilities, future borrowing requirements, guarantees and loans given, bad debts,
claims against the Council, future funding, security and diversity of the existing
income streams, and unforeseen events e.g. a pandemic.

Based on the existing Capital programme, by 2024/25 interest on debt will
amount to some £3.681m p.a. with capital repayments (MRP) of £2.567m; offset
by income and interest. This represents some 37% of the net revenue stream
(amount met from government grants and local taxpayers). Interest on debt is
estimated at £2.811m for 2023/24.

The full Council determine the total limits on borrowing.

The graph below demonstrates the relationship between the various boundaries
and limits and the actual borrowing undertaken to date or planned. The gap
between the external debt and CFR also helps to illustrate the level of internal
borrowing and potential interest rate exposure. The gap between the CFR and
Operational Boundary/Authorised Limit highlights the potential scope/flexibility to
borrow further, if the cashflow and treasury management position dictates.

Table: External Debt, Authorised Limits and CFR Projections

160,000

mmmm External Debt e A uthorised Limit
Operational Boundary === Capital Financing Requirement
140,000 0 0 40,000
135,000 135,000135,000
120,000
S =h 115,000 110,303 107,711
110,000 110,000 110,000
101.5

100,000 100,000

. 90,000 90,000
= 78,1
530,0‘30 72,683

60,000

40,000

20,000

2018/19 201920 202021 2021/22 v 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
ear

In terms of cash backed investments, the Investment Policy provides strict
guidance on the counterparties the Council is prepared to invest with and for
what periods. The Council invested £2m in a property fund (CCLA) in April 2017

Page 147



43.

44.

and a further £3m tranche of monies in a diversified investment fund in 2020/21.

In terms of asset backed investments and projects e.g. involving commercial
property and housing, the business cases look to identify the alternative options
and uses of the premises should they become vacant. The Council increased the
minimum level of reserves held in recognition of the fact that there will inevitably
be void periods, and expenditure will be incurred in updating properties from time
to time in order to re-let them. Where the Housing Company is concerned it will
need to retain sufficient working balances to re-let and refurbish properties. It is
important that void periods are minimised and that properties acquired are not
inherently defective, and their needs to be regular oversight.

Some projects such as the solar panel installations have some asset backed
values, but the ability to meet the debt repayments from energy savings and sale
of the surplus energy will remain a risk unless long term forward sale agreements
are made. However, such long-term agreements come at the cost of not
necessarily obtaining the maximum income. A balance of risk and reward needs
to be achieved.

Loans and Guarantees

45.

The Council is required to maintain a schedule of loans and guarantees to other
organisations.

Table: Loans to Other Organisations

Principal

.. Rate/ Outstanding as

3rd Party Organisations Return | Start Date | End Date at 31/03/2023 Type
(%) P

Amicus /Optivo 3.78% | 04/09/2014| 02/09/2044 £1,788,235|Maturity
The Foreshore Trust 1.66% | 21/03/2016| 20/03/2026 £95,262[Annuity
The Source 2.43% | 17/12/2015] 17/12/2025 £8,144|Annuity

Sub-Total £1,891,641

Hastings Housing Company

Hastings Housing Company - Loan 1| 4.48% | 28/02/2018| 28/02/2058 £784,676[Maturity
Hastings Housing Company - Loan 2| 4.84% | 12/02/2019| 12/02/2059 £344,810(Maturity
Hastings Housing Company - Loan 3| 4.84% | 13/06/2019| 13/06/2059 £4,359,912|Maturity

Sub-Total £5,489,398

Total £7,381,039

46. The above table shows a series of loan to the Hastings Housing Company in
respect of property purchases. As at 31 December 2022 the Capital loans
amount to £5,489,398. The company has access to a revenue loan facility from

Page 148




47.

48.

the Council; the company fully repaid the revenue loan but has outstanding
commitments regarding the capital advances.

The Housing Service provides loans and guarantees to individuals for rent in
advance and rental deposits and the Council also provides a limited loan facility
to staff for car loans, season tickets, and bicycle loans.

The Council has other liabilities that need to be considered when assessing the
overall financial position of the Council e.g. potential legal claims, pension
liabilities.

Reserves

49.

50.

51.

The Council maintains reserves for specific purposes (earmarked reserves) and
also a general reserve for unavoidable future liabilities. The minimum
recommended level of reserves to be maintained has been set at £6m. The
adequacy of the reserve levels are reviewed on a regular basis, and particularly
when determining the budget.

The Council’'s General and Earmarked reserves are set to fall further over the
forthcoming 12 months. The balance at 1 April 2022 was £30,604m (unaudited).
This figure however includes a large amount of ringfenced reserves that can only
be used for specific purposes, for example Disabled Facilities Grant moneys.
Once these balances are removed the level of freely usable reserves falls to
£12.035m. At the 31 March 2023 the estimated balance will be £9.705m with the
balance at the end of 2023/24 forecast to reduce further unless sufficient budget
savings are made.

The reduction in balances will result in less interest being earned on investments,
greater short-term borrowing to match cash flow requirements, along with the
need to match future renewal and repair commitments to available resources. If
general reserves are used to a significant level to finance emergency or non-
avoidable expenditure, then future budget cuts (potentially in-year) will be
required to restore reserves to minimum levels.

Risk Appetite & Prudential Indicators

Internal Borrowing

52.

When undertaking Capital projects or purchasing new assets, the Council has a
number of options as to when and how to finance these. If there are no grants or
revenue resources and no capital receipts the Council will finance by borrowing.
If it delays the borrowing, then it will be using its own monies (Internal borrowing -
generally from reserves) to temporarily fund the assets.

Page 149



53.

94.

95.

56.

If an authority has a large internal borrowing position, this will mean that reserves
and balances have temporarily been used to support borrowing positions and
therefore the reserves will not be backed by cash in the bank. This position
continues to work for many, but as reserves and balances are utilised in the
years ahead and balances fall, this will reduce any ability to internally borrow and
may bring forward the need to borrow externally (potentially at a time of high
interest rates, or when there is limited ability to borrow externally).

Table showing levels of Internal borrowing in Councils (Link Asset
Service’s Client Base)

Internal Borrowing %

HBC
12.7%

The Council’s Treasury advisers undertook a review of client’s balance sheets
and the average level of internal borrowing was, from the above graph, just under
20%. The level will vary depending upon when an authority finances expenditure
and when debt is refinanced.

For Hastings Borough Council it has previously sought to achieve near full
financing of the Capital programme over recent years in order to take advantage
of the historically low borrowing rates and avoid the risk of having to lock into
high interest rates when it has no option but to borrow. For the last year a higher
level of internal borrowing was adopted. Currently, with interest rates having risen
considerably from historic lows, and looking likely to increase further the Council
will need to carefully consider when the best time to borrow is. Guidance from our
external treasury managers will be sought before any borrowing decision are
made.

For 2022/23 the level of internal borrowing by year end is expected to be
£4.842m out of a total borrowing requirement of some £78.169m (6.2%).

Page 150



Gearing

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

Gearing has predominantly been a debt metric used by the private sector more
than the public sector, but recent moves towards commercialism opportunities
and investments means that borrowing is a much greater risk and gearing is an
appropriate prudential indicator.

Based on Link Groups’ analysis of balance sheet positions for 2017/18, gearing
ratios for over 200 authorities averaged out at around 35% when comparing
Capital Financing Requirements (CFR) to total Long-term Assets reported.

Due to the nature of assets held, services provided and historical debt decisions,
positions will vary across different types of authority, and for many authorities the
ratios will have increased since 2017/18. However, it still provides a useful
comparator.

Table: Gearing ratios in Councils (Link Group’s Client Base)

Gearing Ratio's

100.00%

HBC
80.00%
41%

60.00% -

40.00% -

20.00% L " "
I

0.00% ..‘..i||||||||| ||

Gearing provides an early indication of where debt levels are rising, relative to
long-term assets held.

Despite some of the adverse publicity around local authority finances, it can be
argued that gearing of 35%, on average, is not a bad position for the sector to be
in, as in simple terms 65% of the costs of long-term assets have been paid for,
with debt outstanding on the remaining 35%.

In the private sector gearing is generally calculated on net assets and a generally
accepted norm is a ratio between 25% and 50%. The risk exposures are
generally deemed to be greater where a company has much of its borrowing at
variable rates — which is the opposite of the Council’s position (all is now at fixed
rates).

Page 151



Table showing Future Projections of Gearing Ratios — based on Capital

programme
Actual Actual | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Operational
Gearing Calculation 2020-21 | 2021-22 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 | 2024-25 | 2025-26 | Boundary
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital Expenditure 17,593 | 30,716 | 14,524 2,591
New Borrowing 7,906 | 25,369 | 11,281 535
Net Assets 88,861 | 108,409 | 126,002 | 156,718 | 171,242 | 173,833 156,718
Long Term Assets 182,088 | 185,420 | 203,013 | 233,729 | 248,253 | 250,844 305,084
Capital Financing
Requirement 72,683 | 71,970 | 78,169 | 101,589 | 110,303 | 107,711 135,000
RATIOS:
Debt: Net Assets 82% 66% 62% 65% 64% 62% 86%
Debt: Long Term Assets | 40% 39% 39% 43% 44% 43% 44%

Note: Outturn figures for 2020/21 and 2021/22 are unaudited

63.

64.

65.

66.

The Council’s position will move from 39% to 43% but remains close to the
average (35%), especially considering this average is likely to have increased
since 2017/18. If the Council borrowed at the limits to its current Operational
Boundary (£135m), then debt to long term assets ratio could rise to 44%.

All decisions around debt comes back to affordability, prudence and sustainability
principles which are at the heart of the Prudential Code and have been since its
inception in 2004.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy have issued a clear
statement on the levels of debt that Councils in general are accumulating
following the purchase of commercial assets in particular. Such borrowing must
be proportionate to the size of the authority. Further detailed guidance was
released in autumn 2019, and further changes to the Treasury Management
codes have been undertaken to produce revised 2021 editions.

The government revised their lending criteria for the Public Works Loan Board
(PWLB) on the 25 November 2020 which effectively prevents Councils from
borrowing for commercial property investments where the primary purpose is to
make a return (yield). The Council has no intention of purchasing commercial
property primarily for yield and were it to consider doing so it would need to seek
full Council approval to do so.

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

67.

68.

Financing costs are the element of the budget which an authority is committed to,
even before they have run a single service or incurred any other costs as they
reflect the current costs of previous/planned capital financing decisions.

In Hasting’s case the ratio of financing costs in 2023/24 represents, 27%, of the
Net Revenue Stream which leaves 73% of the revenue stream for all the other

Page 152




69.

70.

71.

services to be provided. The higher the percentage, therefore, the less is left for
running services.

If the Net Revenue Stream is reducing, as funding sources are reduced over
time, then even though financing costs may be fixed through fixed-term loans and
interest rate certainty, the ratio will potentially continue to climb leaving less
available for front-line services and placing further pressures on budget positions
(increases to 40% by 2025/26).

However, the income the Council receives from rents and fees and charges
decreases the net expenditure of the Council. The calculation of debt charges to
“the amount to be met from Grant and Collection Fund” as a proxy for the “Net
Revenue Stream” therefore has to be treated with considerable caution.

This leads back then to local decision making and the need/objectives behind
capital investment. Business cases must identify ongoing revenue implications
and hence affordability. The Treasury Management Strategy includes a
prudential indicator that identifies the ratio of financing costs to Net Revenue
Stream. This is a further way of ensuring that affordability, prudence and
sustainability considerations are kept to the fore in treasury reporting.

Corporate Governance Arrangements — Project Approval Process

72.

73.

74.

75.

The Council has an ambitious Corporate Plan, and it remains important that the
capital programme remains realistic in terms of resources and timescales to
achieve the desired outcomes.

The Council has a number of project management procedures and tools in place
for managing individual projects. Key is the project initiation stage, the approval
process and thereafter effective performance monitoring and reporting. A
business case is required and a detailed report to Cabinet/Council. Any new
Capital proposal requires full Council approval.

Major projects are likely to have impacts on other key services such as Legal,
Finance and Estates teams depending upon the nature of the projects. External
support is commissioned where there is insufficient capacity, knowledge, or
expertise within the Council. Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
receive quarterly updates on financial performance (including the capital
programme).

Property developments and purchases are considered by Cabinet, and are
subject to full Council approval, with delegated authority normally provided
thereafter to the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the leader to negotiate
the final terms. The Council’s legal team, surveyors and Corporate Property
Officer are all closely involved. The Council will normally employ the services of
an agent to advise on the price and conduct negotiations. Necessary due
diligence is conducted and external specialist surveyors and advisors employed
as necessary.

Page 153



Repair and Renewal Programme

76.

The Council has a comprehensive repair and renewal programme. There are
elements of a reactive and recurring nature and a separate costed schedule for
planned maintenance items (see budget). The Council contributes an annual sum
of £500,000 to a reserve which funds the programme. In 2021/22 there was
expenditure of £658,026, for 2022/23 the budgeted expenditure amounts to
£547,700 and in 2023/24 it is estimated at £762,300. As a result of expenditure
exceeding income the balance on the reserve is expected to fall from £1.471m at
31 March 2022 to some £923,300 by the end of March 2023.

Information Technology Reserve

77.

78.

79.

Like most Councils and businesses, the Council is totally reliant on effective IT in
order to deliver services. The Council is continuously improving systems and
looks to streamline service provision wherever possible. Business continuity
planning remains vital against the continuing systems attacks that are
experienced, and it remains critical that systems and virus protection software
remain updated.

Like the Repair and Renewal programme the costs of acquiring and the updating
of systems does not fall uniformly in any one year and hence an annual
contribution is made into an IT Reserve.

The Council contributes £189,000 p.a. into the fund. The expenditure in 2021/22
amount to £230,300 and is estimated at £214,000 in 2022/23 and £214,000 in
2023/24 (see budget).

Knowledge, Skills and Training

80.

81.

82.

In order to deliver the Capital Programme it is essential that the Council has
access to the right knowledge and skills. The Council employs fully qualified and
experienced staff such as solicitors, estate managers, surveyors and
accountants.

The Council maintains a training budget, recognising that it remains critical to the
organisation to have a well-trained and motivated workforce. The Council
provides on-line training courses, internal and external training, to enable staff to
complete their Continuing Professional Development (CPD) requirements.

The Council seeks to ensure members have access to training opportunities in

order for them to adequately undertake their governance role. Workshops and
training events are held on a regular basis.

Page 154



83. Where specialist knowledge is required the Council will obtain expert advice,
particularly around property specialisms, taxation, and legal advice.

Chief Finance Officer Report

84. Within the Prudential Code it is the responsibility of the Chief Finance Officer to
explicitly report on the delivery, affordability and associated risks to the strategy.

Delivery

85. The Council, which has significant deprivation levels, understandably has an
ambitious Corporate Plan. This is set against a background of severe funding
reductions, and the need to provide good services to the many visitors, residents
and businesses.

86. The delivery of the individual schemes in the Capital Programme are directly
linked to the original approval and business case for each individual project which
has an assigned project manager responsible for delivery.

87. As part of the quarterly financial update report the performance of individual
projects are presented to Overview and Scrutiny along with all other financial
performance.

Affordability

88. Affordability is critical in applying the capital strategy and approving projects for
inclusion in the capital plan. This is mostly demonstrated by a specific report on
the project being presented to council for approval supported by a business case
identifying the expenditure and funding, appraisal of alternative options and the
risks and rewards for the approval of the scheme.

89. The Capital programme is heavily reliant on borrowing and will continue to be so
especially given that the Council is looking at some major economic development
and regeneration schemes.

90. Where borrowing is to be used, the affordability is key, and that affordability has
to include the interest costs of that borrowing and the provision for the repayment
of the borrowing. This repayment is matched to a prudent asset life and any
income streams estimated to fund this asset must be sustainable. The “rules”
around the governance of this borrowing is outlined in the prudential code.

91. At no stage should the asset value be lower than the value of outstanding debt,
other than for a short period, unless there is a clear plan to mitigate that shortfall
or to sell that asset.

Page 155



92.

The Council’s existing borrowing levels are not considered excessive. However,
a downturn in the economy with resultant loss of income would require the
Council to make greater service cuts to balance the budget. The Council must
look to achieve a sustainable and balanced budget in future years, and reduce its
reliance on drawing down from its Reserves.

Risks

93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

The risks associated with individual projects are identified and mitigated as part
of the initial business case development stage and reported through both the
financial reporting process to Overview and Scrutiny as well as being included as
part of the Corporate risk register.

There are clear links from the capital plan to both the treasury management
strategy, prudential indicators, authorised borrowing limits and the revenue
budget. These are also subject to review and oversight by members at Audit
Committee and Council.

For any new borrowing, and this is a greater risk as the value of borrowing
increases, this increases the councils overall liabilities that will need to be repaid
in the future. In addition this increases the Council’s level of fixed interest and
repayment costs that it will incur each year. This is a clear risk that all members
need to be aware of.

However, this risk for all assets is mitigated by a robust business case and a full
MRP that will repay the borrowing costs over a (prudent) asset life. Any variation
in expected income is an issue, however given the wide range of operational
assets and different income streams this is not considered a significant risk.

This Capital Strategy and the Treasury Management Strategy is likely to be
reviewed and updated during the year, and put before full Council, as and when
the Council’s spending plans are developed further.

Conclusion

98.

The current system of borrowing is still a self-regulatory system which means that
responsibility for borrowing decisions, and the level of borrowing incurred by a
Council are determined at a local level.

“.the responsibility for decision making and ongoing monitoring in
respect of capital expenditure, investment and borrowing, including
prudential indicators, remains with full Council”. (Prudential Code
December 2017).

Page 156



99. The Chief Finance Officers’ personal view is that borrowing decisions result in a
long term commitment to fund that borrowing, and that all decisions are made as
a whole programme perspective and not on an individual basis.

100. However, for transparency and ease of comparison between projects, indicative
full figures for borrowing will always be included in all business cases brought
forward for decision making regardless of whether or not borrowing will actually
be required.

Consultation and Communication

101. The detailed Capital Programme is included within the Council’s budget which is
on the Budget Cabinet agenda. The programme supports the Council’s
Corporate Plan which is likewise on the same Budget Cabinet agenda.

102. The draft budget for 2023/24 is subject to public consultation from January 2023.

Equality Impact Assessment

103. Equality Impact assessments are considered as part of the business case
when considering individual capital proposals.

Page 157



Appendix 1

Affordability Prudential indicator - Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue

Stream

Prudential Indicator: Financing Cost to Net
Revenue Stream

2021/22
Actual

2022/23
Estimate

2023/24
Estimate

2024/25
Estimate

2025/26
Estimate

Financing Costs

1. Interest Charged to General Fund

2. Interest Payable under Finance Leases and
any other long term liabilities

3. Gains and losses on the repurchase or
early settlement of borrowing credited or
charged to the amount met from government
grants and local taxpayers

4. Interest and Investment Income

5. Amounts payable or receivable in respect of
financial derivatives

6. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) /
Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP)

7. Depreciation/Impairment that are charged
to the amount to be met from government
grants and local taxpayers

£'000
1,825

(540)

1,668

£'000
1,847

(808)

1,707

£'000
2,811

(824)

1,950

£'000
3,681

(618)

2,567

£'000
3,665

(618)

3,127

Total

2,953

2,746

3,937

5,630

6,174

Net Revenue Stream
Amount to be met from government grants
and local taxpayers

14,253

14,530

14,821

15,117

15,420

Ratio
Financing Cost to Net Revenue Stream

21%)

19%

27%

37%

40%

Note: Outturn figures for 2021/22 are unaudited

Page 158




\£
\

‘i Hastings...-

Borough Council

J

Report To: Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: Thursday, 12 January 2022
Report Title: Risk Registers

Report By: Tom Davies, Chief Auditor
Key Decision: N

Classification: Open

Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to inform the Audit Committee of the Strategic Risks and
countermeasures in place for the council.

Recommendation(s)

1. To review the Strategic Risks and comment as appropriate.

Reasons for Recommendations

As part of the Corporate Risk Management Strategy agreed by Cabinet, the Risk Registers are
to be reviewed by the Audit Committee each year.

Report Template v30.0

/Y [0 disabili
Page 159 ga_..,:% \Eﬁ conﬁde%

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



Introduction

1.

The Risk Registers, both Operational and Strategic are in SmartSheet and online. The latest
Strategic Risk Register showing all open Strategic Risks is attached at appendix A.

Explanatory notes

2.

Unfortunately, the reader will need to magnify the attached document in order to be able to
read it properly. We are looking to find a way of cutting the full version down which will
reduce detail but enable it to be easily read. If still in any difficulty, please contact the
author of this report.

In the fast changing world, there will a small number of old references, for example, of
government departments, but it is correct leave those where they were the body in question at
the time. Similarly, please do not be caught out under the column for ‘author’ of the risk as
several of these officers have now left the council. The relevant column is the one to the right
of it and is to who the risk is assigned to.

The main Covid19 risks have passed but there is still some resurgence and effects of long
term Covid.

Risk Mapping to Objectives

5. ltis good practice to map risks to objectives. This has been done by cross referencing the
Corporate Objective number in the far right hand side column to the Corporate Objective.
Corporate Objective Reference No.
Tackling homelessness, poverty and ensuring quality housing 1
Keeping Hastings clean and safe 2
Making best use of our land, buildings, public realm and cultural assets 3
Minimising environment and climate harm in all that we do 4
Delivery of our major regeneration schemes 5
Ensuring the council can survive and thrive into the future 6

Report Template v30.0 af. =\% me disclbility

Page 160 Y, \EEE conﬁdeﬂ

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



All Red Risks (Not listed in any particular order)

e Russian/Ukraine war

e Systems audit - Risks of not identifying key weaknesses, or threats in a constantly
changing risk environment

e CHART Insufficient project expenditure to enable forecasted M&A costs to be
recovered (M&A budget max 25% of programme costs).

e CHART: Accountable body unable to claim back cash flowed fund/pay back received
payments from Managing Authority due to project ineligible expenditure/outcomes.
This is now appearing in our MA claim checks and some project irregularities.

e Changes in Central Government policy and legislation e.g. new environmental
legislation

e Treasury Management - Loss of money
¢ Income streams

e Government Funding - Continued lower levels of funding with potentially even more
reductions in the years ahead.

¢ Impact of economic climate , Covid-19, on Income and Expenditure levels
o ‘Brexit’ implications

e Corporate Governance - Financial Information, Transparency, Effective Financial
Management and controls.

Non Compliance with Financial Management Code of Practice as a Council and
ensuring proper management of the Council's financial affairs

e ERP contract renewal / Potential change to Working arrangements with Rother DC

¢ Increased demand for council services (e.g. Housing, Homelessness and associated
risks around rough sleeping and Community Safety) because of economic/social
deprivation as a consequence of the economic situation, constraints on Public
Spending and changes in welfare benefit systems.

e Failure to secure affordable housing solutions to prevent rising numbers of
homeless households.

e Loss of key staff within the Organisation and People Customer and Business
Support service:
- Turnover
-Redundancy/retirement
- Re-structure
(failure to take a strategic approach to workforce planning puts key services at risk)

Report Template v30.0

{7y [oedisabil
Page 161 g-a_..,_,.a} \EEE conﬁde%

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



e Property, Planning & Contracts:

Instructions - lack of full, precise and timely instructions from client departments

Failure to follow procurement rules
Not enough attention paid to specification of contracts
e Severe Business Disruption

¢ Insufficient organisational capacity to deliver existing commitments set out in

the

corporate plan alongside implementing required changes to meet the challenge of

the council's budget deficit.

¢ No resilience in the organisation.

e Deterioration of the Council’s assets i.e. those that create tourism public safety

issues e.g. cliffs & sea front
e Bathing Water Quality
e Bathing water fails to meet annual European Union standard
¢ Flood Risk Management & Coastal Protection Impact of severe weather.
Failure of defences.

Loss of Government Funding.

o Failure to meet collection targets in respect of council tax & business rates

Summary

6. The main risk groupings are around the national economic situation including uncertainty over

government funding, the impact of loss of key staff and experience and to a lesser extent the

effect of extreme weather.

7. The Risk Registers are reviewed monthly by Corporate Management Group who wou
forward the Register to the Audit Committee if any of the risks were to unexpectedly r

8. The Operational Risk Register will be presented to the Audit Committee at the meetin
March 2023.

9. Timetable of Next Steps

Action Key milestone Due date Responsible
(provisional)

Ensure Risk Next meeting- 16 March 2023 Chief Auditor
Registers are
easily readable for
publication.

Id bring

ise.

gon 16

Report Template v30.0 e m diSCIbi
Page 162 %,A} \EEE confid

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER

2
ent



Wards Affected

(None);

Policy Implications
Reading Ease Score: 43.1
Have you used relevant project tools?: n/a

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)
Risk Management

Environmental Issues & Climate Change
Economic/Financial Implications

Human Rights Act

Organisational Consequences

Local People’s Views

Anti-Poverty

Legal

2Z2Z2Z2Z2Z2Z2<2Z22Z

Additional Information

Appendix A — Strategic Risk Register (All open Strategic Risks)

Officer to Contact

Officer Tom Davies
Email tdavies@hastings.gov.uk
Tel 01424 451524

Report Template v30.0 o m diSCIbillty
Page 163 g.a_..,} \EEE conﬁdeﬂ

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



This page is intentionally left blank



GoT abed

Residual | Residual | Residual Available |CMG Send to Audit | Send to |Send to_|Strategic |Public RAID | Strategic,

t Name Status _|Risk Impact Financial impact if known | Lil i Counter measures il Severity _|Priority _|Cateqory Author Assigned to Report type i CMG _|CRMG _|risk item RAID item Corp. Obi|
[Audit- RAID log Active i war Finance soaring inflation |k Modium __|High _|Red _|-B: High Rod Organisation TomDavies | Tom Davies TRUE TRUE |Yes Yos 3
[Audit - RAID log dit-Risks of not ~Loss of credibilityof audit | Worst case scenario, a Medium |High |Red peri . review by G Tesouce Modium | High Rod ation 01101121 TomDavies | Stephen Dodson, TRUE TRUE |Yes Yos

identifying key weaknesses,or | and false assurance malicious cyber attack would Tom Davies o
threats in a constantly changing risk cost something in the low
environment £millions.
Building Surveyors - RAD log ncreasing| Treasury Management - Costof _|£64.669m borrowed at 31 Each £1mof new borrowing, | Medium | Figh _[Red |- Use of External Advisers — Link Asset Services Medium [Medum [Yellow |Business QU021 |Peter Grace | Kit Whester TRUE TRUE TRUE |Ves Vos
borrowing March 2021 financing an asset with a lfe of ~Ensure staffare well trained Organisation
Operational borrowing limit |40 years would cost the ~Ensure adequate cover
Increased borrowing or an increase | £110m in 2021122 Council some 5%p.a. (based on - Treasury Management Strategy, Capital Strategy and Treasury 6
in interest rates, plus eligibiity to | Authorised borrowing limit | a maturity loan with 2.5% Management Practices that are reviewed atleast annually
borrow from the Public Works Loan | £115m in 2021/22 interest rate) Le. £50,000 p.a
Board Use of Capital Recelpts
[Business Support - RAID log Actve | Breach of fre and buiding hoalfrand |- Potental mry o Persans and Tow Wigh  |Yelow |- Hoalh & Safe Tow Low Greon [Business 7101721 Verna Comoly | Verna Comnoly TRUE |Yes Yes
safety roguiatons at Town Halor Muiel | buldings. - ideniity cardsfanyards ssued fo staff wih  requirement fo be worn Organisation
House and security, - 6
Salety adviser.
Rogukr maintenance of systors.
Business Support - RAD log Acive—[Breach o Town o i Waters | LegaloctonLos of opatars Tow Tow |Green e v Tow Tow Green [Business 01101721 [Verna Gomnoly | Verna Connoly TRUE |Yes Yos
Securt inching pot coniider Organisation
mmennauspm esings ~Potental harm o staff and publi 10 test To
or data s ~Potental harm o HBC buidings Hall 2 there are more tenants and membrs o ihe public i he buding pow:
- Ensure
vents inthe biings ot.
- Test & martanolrms
- Issue instructions on staf ID carcs/ staf lanyards (grey)- manatory
Hiotorand a1 cardand fobsystams for s
and visiors.
ot
o Businoss Support 0 b eued i temporary 0 (1 appropria)
1o tes To
Hall a5 there are moro tenans and mermbers of the pubic n the bukling now:
- Ensure 6
vents inthe biings ot.
- Test & martanolrms
- Issue instructions on staf ID carcs/ staflanyards (grey)- mandatory
Hioitorand a1 cardand fobsystamsfor s
and visiors.
- staft
o Business Supportto be ssued vith termporary D (f approprite)
[Cometery & Crematorium - RAID log Acive | Faiure 10 provido cromation and burial | Damage to repuiation Tow Figh [Yelow Tow Wedum  [Green |Business 1101121 | Vike Hopworth | Davd Birchenough, TRUE |Yes Yes
vent of total loss o service Community Natasha Tewkesbury
saffngissues/capacity, severe witer | ustomers Cromators reguarly mainained and specialist maintenance convacts n place. Finance
vethr. et oqument s kr | Los of coms Pressuts on Rl cremtraperalors o o providesicknes absno cover andenate 6
issues. shiftworking at paak times of-
Teasonabe imescas Eiecins ot ol coningonty s  pac for v, T e contol
[CHART programme - RAID log M High High Li g torsto High High Finance 01101120 TRUE  Yes Yes
Active (M programme  than the M real Red Thiss. butng Red Brisget Pont s
costs). expendiuro, rosuling infinancial
risk o council
[CHART programme - RAID log Medum | High Animator mitgate isk of Medum | High Finance 0101720 TRUE [Yes Yes
recover from the submited. P fce
payments Wanager o A oo befos aymans uaed Sos comments
financial i to councl. Risk
Actve | yyrpin Red Red Bridget Pont s
Chocks and e ot moplnis. | oaaong cmempaymonts 008
prior o checking our submission
[Community Safety - RAD log A Targe scale publ dsordor or b Repuiational damage Tow Figh | Velow on i and leadersh disory Group o C Vellow Commuriy BT | John Wit John Writingion TRUE |Ves Ves
wiiny of arran ens fo b held on counci land. 6
[Community Safoty - RAD log o [Anactof errorism iicantoss of e Figh | Velow | Paricpaton al Prevent Board meeiings Tior Velow Communty 27 [John Wiitinglon | Jorn Whitingor TRUE |Ves Vos
ondarceat Proven rlted SocurtyRoviow meiigs Natasha T
Prevent awareness traiing o front no
Damage t the local economy a Promoting Prevent awareness amongst ocal businesses. 6
crato Supporting
Continuous Improvement & Democratic Sor-RAD log | Actve a F of legal Tow Hgh el L ? Texceptonal | Low Medum [Green | Organisation 01101721 |Stephen Dodson | Goral Harding TRUE |Yes Yos
and forvrd pan missed. resuingin | to challe chaenges circumstances but only f certin condiions fave been met
meetings having o be canceled anda | -Repulational High sk of K sharedwith
delayto key decisions. gaiive media and pubic profe servce departments. 6
ot
Enforcement- RAID log Aclve [Sgnficant reduction 1 car parking ancialloss for e Gounal Tigh |Yelow | Adust operational costs accordngly Nedum  [Vedum _[Yelow Business 27 [Mike Hopvort Ves Ves
Reputaton undermined Budget reguary moritred, inciuing income generaton. fncome cropped Finance
ramaticaly,could reduce costs by decreasing staf
6
Pariing fees generaly only changed every 2 years and mpacts of fee increases a
man etuly mon
EnironmenialFiealh - RAID g Acive | Serious Breaches of Fealih and Safety _|Serious Inkryideath. Reputatonal Tigh |Yelow | Mantenance and mplementaton of ffectve healh and safety mana Nodum  [Vedum _[Yelow Business 20 [Mike Hopvorth | lan Wneele TRUE TRUE Ve
legisaton. damage roguiar napocions and reviows. Inplemeniaion of efecive
Insurance and roserves tcstream
o 6
ronmental Healh - RAID Iog v iy Wodum [ Vedum [ Velow | Reviewed insurance cover sspecialy n 1050 aroas. ow Tior Velow 27 Wik Hopvorth | Gameron Norey Ve Ve
nd maintining smenis and peio on n place for a
buidings. Legionela,fre and asbestos risk assessments and coniro
o of assat maiten:
Quto date poicies Reputaton undermine inciucing Healh and Safety 6
rrangement for HAS reporting via
Failure o ensure fuly raine monihly meeting:
competent taff
o databases (pus documents
stored witin the
Estates - RAD & Acive | Falkrs 1o mantain assets managed by | Propertes fal o disrepa Gounclcontibules £508.000 pa._[Medim [ VMedum | Velow | Adeauate b R and capal P srograrmo of ropas and spectors. | Medum [ ogm [Yelow Business 20 | my Terry i th opton TG TRUE Ves Ves
staos Unexpect: o the Reneval and Ropairs However, large unexpected, uinsured everss couk estt o cals {0 the Goneral Finance
excoed the annual provision boing




99T abed

France - RAID g Actve | |Changes ‘Changes over which e Councll | New legisiaion snould r6sullin now] High Tigh  [Red |Play an acive role i lobbying Government o ansure (e bost avareness of Distict | Figh Fion Red Busness TI01Z0 [ Tom Daves Kt Wnoekr TRUE TRUE TRUE TRUE [ves Yes
and legislation e.g.new environmental | has lie, o no controlill happen. | burdens funding. However funding Councis views about key polcy agendas via professional bodies and LGA Community
legisation nges d is ofen "one of Orgarisation
ole of DistrictBorough Councis. | ongoing.  consider mpicatons Iy stage ProjectWork stream
Loss of income. New dormands. respond. changes, Technical
resources and repriorlsing actiy I required. Logal
Impact on contracts and tendering, Finance
reserves and staff resources
[Fiance - RAID og Aclve | Treasury Management ‘Any 055 of money tough fraud, | Gross buaget £64.6m Medum |Figh [Red |-Use of Exteral Advisers —Link Assel Services Wedum High Red Busines: 01101721 |Peter Grace KitWneeker TRUE TRUE TRUE [ves Yes
~Loss of money elcis ielytobo |£15- - Ensure staf are wel raino Orgarisation
signficant to the Councilwhether | one time, - Ensure adequate cover
financialy or ropuationaly, The | cash colection, lectroric .
investigation into cash losses and | payments, roviowsd atleast annually
fraud are time consuming and investmens
often complex Use of reserves
Insurance - Money Poicyl Cashin Transit
[Finance - RAD og Aclve [ Income streams a Han High  |Red |Adequate provisions High High Red Business 01101721 |Peter Grace KitWneeker TRUE TRUE TRUE [ves Yes
Deficits, Bad debis Govid-19 pandermic. Structural ~Ensure rog a Organisation
hanges - Reportvariances quarterly through performance review
10 reduced income from shops and -Active management of propertes and services
potentil offces as market rentals
[Finance - RAID og Aclve | Budgel seting ~Staff aseriranchised Tow Tow |Green |- Ensure reg Tow Low Green Business 01101721 | Peter Grace KitWneeker TRUE [Yes Yes
~Limited information ~Lowmorale - Report variance through performance review Organisation
Late decisions ~Infighting - PIER process.
- Inadequate processes .
- Medium Term Financial Srategy
ce - RAID og omal suppliers riact Wedum  [Figh  |Red |Securty bondin piace or T Wodium Wegum |Yelow Businoss Q101121 |Peter Grace Kt Wheaie TRUE Ves
~Bankruptey, acministration Financia health checks Organisation
Adherence to Financial Rus whenlating coniracts
Effectve use of Procurement Hub expertse
[Finance - RAD log “Continued | Gouncil unable to deliver | Budgot Deficitof £1.453min | High Red |PIER roview High High Red Organisation 01101720 |Peter Grace | Kit Wheeler TRUE | 4th option T8C| TRUE TRUE | TRUE | TRUE |Yes Yes
lowerlovls of funding with Gorporat Plan objectives and | 2021/22, £2.258min 2022123 and may Financo
in|dsliver R £26min provide additional income.
the years ahoad. diminish to bolow minimum
racommended leval
Unsustainablo bud
necessitating reductions in
staff and activities and
inabilityto sustain Capital
programme.
[Finance - RAD log ~Co come. Increased | Decreased rental values, High High |Red tisation of service provision ensuring that ‘must do’ pr High Modium |Red Organisatior 01101720 |Potor Graca | Kit Wheeler TRUE | 4th option T5C| TRUE TRUE | TRUE | TRUE |Yes Yos
19,0n Tevels Corporate | payment of delivered to statutory levels. Review Corporate regeneration pr Finance
regeneration priorities not | Council Tax and business Adjust the capital spending programme. HR
delivered. rates, more bad debts, more
courtaction
Finance - RAID log Increasing| Brexit implications Loss of mostall European High Red for High High Red Business 01101720 |TomDavies | Kit Wheelor TRUE TRUE TRUE TRUE |Yes Yes
Grant Funding Organisation
Re d potential requiroments Logal
Docline in European visitors or| Financo
ors A toincludo
2 tondors aro operational
Lost benfits of thoso
European grant funded
projacts torminated
Mediumto long term economic
uncertainty Supply chain incroases costs
Loss of key industries whose
trado is with Europo
Now impacts on smallimodium
businesses in town that trade
with EU
Effects on supply chains for
capital projects
[Finance - RAD log Governance - Financial | Council not sustainable Targe budget deficits. Reserves |Modium |High |Red | Affordable Plans and reallstic expectations Medium |High Rod Organisatior 01101721 |Peter Grace | Kit Wheeler TRUE |Yes Yos
Information, T Effective | withou all used within 3 years at Lobbying government for additional resources Finance
Financial relations in i sufficient Seck external funding
savings are not identif i dmise |
Non Compliance with Financial | and officers) actioned in a timely manner. Retain key staff
Management Code of Practice as a
Council and ensuring proper
management of the Council's
financial affairs
[Finance - RAD log Potontial | Council unable to take Income, | Contract needsd and potential | High Red | Agreo an extended contract with currant provider to give both RDC and | High High Red Business 26001722 | Kit Wheeler | Kit Wheeler TRUE |Yes Yes
change to Working arrangements | report on HR | Finance, unablo |increase in costs if RDC decide HBC o Organisation
with Rothar DC - irecti futuro proof and mot our strategic and operational goals and then go Tochnical
of Accounts and thorefore | with HR as expected. Currently through procuroment tender to find the bost possible solution. New project Financo
toam creatod with SRO identified and working party sot up ASAP to look into HR
authorites. potontial options.
“RAID g Actve Hign Figh  |Red [ Tacking [ Figh High Red Busines: 01101720 [ Tom Davies Androw Paimer TRUE TRUE TRUE TRUE [Ves Ves
(e:3 Housing, Homelessness and services including benefs and socialssues around stree! communiy. Community
i Organisai
business case justfies and capacity alows ProjectWork stream
Technical
Gonsequence of the econonic stuaton, | Adverse impact on Council Tax Community Safety Partnership. Legal
constraints on Pubic Spendingand | collection rate Finance
nanges Less Council Tax HR
More pressure on DHP fund Our CPF

Migration from London Boroughs.
This villimpact on homelessness.
presentations and acceptances.
inciucing temporary
accommodaton usage.

Performance targ

ppo

out mic-year.

strategies
 Acquisition programmes for Temporary Accomodation

Further development of socialleting agency.

Local
Rough sleepers funding programme

Adequate levelof reserves to cope vith excessive unplanned changes

Reduce or end ofher non-stalutory services 1o be able o address this priorty




/9T abed

[Housing Options - RAID log Acive | Falure (o manage o Impact of changes | -Increased Service demand Tow Medum | Groen Review Tow Groen Business 300421 TRUE  [Ves es
increase otc Communiy Andrew Paimer,
initatives workoads “Req Legal Daun Eckersiey
(e mpsctof vlrsbrsicrares | Legechalrce L aPrivate Finance
on homelessness levels fation undermine Landord forums. HR
-\ncreaseaexpenmmre
ualty of service colicagues to raise operational barriers and ind sokions.
+Publc health & welbeing +New Housing and Homelessness Strategies introduced.
+Policy reviews of Alocations.
“Impact & risk assessments
team action Plan)
-Annual update of anti-poverly sirategy & action plan
Ongoing co-production and development bids with MHCLG
- Pr scopingof|
landiord aison role
* Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme - 10 x 1 bed units
Fousing Options - RAID log Actve | The Social Latings Agency unable To | -Increased risk of homelessness | -Increase n spend on B&B Vedum | Medum |Yelow |3 year business p Catinetin Oclober 2018 to continue council Vedum Medium Velow Business 04721 | AndrewPaimer | Alan Sheppard, TRUE
offer Landio acauisiions and Private Sector Leasing Scheme Community Andrew Palmer
management sen cussion with DLUHC and Homes Engiand regarding grant fundi Legal Dawn Eckersiey
Private Sector Leasing (PSL) scheme. expand the easing scheme Finance
Significant increases in cos's as a result
of rising rents across Hastings.
improve
[Housing Options - RAID log Actve | Delvery as lead partner of Sussex-wide | -Publicaly stated commitmentto_|-Loss of DLUHC grant Low Medium | Green trovgh | Low Medium Green Business 3004721 | Andrew Paimer | Alan Sheppard, TRUE |Ves Yes
SHOG. Community Andrew Paimer
funded by the MHCLG. +Falure 1o meet profect outputs *Reguiar contact between DLUHC and Project Team Legal Daun Eckersiey
sgainst payments from the +Funding secured from DLUHC to continue the programme until March 2025, Finance
UHC
Healin
[Housing Options - RAID log housing |-Rise in homel i “Rise In the cost of B&B spend | High Figh —[Red | Property acquaion pragrane o deler councl owned TA 55 3 heaper [High High Red Business 30004721 | Andrew Palmer | Alan Sheppard, TRUE TRUE TRUE |Yes Yos
lut f spending alternative to nightly Community Andrew Palmer,
of homeless households. meetings with Legal Dawn Eckersley
“Increased levels of rough main Social Landlords (Optivo & Orbi) Housing and Support Service Finance
sleeping and associated ASB. meetings, Private Landlord forums.
“Legal challenges -Allocations Policy review
“Reputation undermined New Housingand Honelessness Stmegles Introduced
y with Clinical
Comm-ss\on\ng Gvoupand associated partners.
-Council h
affordable housmg over the next 5 year
“Ongoimg work with ocal and nationl partnrs o explore opportunites to
AR ¥ SKils [knoweedge. | Loss of resiience. anagement Development ion Medim [Re | Capur of nowedge and working pracices rough mocharisms ncudi Busioss  Hodum Medium Velow Business Jane Hariel, TRUE TRUE Ves
0ss of capacity o deiver Programmes are expensive. Could| Process Mapping. Succession planning and taent management at al levels through Communiy hen Dodson,
versaton performance management tooki. on Verna Con
Business Continulty Planning resifence. ork stream
lev RecruitmentRetention Polic
existing staff not receptive to ort mecharisms ulisation of appreniceship fevy.
attendi or university of m working - opportunities to ivert skiled resources to higher pririty areas
etan talent in- house. chosen providers. for a imited tme. 3
) management training programme 12 sessions over 1 per monh
Identity Management Development Course which can be delvered using the
pprctisestip oy and esigned using b of e taory vl sl
bespoke modues to cover management in Hastings Council
HR - RAID log bty o respor strialacton, impa deivery. Vedum |High Red | Managementl agreed skeleion cover for specic service areas 1o cover stike action| Medium Medium Velow Verna Con TRUE |Ves Yes
changes in Governments initatves or |- reputational damage Maintain current Employee relations framework which encourages partnership
legalrequirements. ed costs to provide cover working between managerent and urions, e flective negoiatin,
1ges 1o staff terms and condiions of |in some frontine services. onsulation and communicato
employment - lack of flexbity of the | impact on service entiy legal opior
workforce. Rosronate MR polkies i place for deaing withndusril acton
NJC pay negotiations fal - pay award not
[HR -RAD log [ L the - Supp o High Red |Agencystaff Medium | High Red Organisation 01/01721 | Verna Connolly | Verna Connolly. TRUE TRUE TRUE |Yes Yes
Organisation and People Customer | organisation reduced - Senior HR longside d ping HR
- plan to meet future organisationallservice needs.
- Tumover increase in claims via E. - Workforce plan propare
“Rodundancyiretirement - Loss of knowledge prafingson HR polces procedures, amploymnt legisiaten
-Re-structure - Reduced services ealth
focus on handiing short term absences
~Mental health first aiders in place throughout org
services at risk) - Staff over loaded Managers Training apprenticeship scharme rlled out
- Reputation of HBC pocific occupational areas such as planning, environmental
undormined eaith, iR Fnance and logt ae caree graded 1o enablo organiation
grow from within and improve the talent pipeline.
ICT-RAID log Actve | Falure of IT equipment Very serious impact in he short ow Figh Yelow | Aternative and back-up services being provided. Regular back-up of -ste of data. | Low Figh Velow Organisation Mark Bourne Viark Bourne. ahoption TBC TRUE Ves Yes
termfor al ser, Servers now Vitualised. Other risks miigated through improved recovery times. Stephen
[T~ RAID log Acive | Faire of it Tow High | Yelow | Hardware has mulipe levels of recundancy. Tow Medium Groen Busines: Mark Bourne Mark Bourne TRUE |Yes Yes
significant fakure to meet the Councifs | delvery of al statutory services, Organisation
a publcised P Reakime data repication t off-site location. Technical
strategic objective, or in some other way | strategic objectives.
damage the reputation of the Council Daily backups of data vith off-sit storage fmit data loss.
vith two routes between.
Alstaft are
on our own buiklings.
be ]
equipment
[T~ RAID log Acive  [Failre of o sonce. o issues relted | ICT servics ar ulsed nal Tow High | Yelow | Hardware has mulipe levels of recundancy. Tow Medium Groen Busines: Mark Bourne Mark Bourne TRUE |Yes Yes
it fihe | aspects of Organisation
Councilto met s financial expendiure payments. Reakime data repication t off-site location. Technical
commitments.
Daily backups of data vith off-sit storage fmit data loss.
vith two routes between.
Alstaft are
on our own buiklings.
be ]
equipment
[T~ RAID log Active | Abilty 1o deliver the service may be Recruitment of speciaist staff s Tow Low Groen | We offer career graded posts that alow us (0 develop staff from trainee 1o expert | Low. Low Groen Business Mark Bourne Mark Bourne TRUE |Yes Yes
the pool o suitably status. Our aim s 1o allow for succession within our pool of staf, Organisation
or Technical
very smal.
[T~ RAID log Actve | The service Cow Medium | Green dlooking for opportunties fisk [Low Medium Groen Business Mark Bourne Mark Bourne TRUE |Ves Yes
deal with the pace or scale of change | advancements in technology may Organisation
place significant demands on ICT Technical
time.
[T~ RAID log Active Tow Medum | Green |L: Tow Medium Groen Business Mark Bourne Mark Bourne TRUE |Yes Yes
adversely affect the abiity to deliver the | necessiate major redesigns in legislative commitments are met by the system. Organisation
senvice. gperational I systems. Tochnical




89T abed

| BEEEE Aclve | There coud be adverse emironmental | Redundant [GT equpment Tow Tow Groen | Redundant cqupment s disposed of o WEEE standards. Tow Tow Green Business. Wiark Boune ark Bourne TRUE [Yes Yes
Gonsequences. Gontains hazardous waste that Organisation
Gouid adversely affect the Techmical
environment,
[T~ RAID log Active Tow Medum | Green | Quaity of d abilty o meet needs is @ value Tow Medum |Green Business. Mark Boune Mark Bourne TRUE |Yes Yes
i the service, assessment Organisation
e.g. quaity, cost, efficiency, abity o | abitty to meet needs may mitthe Techmical
delver Best Value. overalleffectiveness of solutions. | 1 beneft
gal- RAID log Aclive | Risk ol a successiul legal chalenge. | Financial penally Medum | Green | Access o and provision of imely legal advice at al stages and evels Vedum Medum Velow Togal 0 | Mary Kiner Viary Kiner TRUE TRUE |Yes Ves
Repuiational damage. overview of counci activiy mintained
egal support avalible if required. Planning Advice appropria
Logal- RAID log Active Medum  |Hgn  [Red  |Rep wracts and o Medum |Green Busines: 01101720 | Tom Davies Andrew Paimer, TRUE TRUE |Yes Yes
Breakdown in contractor performance, | objeciives. Financial and Appropriate Communiy Cameron Morley.
for example, Waste contract, Buiing | reputational oss. Development and implementation of Auit Plan. Organisation Victoria Conheady
Contro, L . White Rock time. Business Continuly Planning ProjectWork stream
Theatre coniract and Ground on dispute resoluton. Techmical
Maintenance etc Legal
egal- RAID log Actve allre 1o comply wih the General Data | Reputation or safeguarding data Figh Velow | GDPR polcies and procedures in place supporied by regular Vaining and review | Medum Medium Velow 0 [Mary Kiner Viark Bourne. Mary TRUE TRUE |Yes Ves
Protection Reguiation (GDPR) Large financal ines imposed. Kiner
gal- RAID log Actve I riminal or cvl Large Repuational Vunerabilty o councllindiudng | Medum | Higt Re Use of extornal specialist Counsel and Charmbers thatlegalservices have used | Medium Medium Velow Organisation Mary Kiner Viary Kiner Ves Ves
c instthe Counci Not being n a position t efend | costs orders against the Counc previoust Logal
actions brought against the Lagal compliance and professionall rained staff subject to CPD, raining, ibrary
ouncil ch tools
in the team for cover for short term absences
rt o client departments
Cogal- RAID log Aclive | Property, Planning & Contracts: ~Reputational failre 1o achieve bestvalue for |Medum |High  |Red |Advice from East Sussex Procurement Hub High Medum  |Red Organisation 0101721 | Mary Kiner Mary Kiner TRUE |Yes Yes
instructions ~Time pressures onfunding | authority - Professionaly qualied saff providing advice on wha s required Legal
~lack of ful, precise and timely - legal challenge from - Contribution o raining of lient offcers
instructions from cient depariments wnsuccessil tenderers ~Use of lken system clarifes instructons
- challenge from contractors where - issues o be
Failure to folow procurement rues we are in breach of confract addresses in.a tmely manner
cannot comply wih specification - Regular updating raining on procurement rules
Not enough attention paid to specification - Work with East Sussex Procuremen H
of contracts Clints need to ensure that they know what they wanit and are reacly o comply with
contract
Logal - RAD log Governance non ~Failure to deliver on Priorities | logal challenge and associated | Medium _|High [Red | Training to officer client departments Medium |Medium _[Yellow | Organisation Q101721 | Mary Kilner Wary Kilner TRUE |Yes Yes
compliance with Constitution, (reputational and financial) legal advice into project
procedures, financial rules and forward planning processes
standing orders, ultra vires, logal “New ken systemin place to coordinate and allocate legal work
challenge “Training, advice and support for staff and members.
standards issues for members ~Legal advice available to Member decision-making meetings
-Regular monitoring and review of constitution.
Leisure Development - RAID log Actve | Fallres of chid protecton oy Low High |Yelow |Alstaff have Low Medum | Green Business 0101721 | Kelth Duly Keith Dul, Victoria | TRUE TRUE TRUE |Yes Yes
Neglgence in maintaining assets. Clims, in place. Community onheady
Outof date polcies. Financialimpact ensure vording i right - enhanced DBS? Legal
for Finance
Gompetent staff buidings. Legionel, fire and asbestos risk assessments & conlrols in place
Reguiar
place to mainain al assets.
Policies reviewed reguiarly.
Staff «
updates. Contracts monitored with specific arangements for H&S reporting via
monthly meetings.
buiings, and activtes.
[Managing Director - RAID log Aclive | Severe Business Disruption Service faire Medum [High  |Red (&CPs) Medum Fiigh Red Busines: 01101720 | Jane Hartnell | Jane Hartnel, TRUE TRUE |No Yes
Reputational damage. support Communiy Natasha Tewkesbury|
Organisai
Systems have stood up o real ife incidents ProjectWork stream
One Team o be diverted to pririty areas. Techmical
Insurance and reserves. Legal
Finance
HR
Managing D RAID log mergency Plamring for a Major T ave Tow Figh Velow i aciive partcipantin emergency plaming arangements for Sussex Wedum Medum [Yellow Business. 01101720 | Jane Hartnel Natasha Tevkesbury TRUE TRUE TRUE
mergency in the borough arrangements in place. ihvough membership of the Sussex Resilience Forum, and the
Resiience and Emergencies Partnersfip.
Repuiational sk i ot seen to be emergency plans, a
ancialisk as resources wil e operate a 365 days a year emergency on call system, so that operational staf,
need to be ust and tactical and strategi m o aise viththe emergency
evacuated residents, and we have recenty significantl increased the number of
staff volunteers for rest centres, and trained therr
Managing Director - RAID log Aoive ack of efective corporate planning — ooty planned resource Higr Velow _|-Managing Director leads work al Stralegic Oversight and Planning Board - setr Velow Organisation Wark Horar jane Harinel TRUE |Yes Yes
lack of capacity, lack of skils, unceriain | allcation Strategic Direction a Operational Blugprin or future of HEC.
resistance fo change issues Staffinvoivement and engagement processes
and efficiency (Business process mapping comp
[Managing Director - RAID log Reductions in HBC capaci High High  |Red |Budget process to review strategic and operational priorities. High High Red Business 01101720 | Mark Horan Jane Hartnell, TRUE TRUE |Yes Yes
Acceptance and commus f limitations on capacity. Community Stephen Dodson

to deliver existing commitments set
inthe longside

necessitated as a result of
re

duced 9
datl

i to
meet the challenge of the council's

icit for
20121 and circa 2.5 million for

Increased pressure on staff as.
aresult of

yipandemi

Higher levels of staff sickness.
impacting on individuals and
on teams ability to deliver.
Potential staff turnover and
1oss of key roles.
Opportunities to implement

efficient ways of working

- and affected by unplanned
losses of team members.
through sickness etc. Coun
s already significantly less
resilient. Financial and
reputational

Fallure to deliver corporate

continues to increase.

Political prioritisation.

i Blueprint, informed review o
layers (by LGA) to determine ways of working and budget process to
prioritise resource allocation.

9 i and
on it it plans to meet
available resources.

new
in prioritising and

decision making as part of the developing corporate standard.

Mechanisms in place to address impacts on staff of increasing pressure - to|

includs i d mental health

required

organisation
Project/Work stream
Technical

Finance
HR




69T abed

[#enaging Director - RAD Tog Reducing | Infiectve Tow Medum | Green |Use of Corporate project management methodoiogy ana Council Management | Medium. Tow Groen Grganisaton 010120 TRUE TRUE |Yes Ve
fo not achieve objectives. Centre (CMC) ProjectWork stream
Repuational damage. Technical
Programmes Team.
proje
Effective project assessment andmonitoring by PAG & COG.
Reguar Risk Reviews by Auit team and COG.
toensure al
Adequate reserves and contingency bui inlo business cases
[Managing Director - RAID log Reducing Groen |1 2 Groen Business Jane Hartnell TRUE |Yes Yes
and or business cases workto make poltical aspirations the Communiy
that the evidence suggests is too 3. Consider Orgaisation
tisky or difficulf undeliverable. decisions log at CAP and other appropriate meelings to track impact ProjectWork stream
Tochnical 01009121 Mark Horan
Legal
Finance
HR
[RAID Log - Establish Climate Change Programme Board |, c(ive | poitical leadership change Polltcal change could affect Medium | High | Red |ensure cross party support among all councillors Medium Low Green |Organisation 2510821 Stephen Dodson TRUE |Yes Yes
[Regencration - RAID log Active | Deterioration of the Counci's assefs i e. | Financial Loss. Figh High Red hedut Figh High Red Business 01101720 | Victoria Conheady | Andrew Paimer, TRUE TRUE |Ves Yes
publc safety tional advice. Communiy Cameron Morley. Kit
issues o.g.ciffs & sea front 3rd Party Public Liabilty Ensuring tenancy obigations are met. Orgarisation Whester, Victoria
ProjectWork stream Conheady
Adequate level of reserves Adequate levelof reserves mitgating Technical
mitigating Insurance. Legal
Insurance. Finance
Regeneration - RAID log Active | Deterioraton of the Town's image and | Town assets include history, Vedum | High Res Planning and Conservation Vedum Medium Velow Business Victoria Conheady | Andrew Paimer TRU TRUE TRUE |Ves Ves
culure, culture etc. 1 2 town asse Enforcement mimunity Kevin Boorman,
thentis a reputational isk for Attract inward investment through regeneration programme and external funding Cameron Morley
HBC but not stricty within the portunies to enhar s Victoria Conhe
Councils remit
Addiional demands on financial s directed 1o afiract new and maintain existing markets.
Adverse impact on tourism. community satety pariners to promte a safe, secure image.
‘Adverse impact on the local
economy. Country Campaign management
NewLocal Plan process
External Funding opportunities from stronger towns
egeneration - RAID log Wiarketing & Major Projects. Maor project] Impa tow's regeneration Tow F including communiy/sta vestor engagement | Low Figh Business Kevin Boorman | Kevin Boorman, TRUE
ails potential financial and reputational and controls in place to identify/mitigate foreseeable risks. Finance Victoria Conheady
risk agement team
Regeneration - RAID log Active | Impactof Covid on the local economy impactof COVID assessedin _[Medum | Medum | Yelow | Fullrisk mitgation dificul at current ime Vedum Medium Velow Business 27104721 | Pranesh Datia anesh Data Yes Ves
and lack of investment inlocal business s Hastings Town Investernt Plan, Hopeful that markets wil sette and Bank of Engiand supports the economy for Community Victoria Conhead)
andior relocation of businesses outof UK| East Sussex Economic Recovery businesses. ProjectWork stream
because of BREXIT d other documnets. Economic uncertainty continues wih regard impact of Brexitwhen the economy
starts operi
Granis/Loans to simuiate business investmentretention
Regeneration - RAID log Active | Downturn ininvards travel from Reduced lourism spend inwards overseas business worlh | High Wedum | Rex We continue to keep the visior economy under review, nchuding our siralegt Vedum Medium Velow Communty Kevin Boorman evin Boorman. Yes Ves
overseas, inciuding language students, | Tourism business ob ©£75m to Hastings, so significant position as a destnation for overseas visitors and language students. We have been Finance Victoria Conhe
post Covid and EU exit lossesiclosures obbying the government and ofhers to relax some of the Brexit measures require
 young language students, and we featured in a Tourism Aliance case study o
this. Some student business has tarted to return, and we belive we wil reach around
5% of our pre-covid and pre-Brexi levels in 2022, 2023 s now ooking better, and we
hope o achieve c50% of our 2019 levels then,
The prospects for the visior economy remain unclear in December 2022, in respect
of both domestic and international travel, ith consumer confidence uncerlain given
forecast inlaion issues, and also the impact of the Ukraine war on fong haul
business. Local tourism businesses reported a very strong first hal year, but a muc!
poorer summer, vith fower viitors spending less money. We expect t wiltake some
time to regain our previous international business, which in 2019 supported 23%
our visitor economy
[Resort Services - RAID g Active | Bathing Water Qua Beach doses Medum |High Red | Amuti-agency approach s being taken {0 miigate this risk. Medium High Red Business 0101721 | Mike Hopworth | Aaron Woods TRUE |Ves Yes
Bathing vater falls to meet annual Loss of tourism income Finance
Reputational damage
Resort Services - RAID log Actve | Flood Risk Management 085 of Ife Vedum | Medum | Yelow _|Enhanced ] cost effecive revenue based maiienance programme (o incre Vedum Medium Velow Business 01101721 | Aaron Woods TRUE Yes Ves
impact o severs eather. 0ss of amenity ences. Aternate funding streams identiied
085 of Government Financial impact 1, Food and Rural Affairs and Environment
ectively and in cose kaison with Environment
od Risk Management Team
Flood Plan was reviewed and updated during 2022,
Resorl Services - RAID log ‘Active | Seafront Concrete Structures. Extensive | Financial impact ow Figh Yelow | Increased investment n repairs programme. ow Figh Velow Business 01101721 | Aaron Woods | Aaron Woods, Yes Yes
deterioration or colapse. Danger to pubi Annual concrete inspections in place with programme of minor repairs. Community Victoria Conhead)
085 of amenity Explore options for longer term refurbishment and investment Finance
Reputation undermined.
[Resort Services - RAID log Actve | Flood Risk Management & Coastal Loss of ife Medum |High Red |Enhanced  cost effective revenue based maintenance programme o increase time. | Medium High Red sines: 0101721 | Aaron Woods | Aaron Woods. TRUE |Ves Yes
Protection Impact of severe weather. | Loss of amenty frame for repi o Aternate identiied via Community Victoria Conheady
Failure of defences Financial impact EFR/ Medium nance
Loss of Government Funding. liaison vith EA Flood Risk Management Tearm.
Funding for MTP secured
Hastings Muli Agency Flood Plan Implemented
harbour arm and seafront defences
There s a timber
Pler and Cinaue Ports Way
No other effective avoidance measures identified
RAID log Risk of landside, landsip. rock falk and | Loss of ife Tow ianced inspecton regime, but complete risk avoidance aimost impossible Tow Figh Business /21| Aaron Wt ‘Aaron Woods,
other natural hazards on both coastal | Damage o property Bi annualinspection programme and remedial action Community Victoria Conheady
ciffs and those inland. Loss of access | amenty L
inancial impact Maintain existing controlsin place (catch fences, signage, barriers Finance
Reputation undermined Rey m in place with other relevant stakeholders
Resort Services - RAID log Active | Blue Flag and Seaside Awar duced tourism spend ow High Yelow | Align operation and resources (o Geliver service inine wih award crteria ow High Yelow Communty 01101721 | Aaron Woods | Aaron Woods, Yes Ves
insuffcient resourc to mee urism business closures Finance Victoria C
criteria resuling n foss of satus Reputational damage Seek external funding for projects i ine with award critera — cyck hirefplay hut et
Financiallosses (parking efc) dination of publc actity to support status
Link o internal projects ~ DSO, Marine Liter
[Reverues & Benafits - RAID log Actve | Faiure o meet colecton targels in ~Callection fund £55m Coundi Tax colecied Medum |High Red |- Ensure a robust recovery svrategy Medium High Red Business 105721 | Peter Grace Bukd Adskoya, Kit TRUE |Ves Yes
respect of councilax & business rates |- budget seting annualy - Adequate resources. Finance Whesler
£22m Business rates colected - Promote CTR
amualy
RAIDIog Governments Environment Bl proposing | Unless the government « he Viedium Red |Responding o government consulations making i e Vedum Velow 2005721 [ Wike Hepworth meron Moriey TRUE Ves
mandatory service changes that coud | reimburses allthe councifs lost | government says any changes wil about the proposals. Working with the East Sussex Joint Waste Finance
result i significant loss of i income and additonal costs funded s new burdens’, LAs considering how we might implement any new mandatory measures arising from the
addtional expense for waste colection | associated with such changes, on | are generaly sceplical abou this. Bil
authorities such as tis council. For | an ongoing basis, waste services
exampe free garden vaste collctions, | wil require significant additonal
weekiy food waste collections, and pitalfuncing
Kerbside separated recycling collections
Father than our existing popuiar co-
mingled service.




This page is intentionally left blank



\£
\

‘i Hastings...-

Borough Council

J

Report To: Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 January 2023

Report Title: Continuous Qualification: Investment Partner Qualification,
Affordable Homes Programme 2021-26

Report By: Tom Davies
Chief Auditor

Key Decision: No

Classification: Open

Purpose of Report
To inform the Audit Committee of the recent Homes England assessment.

Recommendation
That the Audit Committee:

- Notes the report.

Reasons for Recommendations

For monitoring independent third party assurance over the organisation.

Report Template v30.0 o ‘T%
l.

Page 171 L

-

& disability
B confident

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



Introduction and Conclusion

1. Homes England recently conducted their Continued Qualification process for existing Homes
England Investment Partners for 2021-26.

2. The result of their assessment confirmed our organisation of Good Standing. Hastings Borough
Council will continue to be qualified as a Homes England Investment Partner for the Affordable
Homes Programme (AHP) 2021-26.

Timetable of Next Steps

Please include a list of key actions and the scheduled dates for these:

Action Key milestone Due date Responsible
(provisional)

Not applicable

Wards Affected

None

Policy Implications

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) No
Risk Management No
Environmental Issues & Climate Change No
Economic/Financial Implications Yes
Human Rights Act No
Organisational Consequences No
Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No
Legal No

Additional Information

Decision letter received from Homes England 20 December 2022

Officer to Contact

Tom Davies
tdavies@hastings.gov.uk

Report Template v30.0

Page 172


mailto:tdavies@hastings.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 11
I

‘M Hastings...-

Borough Council

J

Report to: Audit Committee

Date of Meeting: 12 January 2023

Report Title: Chief Auditor’s Summary Audit and Risk Report

Report By: Tom Davies
Chief Auditor

Purpose of Report

To inform the Audit Committee of the key findings from the recent audit of Creditors.

Recommendation(s)

1. That the Audit Committee accepts the report..

Reasons for Recommendations

To monitor levels of control within the organisation.

Report Template v29.0 gg‘" m.d. b.lty
hed AISADIL
Page 173 4.-.,:% ‘Eﬁcomﬁdent\

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



Summary Report to Audit Committee

Creditors

Background Information
This review was undertaken as part of the 2022/2023 agreed audit plan.

During the year 1t April 2021 to 31st March 2022, the Creditors service
processed more than 11,000 payments with a cumulative value amounting to
£32.5 million.

It is therefore imperative that the service is carried out effectively and
efficiently in order to ensure creditor payments are made accurately and
promptly.

This aspect of the Council’s activities was last audited in 2018. The Service
was then graded as A: Good and a number of minor improvement
recommendations were made.

Overall Audit Assessment: B — Satisfactory

Most controls are in place and working effectively, although some
improvements are recommended to reduce the potential for fraud and
error and also ensure best practice and efficiency.

Key Findings

e Forthe year 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022, 11,262 creditor payments were
made with a cumulative value amounting to £32.5 million. At the time of the
previous audit report 14,957 creditor payments were made, totalling £26.8
million for the financial year 2017/18.

¢ The Medium-Term Financial Position update (presented to Cabinet in
September 2022) reported an adverse outturn for the purchase of supplies
and services, with actual spending (£20.1 million) exceeding the original
budget by £7.2 million during the period 2021-22. However, it should be
noted that some of the costs for supplies and services are often met by
grants and other income. Nevertheless, the adverse variance is indicative of
increased spending on supplies and services when compared to the original
budgeted expenditure.

¢ In order to ensure that the Creditors payment process remains robust, this audit
has made recommendations that will further strengthen the controls for
requisitioning and approving the purchase of goods / services.

Report Template v29.0

/Y [0 disabili
Page 174 g.a_..,} \EEE conﬁde%

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



¢ Audit have also conducted testing, on all supplier payments over £500 for the
period 01/04/22 to 30/09/22, in order to highlight any potential duplicates. In total,
six duplicate payments were identified.

e The cumulative value of all duplicate payments amounted to £7,901 but this
figure contained four duplicate payments amounting to £6,490, which were
sent to the same supplier. To date, the four duplicate payments made to the
same supplier have already been recovered and the Creditors team have contacted
the remaining suppliers to request a refund.

e Audit have therefore made a recommendation to reissue a briefing to all
staff, regarding the importance of ensuring purchase orders are raised
correctly and that invoices are checked thoroughly prior to referral for
payment.

e Additionally, a “Potential Duplicate Payment” report was developed during
the course of this audit. The report can be generated to highlight instances
where an identical payment value is recorded for the same supplier. The
report also displays the invoice date and reference number, so that the
Creditors team can check for any potential duplicate payments to the same
supplier prior to each payment run.

e Overall, Audit are satisfied that the Creditors system is administered
effectively and efficiently. Whilst further recommendations have been made
to ensure that duplicate payments are minimised as much as possible, Audit
are encouraged by the introduction of an additional reporting tool to highlight
potential errors.

Management Response

We accept the report and will be implementing its recommendations.

end

Report Template v29.0

Y [medisabil
Page 175 g;:} \Eﬁ conﬁdeﬂ

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE EMPLOYER



Timetable of Next Steps

1. Please include a list of key actions and the scheduled dates for these:

Action Key milestone Due date Responsible
(provisional)
Wards Affected
None.
Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No

Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) No

Risk Management Yes

Environmental Issues No

Economic/Financial Implications Yes

Human Rights Act No

Organisational Consequences No

Local People’s Views No

Anti-Poverty No

Climate Change No

Additional Information

Officer to Contact

Tom Davies

Email: tdavies@hastings.gov.uk

Telephone: 01424 451524

Report Template v29.0 - = - —

g"‘ ‘\% B& disability

Page 176 Y B confident

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

EMPLOYER


mailto:tdavies@hastings.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting 13.10.22
	Minutes

	4 Interim Auditor's Annual Report on Hastings Borough Council
	Introduction
	Hastings BC  Auditor's Annual Report 20_21 final interim dwf

	5 Hastings Borough Council Audit Progress Report and Sector Update
	Background
	Audit Fee Variance
	HBC Audit Committee Progress report - Jan 2023
	Slide 1: Hastings Borough Council Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Introduction
	Slide 4: Progress at January 2023
	Slide 5: Progress at January 2023(cont.)  
	Slide 6: Audit Deliverables
	Slide 7: Sector Update
	Slide 8: Audit Market Developments
	Slide 9: Audit Market Developments (continued)
	Slide 10: Grant Thornton – Nearly 60 councils at risk of ‘running out of money’ next year
	Slide 11: Audit Committees: Practical Guidance For Local Authorities And Police – CIPFA
	Slide 12


	6 Treasury Management Mid Year Report 2022-23
	Background
	Introduction
	Graph: Estimated CFR/ Debt and Debt boundaries at year end
	Timetable of Next Steps
	APPENDIX 1 - Prudential Indicators


	7 Treasury Management Strategy & Capital Strategy 2023/24
	Introduction
	Revisions to the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code
	Borrowing / Borrowing Levels
	Investment guidance
	The Primary Requirements of the Code
	Reporting Arrangements
	Capital Strategy
	Risk Management
	Timetable of Next Steps
	Treasury Management Strategy 2023-24 v1.1
	Investment Policy
	Creditworthiness Policy
	Investment Strategy
	Treasury Management Reporting
	Policy on Use of External Service Providers
	Scheme of Delegation
	Role of the Section 151 Officer
	APPENDIX 3 - Economic Review (by Link Group)
	APPENDIX 4 - Prudential Indicators

	APPENDIX 6 - Approved Countries for Investments
	APPENDIX 7 - Treasury Management Policy Statement
	APPENDIX 10 - The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer


	Capital Strategy 2023-24 v1.1
	Introduction
	Regulation


	8 Strategic Risk Register
	Introduction
	Explanatory notes
	Risk Mapping to Objectives
	All Red Risks (Not listed in any particular order)
	Summary
	Strategic Open Risks 060123 V2

	9 Continuous Qualification: Investment Partner Qualification, Affordable Homes Programme 2021-26
	Introduction and Conclusion
	Timetable of Next Steps

	11 Chief Auditor's Summary Audit and Risk Update Report
	Summary Report to Audit Committee
	Background Information
	Overall Audit Assessment: B – Satisfactory
	Key Findings
	Management Response

	Timetable of Next Steps


